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01 Hanny Holdings Limited $&EEBAER AT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

| have pleasure to present the 2007/2008 annual report of Hanny
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

Business and Operations Review
Trading of securities

During the year under review, global stock markets have been very
volatile and spiralled down to seek their respective support points. The
Hong Kong market was not immune to this trend as many marketable
securities suffered unavoidable losses. However, investors were savvy
enough to realize that stocks perform differently depending on the
sectors they are in and different fundamental perception of their future
earnings. Fortunately, the Group holds certain amount of marketable
securities, which stayed resilient to stock market turmoil and stood at
attractive prices. At the early stage of the bearish stock markets, the
Group seized golden opportunities to realise these securities with a

gain.
Property development and trading

The Group has conducted a significant amount of research on
investment opportunities over various cities in the PRC to select the
most favourable cities for the Group to investment in for properties
development. Efforts have been made over the year to pave a
smooth track for the Group to enlarge its presence in the property
development business in the PRC. The Group has formed crucial
networks to strengthen its property development position in the PRC
by, for example, securing good relationships with the local construction
developers, architectural designers, building management companies
and the local sales agencies, etc. However, on fiscal front, the Group
has encountered difficulties in getting bank loans approved, the rising
of labour and material costs, and various unforeseen administration
costs. Bearing in mind the ever-changing policies in the PRC, the Group
always weighs risks and benefits when making decisions as to property
development in the PRC.
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Sand mining

The PRC government has been closely monitoring the environmental
effects and threat to river traffic safety caused by the river sand
dredging activities. As a result, the government conducts frequent
reviews on business operators to ensure that they adhere strictly to the
rules and regulations imposed against them. River sand is scarce and its
consumption for construction and reclamation use has been huge and
increasing. In the year under review, both its demand and selling price
has surged and therefore, the Group captured the revenue growth of
more than ten times as compared to that of last year. Despite that gross
profit margins of this business are extremely attractive, the associated
risks should not be overlooked.

Water supply

During the year, the Group made an investment into a water supply
corporation which possesses a license to provide river water for
industrial use within the piping network. The existing customers include
an electricity company and a steel production plant. Although the
scale is not large at present, we expect that along with the increase in
demand for industrial water, will bring with it a resulting increase to the

contributions to the Group’s results.

Significant Investments

China Enterprises Limited (“CEL”, carrying on business in Hong Kong as
China Tire Holdings Limited)

During the year under review, CEL continues to be an investment
holding company. CEL is engaged in the business of property
investment and development in the PRC and has a 26% interest in
Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber Company Limited and 12.82% interest
in Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Wing On"), respectively.
Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber Company Limited is principally engaged in
manufacturing and marketing of tires in the PRC and other countries
abroad. Wing On is in the business of providing package tour, travel,
and other related services and hotel operations. Subsequent to year
end, 29.16% interest was disposed and the remaining interest was
classified as interest in an associate.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

MRI Holdings Limited (“MRI”)

During the year under review, MRI kept putting management resources
to Zest Health Clubs (“ZHC"), Australia’s second largest health and
fitness chain, and number 1 in market share in 3 of Australia’s 5 largest
fitness markets. MRI has been actively participating in the operations
of ZHC and continued to help ZHC penetrate its markets and grow in

market shares.

Major Strategic Investments
PSC Corporation Ltd. (“PSC")

At 31 March 2008, the Group is holding an effective interest of 24.2%
in PSC. PSC is positioned as a pan-Asian Consumer Essentials Group,
PSC's strategic direction and focus is reflected by its two business
cluster. The Consumer Essentials cluster comprises of fast moving
consumer goods manufacturing, marketing and brand management,
franchise management, health solutions and services, and media
education and entertainment. The Strategic Investment cluster
generates value and financial asset capabilities by investing in promising
enterprises in high growth sectors, including packaging and integrated

solutions trading.

Intraco Limited (“Intraco”)

At 31 March 2008, the Group is holding an effective interest of 7.2%
in Intraco, which focuses on five core businesses, which include agri-
business and foods, energy and environment, industrial materials,

building materials and security solutions, and semiconductors.
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Tat Seng Packaging Group Limited (“Tat Seng”)

At 31 March 2008, the Group is holding an effective interest of 15.4%
in Tat Seng, which is one of Singapore’s leading manufacturers of
corrugated paper packaging products with operations in Singapore,
Suzhou and Hefei in the PRC. The Tat Seng Packaging group designs,
manufactures and sells corrugated paper packaging products for
the packing of a diverse range of products according to customers’
specifications. Its key products include corrugated paper boards,
corrugated paper cartons, die-cut boxes, assembly cartons, heavy duty
corrugated paper products and other packaging related products.

Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (“Wing On Travel”)

At 31 March 2008, the Group is holding an effective interest of
12.3% in Wing On Travel, which is principally engaged in the business
of providing packaged tours, travel and other related services, and
hotel operation including a hotel chain branded under the name of

“Rosedale” in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Outlook

The general economy of China is booming. With the Summer Olympics
taking place in Beijing this year, it will be a year of growth for China
and Hong Kong. Given that the Chinese are clearly benefiting from
a low exchange rate in order to attract more investments into China.
The long term goal for China is to be in a stronger economic position
alongside other countries and hence the changes in the Renminbi will
be vital to other currencies.

The Group’s philosophy is to focus its investments in countries where
we believe the economy is strong and growth is the most resilient to
change. China offers attractive investment potential. China has huge
domestic consumption and investment demand, which continue to
drive growth in the country. The Group believes China offers excellent
long-term potential, despite the possibility for inflation to surge. It will
be a challenging year ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

In its search for good investment opportunities in China, the Group will
target those investments that can transform our available resources
into investments which eventually cultivate profits for the Group.
Although good investment opportunities also come with business
risks, the Group will strive to diversify its investments into new business
segments in order to minimise risks. Our objective remains clear — the
Group will hold the goal of maximizing benefits to all the shareholders

as its highest priority.
Appreciation
I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my

fellow board members, the management and employees for their hard
work and contribution to the Group in the past year.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DT

Results and Financial Review

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group's audited consolidated
profit before minority interests was HK$48.0 million (2007: HK$1,461.5
million), which mainly comprised of revenue from sales of other assets
of HK$130.0 million (2007: Nil), revenue from water supply business
of HK$5.9 million (2007: Nil), revenue from sand mining business of
HK$18.1 million (2007: HK$1.2 million), cost of sales of HK$279.4
million (2007: HK$14.4 million), other income of HK$171.5 million
(2007: HK$161.6 million), administrative expenses of HK$94.8 million
(2007: HK$92.8 million), finance costs of HK$155.9 million (2007:
HK$83.4 million), decrease in fair value of conversion option embedded
in convertible notes of HK$38.3 million (2007: HK$187.1 million),
increase in fair value of conversion option embedded in convertible
note receivable from an associate of HK$11.4 million (2007: decrease of
HK$18.4 million), increase in fair value of convertible notes designated
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$16.3 million (2007: HK$16.8
million), increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$103.3
million (2007: HK$2.6 million), gain on convertible notes converted into
investment held for trading of HK$434.2 million (2007: Nil), net gain
on investments held for trading of HK$39.4 million (2007: HK$60.3
million, as restated), discount on acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries of HK$5.5 million (2007: Nil), discount on acquisition of
additional interest in an associate of HK$148.3 million (2007: Nil),
impairment loss on available-for-sale investments of HK$72.4 million
(2007: HK$45.7 million), loss on remeasurement to fair value less cost
to sell in respect of disposal group held for sale of HK$90.2 million
(2007: Nil), gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$12.5 million (2007:

HK$1.3 million), loss on disposal and dilution/disposal of interest in an
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

associate of HK$268.5 million (2007: profit of HK$5.1 million), share
of results of associates of HK$96.0 million (2007: HK$35.4 million),
income tax expense of HK$144.8 million (2007: HK$32.4 million).
While there were revenue from sale of computer related products of
HK$7.8 million, discount on acquisition of subsidiaries of HK$132.5
million, impairment loss on goodwill of HK$6.6 million and profit from
discontinued operations of HK$1,517.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2007, there were no such items for the year ended 31 March
2008.

After taken into account share of results by minority interest, the
audited profit for the year attributable to the equity holders was
HK$129 million (2007: HK$1,527 million) and the basic earnings per
share was HK2.94 cents (2007: HK16.1 cents).

Segment Results

For trading of securities, segment revenue amounted to HK$473.6
million, increasing by HK$413.3 million (685%) from 2007 and
segment result recorded HK$477.1 million, increasing by HK$460.7
million (2,810%) from 2007.

For sand mining segment, segment revenue amounted to HK$18.1
million, increasing by HK$16.9 million (1,408%) from 2007 and
segment result recorded HK$5.1 million, increasing by HK$16.3 million
from the segment loss of HK$11.2 million in 2007.

During the year, property development and trading segment was
reactivated. For property development and trading segment, segment
revenue amounted to HK$130.0 million, and segment loss recorded
HK$102.2 million.
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During the year, water factory segment was included as a result of the
acquisition of a subsidiary, with segment revenue of HK$5.9 million and

segment loss of HK$3.5 million.

The results of the Group decreased significantly from a profit of
HK$1,461.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2007 to HK$48.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2008. This was mainly attributable
to the disposal of assets of Memorex International Inc. during the year
ended 31 March 2007 which contributed HK$1,517.9 million to the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007. The Group
also disposed of certain interest of an associate during the year with
a net loss of HK$268.5 million while a net gain of HK5.1 million was
resulted from disposals of associates during the year ended 31 March
2007. From acquisition of subsidiaries, no discount on acquisition
of subsidiaries was resulted while HK$132.5 million was resulted
for the year ended 31 March 2007. The cost of sales increased by
HK$265.1 million mainly due to the increase of revenue from trading of
securities and properties development and trading. The other income
increased by HK$10.2 million. Finance costs incurred increased by
HK$72.6 million owing to the coupon interest in relation to the issue
of convertible notes by the Company and increase of loan to finance
the investments. Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment of
HK$72.4 million was recorded and it was HK$26.6 million more than
that for the year ended 31 March 2007. Loss on remeasurement to
fair value less cost to sell in respect of disposal group held for sale of
HK$90.2 million was resulted for the year ended 31 March 2008 while
there was nil for the year ended 31 March 2007.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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However, such decrease was offset by the decrease in fair value of
conversion options in aggregate of HK$38.3 million as compared to
the decrease of HK$187.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2007.
Gain on convertible notes converted into investments held for trading
of HK$434.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2008 while there
was nil for the year ended 31 March 2007. Discount on acquisition
of additional interest in an associate of HK$148.3 million while there
was nil for the year ended 31 March 2007. Change in fair value of
convertible option embedded in convertible notes from an associate
turned around from a decrease of HK$18.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2007 to an increase of HK$11.4 million for the current year.
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$12.5 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2008 and there was only HK$1.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2007. Furthermore, there was an increase
in fair value of investment property of HK$103.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2008 compared to the increase of HK$2.6 million for
the year ended 31 March 2007. The revenue from sales of other assets
of and revenue from water supply business were recorded HK$130.0
million and HK$5.9 million respectively compared to 2007 were nil. The
revenue from sand mining business was increased from HK$1.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2007 to HK$18.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2008. Income tax expense increased by HK$112.3
million from HK$32.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2007 to
HK$144.8 million for current year. In addition, there was an impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$6.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2007
but nil for the year ended 31 March 2008.
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Investment in Convertible Notes

During the year, the Group acquired 3 unlisted convertible notes issued
by companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange') for an aggregate consideration of HK$258.2
million in addition to the existing seven convertible notes acquired
in prior years. An aggregate of HK$636.4 million was converted into
investments held for trading during the year. One of the convertible
notes stated at fair value of HK$18.9 million was redeemed. The
aggregate fair value decrease of HK$38.3 million in respect of the
conversion option element and decrease of HK$34.2 million in respect
of the debt element were recognized in profit and loss and reserves,
respectively. In addition, the aggregate fair value increase in respect of
the convertible notes designated at fair value through profit or loss,
gain on convertible notes converted into investments held for trading
and conversion options embedded in convertible note receivable from
an associate of HK$16.3 million, HK$434.2 million and HK$11.4 million
were recognized in profit and loss.

Liquidity

Bank and cash balances at 31 March 2008 increased significantly to
HK$490.5 million (2007: HK$161.6 million), accounting for 16.6%
(2007: 6.5%) of the net tangible asset value of the Group. Such
dramatic increase was mainly attributable to disposal of investment
held for trading and fund raising during the year. The cash was mainly
used for daily operations and investments in financial instruments and
available-for-sale investment during the year. The current ratio of the
Group at 31 March 2008 was 4.77 (2007: 2.2).
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Financial Review

The current assets of the Group at 31 March 2008 increased by
HK$520.1 million (25.1%) to HK$2,779.7 million (2007: HK$2,259.6

million).

Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase of assets classified
as held for sale of HK$857.5 million, increase in properties held for
sale of HK$211.4 million, loans to and amounts due from associates
of HK$8.9 million, available-for-sale investments of HK$29.8 million,
conversion options embedded in convertible note receivable of HK$4.1
million and bank and cash balance of HK$328.9 million. Such increase
outweighed the decrease in other assets of HK$229.3 million, trade
and other receivable of HK$321.9 million, investments held for trading
of HK$67.1 million, deposit paid for acquisition of investments held for
trading of HK$73.3 million, convertible notes designated at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$23.8 million, short-term loan receivables
of HK$203.9 million and margin loan receivables of HK$2.8 million at

year end as compared to 31 March 2007.

Trade and other receivables decreased from HK$389.1 million as at 31
March 2007 to HK$67.2 million as at 31 March 2008. Such dramatic
decrease was mainly attributable to the settlement of escrow money
of disposal of Memorex® business. The number of days for debtors
turnover decreased from 104 days last year to 23 days in current year
and such decrease was mainly attributable to settlement of escrow

money of disposal of Memorex® business.
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Short-term loan receivables decreased by HK$203.9 million from
HK$308.5 million as at 31 March 2007 to HK$104.6 million as at
31 March 2008. Such decrease was mainly attributable to a number
of loan agreements entered into with third parties for an aggregate
principal amount of HK$410.9 million during the year. During the year,
an aggregate amount of HK$619.3 million was repaid, satisfied by cash
and other payables. Reversal of provision for loan receivable of HK$4.5

million was made during the year.

Loans to and amounts due from associates increased by HK$8.9 million
from HK$372.1 million as at 31 March 2007 to HK$380.9 million as at
31 March 2008. Such increase was mainly attributable to an aggregate
principal amount of HK$396.6 million was advanced during the year.
During the year, an aggregate amount of HK$387.7 million was repaid,
satisfied by cash and other payable.

Deposits paid for acquisition of investments held for trading of
HK$73.3 million was reclassified to investments held for trading during
the year ended 31 March 2008.

Trade and other payables increased from HK$90.7 million as at 31
March 2007 to HK$109.3 million as at 31 March 2008. Such dramatic
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the amount due
to securities companies. The number of days for creditors turnover
decreased from 72 days last year to 41 days in current year and such

decrease was mainly attributable to the trading of securities.
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At 31 March 2008, total borrowings of the Group amounted to
HK$876.7 million (2007: HK$1,278.6 million), of which HK$758.1
million (2007: HK$743.0 million) were not repayable within one year.
The borrowings included bank and other borrowings of HK$216.1
million (2007: HK$598.3 million), overdrafts of HK$32.8 million (2007:
HK$21.0 million). In addition, there were convertible notes payable of
HK$627.8 million as at 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$659.3 million). The
decrease in borrowings was mainly due to the new loan of HK$428.0
million granted to the Group for the purposes of investment and daily
operation. Repayment of HK$810.2 million was made during the year.
Overdrafts increased by HK$11.8 million as compared to 31 March
2007. Convertible loan notes of HK$54.0 million were converted during
the year, with coupon interest paid of HK$17.2 million and effective

interest accrued of HK$39.6 million.

Pledge of assets

At 31 March 2008, certain assets of the Group amounting to HK$858.1
million (2007: HK$300.0 million) were pledged to banks and financial

institutions for loan facilities granted to the Group.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (borrowings/shareholders’ funds) at 31 March
2008 significantly decreased to 28.4% (2007: 51.3%) owing to
the repayment of other borrowings during the year and increase of

shareholders’ fund.
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Exchange rate and interest rate risks exposure

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The risk of foreign exchange
fluctuation has not been significant to the Group. Interest rates of bank
and other loans are at Prime plus. At the balance sheet date, the Group

did not enter into any interest rate speculative and hedging contracts.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2008, the Group had guarantee given to a bank in respect
of banking facilities utilized by a third party of HK$2.6 million (2007:
HK$23.3 million).

Material disposal of a subsidiary

On 25 March 2008, the Company disposed of its entire interest in
Kamthorn Limited to an independent third party for a consideration
of HK$150 million (the “Disposal'). The principal asset of Kamthorn
Limited was the holding of approximately 18.1% equity interest in the
issued share capital of China Enterprises Limited. The equity interest
of the Group in China Enterprises Limited reduced from approximately
55.2% to approximately 37.1% upon completion of the Disposal on
7 April 2008. Accordingly, China Enterprises Limited ceased to be a

subsidiary and became an associated company of the Company.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2008, there were approximately 100 staff members
(2007: 45) employed by the Group. The remuneration policies are
formulated on the basis of performance of individual employees and
the prevailing salaries’ trends in the various regions. They are subject
to be reviewed every year. The Group also provided employee training
programs, a mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance and
discretionary bonuses. Share options are awarded to employees on a
merit basis. However, no share options were granted during the year.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 53, was appointed as
Managing Director of the Company in November 1995. He was
appointed as Chairman of the Company in November 2000 and is
responsible for the overall management of the Company. He retired
by rotation at the annual general meeting held in 2004 and was
re-appointed as Chairman and Executive Director of the Company
in September 2004. He holds an Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws
and a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering and has over 28 years’
international corporate management experience in construction
and property sectors as well as strategic investments. Dr. Chan is the
chairman of ITC Corporation Limited and a non-executive director of
PYI Corporation Limited, both of which are companies whose shares
are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Dr. YAP, Allan, aged 52, joined the Company in 1995 and was
appointed as Deputy Managing Director in December 1997. In
November 2000, he was appointed as Managing Director of the
Company. He obtained the Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and has
over 26 years' experience in finance, investment and banking. Dr. Yap
is an executive director of Big Media Group Limited and Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited, companies whose shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market and on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited respectively. He is the chairman and chief executive
officer of China Enterprises Limited, a company whose shares are
traded on the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States of America as
well as Burcon NutraScience Corporation, a company whose shares
are listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange in Germany. Dr. Yap is an executive chairman of PSC
Corporation Ltd., Intraco Limited and Tat Seng Packaging Group Ltd.,
all of which are companies whose shares are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Limited. He is also the chairman of MRI Holdings Limited, a

company whose shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
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Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 52, joined the Company in November
1995. He is the Deputy Managing Director, Qualified Accountant
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lui is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the CPA
Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in U.K. He
has over 28 years of experience in accounting, financial and corporate
management. He has held senior financial positions in an international
accounting firm and various private and public listed companies. Mr. Lui
is currently an executive director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and PSC Corporation Ltd, a company
whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited. He is also a
director of MRI Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange. Mr. Lui holds a Master of Business

Administration degree from the University of Adelaide in Australia.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. KWOK Ka Lap, Alva, aged 60, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since July 2003. He was a
marketing manager in an international company engaging in the
design of business administration system. Mr. Kwok has been in the
insurance and investments business for over 26 years, principally in the
senior managerial position leading a sizable sales team. Mr. Kwok is an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited
(formerly known as Macau Prime Properties Holdings Group Limited)
and Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited, both of which are companies
whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. POON Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 47, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since February 2007. Mr. Poon
graduated from the University of Bath, United Kingdom with a Master
of Science degree in Business Administration. He is also a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the CPA Australia. Mr. Poon is currently an independent non-

executive director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited.

Mr. SIN Chi Fai, aged 49, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since January 2008. Mr. Sin is a director and a
shareholder of two Singapore companies engaged in the distribution of
data storage media and computer related products and distribution of
educational toys in Asian countries. He obtained a diploma in Banking
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University). He has over 12 years of experience in banking
field and has 12 years’ sales and marketing experience in information
technology industries. He is currently an independent non-executive

director of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited.
Senior Management

Ms. KEE Shui Wah, aged 43, joined the Company in April 1994 and
was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company in May
2002. Ms. Kee is a member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She has over 17 years’ experience in international

accounting and finance in multinational corporations.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

Hanny Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to ensuring
good standards of corporate governance in order to protect and
enhance the interests of shareholders. This report discloses how
the Company has applied the principles of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, except for the following
deviations.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer. The
Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive
officer”. Instead, the duties of day-to-day management of the business
are performed by the Managing Director of the Company. The posts of
Chairman and Managing Director are distinct and separate as set out in

this report.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Company’s annual general meetings in accordance with the Bye-Laws
of the Company. As at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) (or such number as nearest
to one-third) must retire by rotation, each of the Directors is effectively

appointed for a term of approximately three years.
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The Board

Composition of the Board

The board of Directors (the “Board”) represents shareholders of the
Company in managing the Company’s affairs. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises six members, including three executive
directors, namely Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman), Dr. Yap,
Allan (Managing Director) and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy
Managing Director), and three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and
Mr. Sin Chi Fai. Biographical details of the Directors and the relevant
relationships among them, if any, are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 15 to 17 of the annual report.

On 31 October 2007, Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company due to personal
reasons, and ceased to be a member of the audit committee and a
member of the remuneration committee on the same date. Mr. Sin
Chi Fai was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of the Company with effect from 28
January 2008. Save for the period between Mr. Wong's resignation and
Mr. Sin‘'s appointment, the Company has at least three independent
non-executive directors throughout the year ended 31 March 2008 as

required under the Listing Rules.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors and
independent non-executive directors and possesses a wide spectrum of
relevant skills and experience. One of the independent non-executive
directors has the professional accounting qualifications as required
under the Listing Rules. The Company has received confirmation from
each independent non-executive director about his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company continues to

consider all independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year and on other occasions
as and when required. Members of the Board are advised to inform
the Company Secretary if they wish to include matters in the agenda
before the relevant regular Board meeting. All Board members are kept
informed of material changes about the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and have full access to the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, twelve meetings were held
by the Board. Individual attendance of each Board member at these

meetings is shown below:
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Board Meetings attended/held

Directors == CHE CBETZEESEEBNY
Executive Directors HiTEF

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR B 0% 15 + 12/12
Dr. Yap, Allan Yap, Allan & 4= 11/12
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard EPIS e 12/12
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva WA 12/12
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (Note 1) ek (Hat1) 10/10
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert % B 0 o A 12/12
Mr. Sin Chi Fai (Note 2) GEBEE (KiE2) 0/0
Notes: K et -

1. Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph resigned as an independent non-executive 1. EERLAERB_ZTELFTA=1—

director with effect from 31 October 2007.

2. Mr. Sin Chi Fai was appointed as an independent non-executive director
with effect from 28 January 2008.
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The principal functions of the Board are to formulate corporate strategy
and direction with the objective of enhancing shareholders value,
to consider the Company’s major corporate matters, to monitor and
control the operating and financial performance of the Group. Day-
to-day management of the Group’s business is delegated to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Managing
Director. The delegation of responsibilities and authority is reviewed
regularly to ensure that the appropriate reporting systems are in
place. The Board has established three committees with specific
responsibilities to manage and oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. Each committee is appointed with written terms of
reference and is accountable to the full Board. The Board has reserved
for its decision and consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
dividend policy, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, and other significant operational and financial matters. A
written procedure has been agreed for Directors to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expense upon their request.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance to indemnify its Directors and management staff against
potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties. The
insurance coverage for the Directors and management staff is reviewed

on an annual basis.
Chairman and Managing Director

The Company fully recognizes that the respective role of Chairman
and Managing Director should be distinct and separated. The posts of
Chairman and Managing Director are held by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles and Dr. Yap, Allan respectively. The Chairman is responsible
for leadership of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the business of the Group. A clear
division of responsibilities at the Board level has been maintained to
entail a balance of power and authority.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The
Board as a whole is responsible for considering and approving the
appointment of its members and nominating them for election and re-
election by the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, the Board shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, new appointments
to the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting ("AGM") in their first year of appointment. In
addition, one-third of the Directors will retire from office by rotation for
re-election by shareholders at each AGM. Accordingly, every Director is

subject to retirement at least once every three years.

An Induction program is arranged for the newly appointed Director
on the latest information of the Group. A comprehensive orientation
package detailing the responsibilities and duties of being a director
and the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations of the

Company is also provided.
Board Committees

The Board has established committees to assist in carrying out its
responsibilities. Three committees have been appointed, including
an Executive Committee, a Remuneration Committee and an Audit
Committee. The committees oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs and report regularly to the Board.
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive directors, namely
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Dr. Yap, Allan and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard. The Executive Committee meets as and when required to
oversee the day-to-day management and operation of the Group’s
business and has all the general powers of the Board except those

matters specifically reserved for the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. Members of the
Remuneration Committee as at the date of this report are Mr. Kwok
Ka Lap, Alva (who acts as Chairman of the committee), Mr. Poon
Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on management succession planning for senior management of the
Group; formulate and review remuneration policy and packages
of all directors and senior management; and review and approve
compensation packages, roles and responsibilities of employees of the
Group. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
posted on the Company’s website.

The remuneration package of Directors is based on their individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee will consult the
Chairman and the Managing Director about their proposals relating
to the remuneration of other executive directors and have access to
professional advice if considered necessary.
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The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
March 2008 to discuss remuneration related matters and review the
remuneration policy of the Group. Individual attendance of each

Remuneration Committee member at the meeting is shown below:
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Remuneration Committee
Meeting attended/held

EHE BETZ
Remuneration Committee Member FHEEERE FHEZEEEER XK
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva P EAE 11
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (Note 1) mRmALE(KET) 0/0
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard BIKREE 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (Note 2) B A (K aE2) 71
Notes: Mt
1. Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph ceased to be a member of the Remuneration 1. EERAERBZZEEELFETA=+—
Committee with effect from 31 October 2007. AREEEATFMEZE2KE -
2. Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert was appointed as a member of the 2. FBREEEAZTTLEFTA=1—
Remuneration Committee with effect from 31 October 2007. ARREZFARTMEEEKE -
Audit Committee BEZEZE®
Major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows: ERLZEGZEEZACGKEBENT ¢

(@) To consider the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditors, and to approve the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the auditors of the Company;

(b) To assess the independence of the auditors and discuss with the
auditors the nature and scope of the audit;

(c) To review interim and annual accounts before submission to the
Board;
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(d) To review the financial controls, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group and make recommendations
to the Board; and

(e) To review the auditors’ management letter and material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response.

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent non-executive
directors. Members of the Audit Committee as at the date of this
report are Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert (who acts as Chairman of
the committee), Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai. All Audit
Committee members have appropriate qualifications and experience to
properly discharge its roles and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review with the management and the auditors the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 and
the unaudited interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2007, with recommendations to the Board for approval;
to review the effectiveness of internal control system; and to approve
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors for the year
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ended 31 March 2008. Individual attendance of each Audit Committee

member at these meetings is shown below:
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Audit Committee
Meetings attended/held

CHE BETZ
Audit Committee Member EREEERE EREZEEEERRE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert & B R % A4 2/2
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva LA 212
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph (Note 1) mRREE (M) 71
Mr. Sin Chi Fai (Note 2) EEEEE (AiE2) 0/0

Notes:

1. Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph ceased to be a member of the Audit

Committee with effect from 31 October 2007.

2. Mr. Sin Chi Fai was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with

effect from 28 January 2008.

The Board and the Audit Committee did not have any differences of

opinion during the year ended 31 March 2008.

Auditor's Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the amount paid to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit and

non-audit services provided are as follows:

ffat

1. ERRELEB-_ZTELFTA=1T—
HEKLEEIEZZEGXE -
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Amount

&5

(HK$°000)

Type of services RiEER (F&Ex)

Audit EZ 7,000
Non-audit services IEEZRTE

Taxation HiIE 55

Other services H s R 7% 4,260

Total: &5t 11,315
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Compliance with the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
(the "Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed the compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.
The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing securities
transactions by employees who may possess or have access to price-
sensitive information.

Directors’ and Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2008, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the audited
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group, for
safequarding the assets of the Group and for taking reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are to form an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial statements
and their opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2008 is set out in the “Independent

Auditor's Report” on pages 41 and 42 of the annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls on financial, operational,
compliance and risk management, to achieve the Company’s business
strategies and the Group’s business operations. The Board has adopted
an internal control policy, which has been developed with a primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management. The aim of
the Group’s internal control policy is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than
to eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of
the objectives of the Group.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material
controls in financial and compliance areas, various functions for risks
management as well as physical and information systems security.
The Audit Committee has been reported twice during the year, in

conjunction with key findings identified by the external auditors.

The Company has engaged an independent consultant to perform
internal controls design assessment of certain systems and to prepare
a report (the “Internal Controls Review Report”) to enable the
management of the Company to evaluate and, where appropriate,
carry out the recommended controls procedures of the Internal
Controls Review Report. The Audit Committee has reviewed the

Internal Controls Review Report.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company is committed to ensure on-going dialogue with
shareholders and provide shareholders with information necessary to
evaluate the performance of the Company. The primary communication
channel includes the publication of interim and annual reports, annual
general meeting and other general meetings, and the Company’s
website.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.hanny.com
which enables shareholders, investors and the general public to have an
open access to the information of the Company. Financial information
and all corporate communications of the Company are made available
on the Company’s website which is updated regularly.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
to the shareholders their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in trading of securities, holding of vessels for sand
mining, industrial water supply business and other strategic investments
including (i) a subsidiary whose shares are listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange; (ii) an associated company whose shares are
traded on the OTC Bulletin board in the United States of America; (iii)
associated companies whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or the Singapore Exchange
Limited and (iv) long term convertible notes issued by companies whose

shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries and associates of the
Company are set out in notes 59 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results

Details of the results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 43 to 44 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: HK1 cent per share in cash with scrip
option), after taking into account the payment of an interim dividend
of HKO.5 cent per share in cash with scrip option by the Company on
20 March 2008, and the need to retain resources for further expansions

and acquisitions when opportunities arise.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Investment Properties

Details of revaluation of the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman)
Dr. Yap, Allan (Managing Director)
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard (Deputy Managing Director)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai
(appointed on 28 January 2008)
Mr. Wong King Lam, Joseph
(resigned on 31 October 2007)

In accordance with bye-laws 87(2) and 87(3) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Dr. Yap, Allan will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM")

and will be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Sin
Chi Fai who was appointed during the period from the last annual
general meeting to the date of this report, will retire and will be eligible
for re-election at the AGM.
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None of the Directors eligible for re-election at the AGM has a service T4E

contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within

one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Interests of Directors

5%
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ERRBRRBEFRGLERETLZ

BaK -

EEE

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the Directors nw=

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or

any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were recorded N

in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or (b)
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the "Model Code") were as follows:

Interests in the shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company (the (a)

E3

KRB
RIEEZRHE

BX

BMEENKETETARFAR
A ARE CEERERIN) M L2 R

ZENF=A=+—H EERNAK

A AAT L DL
MmizEEm &

=8l ([12
fs 22

ARIRERABEIE(TERBZHFRAE
I (TEHREBAEKRD]) EXVE) 2 ]
HERORESFTRHEBE WO TR &R
KoK B (@B
S EBIEIRNIERERE
ZETZMA KOBRBE LT ARESE
NTEHER G 212E
HE KR A

SRR 9IS

SRl B

KA R A& EE B T H

“Shares”) (Tfn ) 2 #Ew
Approximate %
of the issued
Long Position/ Number of share capital
Name Short Position Nature of Interest Shares held  of the Company
RN
EBITRA
=x Br/ KR EEME BEERGEA BMYB D
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Long Position Beneficial owner 23,941,600 0.48%
Charles (“Dr. Chan") e E=EAA
PR B 58 1 Long Position Interest of controlled 2,501,529,452 49.90%
([FRELE]) [S=) corporations (Note)
RXERB 2R
(Ktat)
Dr. Yap, Allan Long Position Beneficial owner 39,726,384 0.79%

Yap, Allan {8 &

e

E@mBEAA
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Note:

Interests in equity derivatives (as defined in the SFO) of the

b) RARBEATETA(EER

=113

Company > REIERD) 2
Approximate %
Number of of the issued
Long Position/ underlying share capital
Name Short Position Nature of Interest shares  of the Company
RNV
EBITRAE
=x HR/ KR EEME HERGHE BOBED K
Dr. Chan Long position Beneficial owner 4,241,507 0.08%

PR1E + e BEHEERA

Long position Interest of controlled 283,521,894 5.66%

corporations (Note)

LSy
(H1aE)

Dr. Chan is deemed to be interested in 2,501,529,452 Shares and
283,521,894 underlying shares through corporations controlled by him.
Out of these deemed interests, 2,501,529,452 Shares and 140,288,641
underlying shares are held by Famex Investment Limited which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Mankar Assets Limited, 143,233,253 underlying
shares are held by Hollyfield Group Limited. Both Mankar Assets Limited
and Hollyfield Group Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of ITC
Investment Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary
of ITC Corporation Limited. ITC Corporation Limited is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Dr. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the Directors

had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within

the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

MERRZ

Mat - RIE TR REBEESZ QAR
2,501,529,452 f% % 19 %% 283,521,894 [i%
HEROTHEEER  NEZSHER
WA 2R - 2,501,529,452 R & 5
$2.140,288,641 % 18 B8 A% 17 F3 Mankar
Assets Limited 2 & & I 8 2 5] & F %
BEHBRAREAE - 143,233,253 R HHH#
% 15 f Hollyfield Group Limited# & ©
Mankar Assets Limited }& Hollyfield Group
Limited¥3 A ITC Investment Holdings Limited
22 EMB A A MITC Investment
Holdings Limited R fE ¥ XS EHR A
RIZE2ENBAR - BHELEEERE
BARIERAERBL ZZERA -

R EXFHEEN RZFETNF=A
=t—H BMEEERNAQFKEAE
ZE(EERBHF LG R EXVE)
2B HEARDEAESTHEERER
KA () BRERRIERF KBS K
IE32GREFEZELTA - (b
REBEZEESTRIZANE AR R LB -



Share Option Schemes

Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in note
53 to the consolidated financial statements.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As at 31 March 2008, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates were interested in any business apart from the Group's
businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses in accordance with Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transaction”
as set out below, there are no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders

ETEREME

N

As at 31 March 2008, the following persons had interests or short RZEEZNF=ZA=+—HB " T AL
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which AN 2 A i 7 3k 48 F% Hx HREARERL
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of KB MZ ER M IOK B D L HENIRIE
the SFO: ?é%%&,ﬁﬁif1%1%%3361'7&%%&7(_32”‘
A
Approximate
% of the
issued share
Long Position/ Number of Number of capital of the
Name Short Position Nature of Interest Shares held  underlying shares Company
EARDT
BRIRA
=1 BR/ %R EaitE BFEROEE HEROHE BRBEDLL
Dr. Chan (Note 1) Long Position Beneficial owner 23,941,600 — 0.48%
BRIEL (Mat1) e BERBEAA
Long Position Beneficial owner — 4,241,507 0.08%
e BERBEAA
Long Position Interest of controlled 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
corporations
e XERAZER
Long Position Interest of controlled — 283,521,894 5.66%
corporations
e RERAzER
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy  Long Position Interest of spouse 23,941,600 — 0.48%
(Note 2) 15} [ £
mmELt Long Position Interest of spouse — 4,241,507 0.08%
(KBiit2) 1E REES
Long Position Interest of spouse 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
1E [T
Long Position Interest of spouse — 283,521,894 5.66%
1E [T
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Approximate
% of the
issued share

Long Position/ Number of Number of capital of the
Name Short Position Nature of Interest Shares held  underlying shares Company
BARRTE
BERTRA
=1 BE/ KA BEME BFEROYE HERGEHE BRBEDL
ITC Corporation Long Position Interest of controlled 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
Limited (Note 3) corporations
EHLEEHE
BRAT(HE3) A XEQAZER
Long Position Interest of controlled — 283,521,894 5.66%
corporations
e XEBRRZ R
ITC Investment Holdings Long Position Interest of controlled 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
Limited (Note 47 i# 4) corporations
e XBRRz R
Long Position Interest of controlled — 283,521,894 5.66%
corporations
S XEQRZER
Mankar Assets Limited ~ Long Position Interest of controlled 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
(Note 1 &£ 5) corporation
e XEQRZER
Long Position Interest of controlled — 140,288,641 2.80%
corporation
e XEBRRz R
Famex Investment Long position Beneficial owner 2,501,529,452 — 49.90%
Limited e ERBERAA
HE®REABRLT  Long Position Beneficial owner — 140,288,641 2.80%

e

BExEBA
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Notes:

1. Dr. Chan is deemed to be interested in 2,501,529,452 Shares and
283,521,894 underlying shares through corporations controlled by him.
Out of these deemed interests, 2,501,529,452 Shares and 140,288,641
underlying shares are held by Famex Investment Limited which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Mankar Assets Limited, 143,233,253 underlying
shares are held by Hollyfield Group Limited. Both Mankar Assets Limited
and Hollyfield Group Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of ITC
Investment Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary
of ITC Corporation Limited. ITC Corporation Limited is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Dr. Chan.

2. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, spouse of Dr. Chan, is deemed to be interested in
Dr. Chan’s shares.

3. These interests are included in the interests held by Dr. Chan.

4. These interests are included in the interests held by ITC Corporation
Limited.

5. These interests are included in the interests held by ITC Investment

Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, the Company had not
been notified of any other interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transaction

The details of the connected transaction of the Company during the

year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

The Company entered into a placing agreement and a supplemental
agreement with the Placing Agent, Kingston Securities Limited, on 24
August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively pursuant to which
the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up to an
aggregate of 501,000,000 new shares (the “Placing Shares”) of the
Company at the price of HK$0.29 per Placing Share.

et

1. BRELERREBEZHZAAR
2,501,529,452 f% % 17 283,521,894 %
HEROFHEEEZRZ RZZSHERAR
WH 2 m P 2,501,529,452 Ik R 15
$:.140,288,641 fx #8 B Bx 5 B Mankar
Assets Limited 2 2 BB AR H K&
BRAFFHE 143233253 18 B Ak
19 1 Hollyfield Group Limited#§ 7% ° Mankar
Assets Limited M Hollyfield Group Limited
# AITC Investment Holdings Limited 2 &
EHE QA - MITC Investment Holdings
Limted BEERCXEEBERAF 22
EMBAR - EHELCEEERERAA
WRABRBLZZERR -

2. EMELLTARELIEB WEA
RIS L3 5 2 R 1) o B R

w
o

LSS RER RIS T B 2 M -
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NCIR o £

5. % % & B 8 #E RITC Investment
Holdings Limited# 5 < # & ©
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The Company also entered into a subscription agreement and a
supplemental agreement with ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC") on
24 August 2007 and 10 September 2007 respectively pursuant to
which ITC agreed to subscribe or procure its nominees to subscribe
for such number of shares which shall be the same as the number of
Placing Shares to be placed under the placing agreement but not more
than 499,000,000 shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at the price of
HK$0.29 per Subscription Share.

ITC is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the issue of Subscription Shares to ITC under the subscription

agreement constituted a connected transaction for the Company.

The connected transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the special general
meeting held on 5 October 2007.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers during the year were less than 30% of the Group's total

turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributes to the Group’s five largest suppliers

during the year were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

Annual Report 2007-2008%%% 38

KRB DR _EELFNA -+
BERZZZT+tFNA+H HEEFLGE
EEERAR([EHELEDILRE
mEkAETGE Bt EECERE
REBRRERMO29B TRESREL
REAREBHEEENBRIBLES B &
BTRECEERMNEE  ETHEB
499,000,000 %l 1 ([ REEAR A ) ©

BHELCERAABMNZERRR - At
REBEBLETRBARAFBNEEAL - &
o RERBHHEBRTRBRD TEE
EEBRARANBERS -

ARTBLREA-_FELF+ARA
BETHRIFHIAE EUBE TR BB
BiERS -

TEREFRHEED

FR ARBRARSZREEBHRE

THEANEERLEEXTE30% -

FR - AEBRARER 2@RBEAR
HTIBERNEEEREREI0% -



39 Hanny Holdings Limited $#3E&E@ERAF

Report’of the Directors
EEERE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

During the year ended 31 March 2008, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the
Company’s listed shares.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of the significant post balance sheet events are set out in note
58 to the consolidated financial statements.

Group Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 202 and
203.

Corporate Governance
Information on Corporate Governance Practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 18
to 29.
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Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% BLED R &

Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE MEMBERS OF HANNY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanny
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 201, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2008 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE R

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

NOTES
fit iF

Revenue WA 7
Continuing operations ﬁ#ﬁ@“%ﬁ
Revenue from sale of other asset HEHMEERA
Revenue from sale of computer HESIHEBEERRA

related products
Revenue from water supply business HEK E U
Revenue from sand mining business K EBKA
Cost of sales &R
Other income H g A 9
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERT
Administrative expenses THHAX
Finance costs BB 10
Change in fair value of conversion ARBRRBRAGRE

options embedded in convertible Z EE

notess # 2% 27
Change in fair value of conversion B —EEE QA2

options embedded in convertible A RBRER 6

note receivable from an associate ZRFEES 28
Change in fair value of convertible EERRFEIIEILEA

notes designated at fair value BRZAULBRER

through profit or loss ZRFEES 34
Gain on convertible notes converted 7] X 38 Z % i i A 1E

into investments held for trading BEXRE 2R 34
Net gain on investments held for BFEEEREZWEFE

trading
Change in fair value of investment BEMEZNFEE

properties
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries Ui & Fft B A B4 & 47
Discount on acquisition of HERE AR ERTE

additional interest in subsidiaries
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREER
Reversal of impairment loss MESFZAHEBERD

(impairment loss) on club CREE®E)

debentures
Loss on remeasurement to fair value less #5{E 5 & 2 H & 41 B

cost to sell in respect of disposal BN ERRTER

group held for sale HEKAR 2 B8 11
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A it $4 & 1R & FE K 1B

investments 24
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERERFR

investments
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries TEMB AR Z Wz 49
(Loss) gain on disposal and dilution/ HER#EE HE—RHEE

disposal of interest in an associate YN 7@%?& (E#E) ke 23
Share of results of associates iR RN
Discount on acquisition of EE-REEE AR

additional interest in an associate BT E 23

2008
22 \F
HK$'000
FBT

627,588

130,000

5,862

18,107
(279,418)

171,511
(4)
(94,821)
(155,939)

(38,327)

11,359

16,301
434,221
39,398

103,253

(90,171)
(72,383)

(166)
12,507

(268,525)
95,959

148,309

2007
—ETLEF
HK$'000
FAET
(restated)
(E5)

358,573

7,839

1,158
(14,353)
161,567

(22)
(92,818)
(83,384)

(187,131)

(18,396)

16,816

60,323

2,642
132,462

(45,751)

1,344

5,097
35,356




NOTES
fit iF
Profit (loss) before income tax BRETEE RIS A (B18)
Income tax expense TR E 12
Profit (loss) for the year from REERABELEERZ
continuing operations w A (EE)
Discontinued operations FEEEHR
Profit for the year from AEEREHFFEEHZ
discontinued operations il 13
Profit for the year KEFE & A 14
Attributable to: fE15 -
Equity holders of the parent NERERA A
Minority interests PEHRREER
Distributions 7K 16
Earnings (loss) per share SRAF (FE)
From continuing and RERBELER
discontinued operations ERBEEK 17
— Basic —EX
— Diluted —#E
From continuing operations REFBELEER
— Basic —EX
— Diluted —#E

Annual Report 2007-2008%3% 44

2008
—geNE
HK$'000
FB

192,749
(144,763)

47,986

47,986
129,110
(81,124)

47,986

58,430

HK2.94 cents i 1l
HK2.94 cents % 1l

HK2.94 cents & 1
HK2.94 cents % 1l

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FET
(restated)
(E75)

(23,967)
(32,457)

(56,424)

1,517,926

1,461,502

527,080
934,422

1,461,502

27,655

HK16.10 cents)& 1l
HK12.63 cents & 1l

HK(3.39) cents i il
HK(3.39) cents i il
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31 March2008 R -_ZEZENF=H=+—H

NOTES
k=3

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - RS KRR 18
Investment properties wEYE 19
Prepaid lease payments FEREER R 20
Goodwill S 21
Intangible assets BEEAE 22
Interests in associates B2 N A HE 2 23
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 24
Payments for acquisition of KERAKRE 2

long-term investments B 25
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries 4 8% Ff & A &) Fr it 2 & & 26
Conversion options embedded in AHBMEREZ

convertible notes HE 27
Convertible note receivable from e —EHE R a2

an associate CIBRE: 28
Conversion options embedded in JEW — A E AR 2T

convertible note receivable from an RMmERE 2

associate W 28
Deposit for acquisition of interests in W B ) 5 R a1 PR

properties ZiEE 29
Club debentures ZHMES
Deferred tax assets BETIBEE 46
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepaid lease payments T HEEN K 20
Inventories, at cost FE (EKA)
Properties held for sales FIEHEME
Other asset EmEE 30
Trade and other receivables and B 5 & CH e W R IE K&

prepayments T ;IB 31
Investments held for trading BIEEEIRE 32
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHHEFEERSE

investments held for trading Fr i 2 % & 33
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 24
Conversion options embedded in AHBMERZ Lk

convertible notes 27
Convertible notes designated EBERAFEMNEILFA

at fair value through profit or loss BRz ] LBrER 34
Short-term loans receivable JEUE BRE X 35
Amounts due from related companies JE U B8 i~ B SR IE 36
Margin loans receivable JE W FF R & 3K 37
Loans to associates MTBEDRRIER 38
Tax recoverable AJ 3R [6] 71 18
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LIRS 39
Assets of disposal group classified SERBIEHELE

as held for sale AR EE .

2008
—BBN\F
HK$°000
FB T

224,264
250,000
8,120
26,524
102,530
386,335
1,404,127

3,725
1,478

2,414,326

550
623
211,435

67,235
531,668

29,832
4,127

98,753
104,612
94

380,931
1,836
490,489

1,922,185

857,474

2,779,659

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FB T

133,789
146,000

875,614
995,696

145,000
50,000

52,070

241,450

44,642

58,830
3,500
1,464

2,748,055

107
229,288

389,173
598,748

73,289

122,549
308,549
2,813
372,072
1,438
161,626

2,259,652

2,259,652



NOTES
K aF
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables and accrual B NEMEMAFER
et E A 40

Margin loans payable JE& 1 FF R B K 37
Amounts due to related companies JENRBE R R 2 A 36
Amount due to ultimate holding JE S SR A IR R A) 2 BB

company 41
Tax payable J& 1 B 18
Borrowings — due within one year B — —F AN H 42
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 43
Liabilities of disposal group classified DHEAEEEE

as held for sale HEAREE 11
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B EAERABEE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EE
Share capital N 44
Share premium and reserves B 1 5 (B & 7 1
Equity attributable to equity holders RARIRERFE AERN

of the Company [N
Minority interests LSRR ER
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES IRBEE
Borrowings — due after one year B ——FE&EH 42
Convertible loan notes A HBREREE 45
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEAE 46

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 201 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 July

2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

BREIRE L
CHAIRMAN
Eyi

2008

= 1IN
HK$°000
T

109,323

167,714

70,830
85,813
32,754
466,434
116,862
583,296
2,196,363
4,610,689

50,128
3,038,882

3,089,010
678,591
3,767,601
130,312
627,776
85,000

843,088

4,610,689

Annual Report 2007-2008%% 46

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FAT

90,723
6,377
162,817
169,757
63,977
514,650
21,006

1,029,307

1,029,307
1,230,345
3,978,400

2,528
2,489,962

2,492,490
706,622
3,199,112
83,700
659,341
36,247
779,288

3,978,400

Exe R _EENFL-A-T+NB#)t
HERBRETREBREEE201EZEA

MWK WAHNATALTRRESE

Dr. Yap, Allan

Yap, Allanf& £
MANAGING DIRECTOR

EFREHE



47 Hanny Holdings Limited $38&@EHRA =

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERREZFFR

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #

TENF=ZA=1—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KRAREREARL
Currency Investment
Share C | lati luati Revaluation Retained Minority Total
capital surplus reserve reserves reserve profits Total interest equity
B RE HERR
(% R4BE  iREG EftfifE EfifiE  REEA El BE  RARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TERL TER TERT TAL T T T TER
(note )
At 1 April 2006 RZZT ERA-A 2372 1,448,202 26,600 (32,498) - 149,504 1,868,889 350434 2,219323
Currency realignments SRR - - 14,795 - - - 14,795 (1,924) 12871
Share of reserves of associates EEBERAEE - - 4,408 - - - 7,148 - 7,148
Revaluation increase on acquisition of 3% — B 4 10 R 26 B
additional interest in an associate EfhE] — — — — 27,828 - 27,828 - 27828
Fairvalue change in available-for-sale AT HERE 7 A FE
nvestments 25 - - - (47,231) - - (47,31) - (47.231)
Net income (expense) recognized BERRRAERERL
directly in equity WA () 58 - - 19,203 (47,31) 27,828 - 2,540 (1,924) 616
Impairment loss on avalable-for-sale AT HERE 2 FE
investments BR - - — 13,120 - - 13,120 - 13,120
Realized on disposal of subsidiaries 2 - - (5,443) - - - (5,443) (19,795) (25,238)
Realized on disposal of associates YNGlE3 - - (450) - - - (2,519 - (2,519)
Profit for the year MJ‘M\J - - - — - 527,080 527,080 934,422 1,461,502
Total recognized income and expense A FEEBBUAR
for the year kgt - — 13310 (34,111) 27,828 527,080 534,778 912,703 1,447,481
Issue of shares for acquisition of Ll ok
subsidiaries (note 47(ij) in 8z 47i) 9 — — — — — 38733 - 38,733
Issue of shares upon scrip dividend KRR EETRN 24 - - - - - 8,277 - 8,217
Issue of shares upon exercise of ﬂfiﬂiix?’éﬂ%?‘ﬂ
share options 3 - - - — — 9,714 - 9714
Recognition of equity components of 32 ” 'J;l # ém“ﬁz
convertible loan notes BREAERY - - - — - - 59,552 - 59,552
Distributions Ak - - - — — (27,655) (27,655) - (27,655)
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEK B A RIBE £ — - - — — — — 331416 331416
Dividend paid to minority shareholders [t & 2 A D B &
of subsidiaries RRE - - - - - - - (887,931) (887,931)
Issue of shares upon conversion of HEANBENEE
convertible loan notes BT — - - — - — 202 — 202
At 31 March 2007
2,528 1,448,202 39,910 5 (66,609) 27,828 648929 2,492,490 706,622 3,199,112
Currency realignment SEEE - - 41,097 — - - 41,097 15,389 56,486
Share of reserves of associates EEBERAGE - - 1312 - - - 11312 - 11312
Fair value change in available-forsale A/ HEREZ AFE
investments k4] — - - (9,688) — — (9,688) - (9,688)
Net income (expense) recognized ERRRAER EEZ
directly in equity WA (xH)F - - 52,409 (9,688) - - 02m 15,389 58,110
Realized on disposal of HET ‘pﬂiﬁ%fx é 5
available-for-sale investment 25 — — — (166) — — (166) - (166)
Profit (loss) for the year REEET (B8) — — — — — 129,110 129,110 (81,124) 47986
Total recognized income and expense ~ AEFEHRUAR
for the year Hxas - - 52,409 (9,854) - 129,110 171,665 (65,735) 105,930
Issue of bonus shares by capitalization 7% EE B AL &4
of share premium account K 36,749 - - - — — — - -
Issue of shares upon scrip dividend AR B %17 7 n - - - — — 1,963 - 1,963
Placement of shares BERR 5,445 - - - - - 293,190 — 293,190
Issue of shares BIRH 4,99 - - - - — 44710 — 10
Transaction cost related toissue and £ {7 REERHIAE 2
placement of shares RHRA - - - - - - (10,566) - (10,566)
Distributions Ak - - - - - (58,430) (58,430) - (58,430)
Acquisition of additional interestsin 4 S B R B HEENE
subsidiaries from minority interests AAER — — — — — — — (11,560) (11,560)
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ MEEK B R EIEE — — — — — — — 49,264 49,264
Issue of share upon conversion of HATRBERER
convertible loan notes ) 345 - - - - - 53,988 - 53,988
At 31 March 2008 RZZTNE
ZA=t+-R 50,128 1,448,202 92319 5 (76,463) 27,828 719,609 3,089,010 678,591 3,767,601




Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Company at the respective balance sheet
date represented:

(i) the credit arising from the transfer of the share premium account
of the Company as at 20 February 1998 and 19 February 2003 to
the contributed surplus account of the Company;

(i) the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the
shares of the Company in 1999 and 2003; and

(iii)  a balance as reduced by amounts transferred to the deficit account
to eliminate the deficit of the Group as at 31 January 2000, 31
January 2001, 20 March 2003 and 31 March 2005.

(ii)

(iii)
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49 Hanny Holdings Limited $3@&E@MARLD A

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

2008 2007
—zens [EECERT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000
K&t FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXER
Profit for the year FEmF 47,986 1,461,502
Income tax expense from b i"s” EET
continuing operations SHE X 12 144,763 32,457
Income tax credit from 3E Té’f ii-%’ HEBEEN
discontinued operations E1igee) 12 (26,235)
192,749 1,467,724
Adjustments for: HE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries AR EEBZ
included in profit for the year from FERMAZHE
discontinued operations BB A Ak = 13 — (1,526,346)
Interest income B U A (153,720) (116,202)
Finance costs B 7% & A 155,939 84,051
Change in fair value of conversion AHBRERZ
options embedded in H#wwgEz R TVE

convertible notes #H) 38,327 187,131
Change in fair value of conversion R —EEE R Tz

options embedded in AR BRERE

convertible note receivable 2R NTE

from an associate b= (11,359) 18,396
Change in fair value of convertible EEZRAFEINERILE A

Bz A BRI

notes designated at fair value

through profit or loss AN ) (16,301) (16,816)
Gain on convertible notes converted ARBMERLBRBRE

into investment held for trading EERE 2Wla (434,221) —
Net gain on investments held for trading RHEEEREWRRFHE (39,398) (60,323)
Change in fair value of investment KEWMEZATE

properties b= ([ EWLY)) (2,642)
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR 2 — (132,462)
Discount on acquisition of 1 RE B B A A S AT AR

additional interests in subsidiaries
Discount on acquisition of

(5.491) —
1R RS — R B 2 R A

additional interests in associates R ITE (148,309) —
Loss on remeasurement to fair value FEHE 2 HE A5

less cost to sell in respect of EFFFERRTFER

disposal group held for sale HEXAR ZEE 90,171 —
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZRBERE — 6,621
(Reversal of impairment loss) EES (REEIE

impairment loss on club debentures BE),/REERE (225) 95
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERE

investments

B (B & 18

72,383




NOTES
ff

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale

investments

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss (gain) on disposal and dilution/
disposal of interest in an associate
Share of results of associates
Write-off of loans to associates
Allowance for other receivables
Allowance for margin loans receivable
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Release of prepaid lease payment
Reversal of allowance for trade

receivables
Reversal of allowance for
loans receivables

Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

il
I
G
d=
it
X5
bt
O
i}

EEEE EE
o =
]
I 55
| BX

s R R 2

m 31 2 5 B i 5

&
< v e TR
3 i D ME S EE N
o

= H o7 2 I IR

EW_TF}:
Bini el FEANG

=37

< 4N 7

& Y51 R B 3K

B E

ME - KRk
RiBITE

BAAEE  FREE

B 5 R RIA B R

& W B SR [B] B S

HEME - #aE R
iz s

L

D

ol

(=
1

/N

= M0
~—

F S5 In
B

\:
A\
N
el

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in trade and

other receivables and prepayments
Decrease (increase) in investments held

for trading

Increase in deposits paid for acquisition
of investments held for trading

Decrease in other assets

Increase in properties held for sale
Increase in convertible notes designated
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in margin loan receivables
Increase (decrease) in trade and

other payables and accruals
(Decrease) increase in margin loan payables

Decrease in bills payable

REBERE

& (38 m) b
Z5NRE M RKRER
8 1+ 3 (48 hn) /A
HEEEREMD
(% hn)
WHEHIFEERE
SERE =Pl

H & E R A
e & WL M
EER A FEYER
Wit Az 2

] 3 2 48 38 0
W FF R & FOm
ZH5REMENRER
FEETE A GR L)
ERNHFREZRORD)
1# 0
JE 1~ 22 8 3

Cash from (used in) operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

REEBEL S
(M) 2R e
XN EEFEH

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REXBEL
(BR) 2R FH

2008

—ZEENEF

HK$°000
THET

166
(12,507)

268,525
(95,959)

7,009
1,435
2,600

35,467
392

(88)
(4,472)

(27)

(160,167)
(€1

(115,382)

733,774

229,288
(142,000)

1,378
405,628
(6,377)

945,784
(1,038)

944,746
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2007
—EELF
HK$'000
F& T

(79,164)
24,576

62,333
(116,428)

(73,289)

(100,000)
15,867

(283,214)
6,224
(422)

(543,517)
(852)

(544,369)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

2008
—EENEF
NOTES HK$‘000
Kt &t THET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Repayment of short-term loan receivables (& i& %2 Hi f& WL & X 603,581
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEBRITFERRD —
Interest received W=z F 8 76,944
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and HEMB AR (kR EE
cash equivalent disposed of) ZHRERFCERE) 49 16,283
Repayment of consideration receivable EERATFELENES

for disposal of subsidiaries in
previous years
Proceeds from disposal of property,

DAz EWAE
HEWE - HE R

295,618

plant and equipment REFTIS IR 457
Advance of short-term loan receivables FEWBEERE B8 (432,580)

Acquisition of additional interests
in associates
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

BB E N EER

BEDE  HELRE

(210,720)
(590)

Additions to investment properties REREME (747)
Acquisition of available-for-sale WHEAHEERE

investments (630,901)
Proceeds from disposal of available HEMJHESRE

for sale investments FT 1S k1A 22,530

Proceeds from disposal and dilution/disposal

of interests in an associate

HERESHE

T AN

B 28 N B HE 25 AT 1S 3R

287,529

Refunds for deposits paid for REWRBERERE

acquisition of long-term investments Eftike 85,000
Refund of deposit paid for acquisition REBWENEB A A

of subsidiaries Eftike 50,000

Deposits paid for acquisition of
long-term investments

WEERHREHZ RS

Deposits paid for acquisitions WEMB AR Hzike

of subsidiaries —
Advance to associates B ENCIE- TN (433,319)
Repayment from associates BanrEE EYEW[1]:]
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and U B& [t /B A &) (F0BR Uk BE >~

cash equivalents acquired) RekReEHE) 47 (102,743)
Acquisition of assets through acquisition FERUWE—HMHEAR

of a subsidiary (net of cash and W& E (NS

cash equivalents acquired) ZHRehkBeERE) 48 420
Purchase of convertible notes BAR LIBREE (258,275)
Advance to related companies M E RN F AR (94)

Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries

BB AR

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REXZ (BR)EEZ

REF8

(6,069)

(263,968)

2007
—EBEELF
HK$'000
FET

499,512
19,966
55,680

1,993,810

36,224
(443,487)

(3,435)
(10,358)

(88,361)

26,194

155,175

(110,000)
(50,000)
(485,031)
279,651
68,224

(289,000)

1,654,764
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2008 2007

S5 N i

NOTES HK$'000 HK$°000
it TR FHT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings raised

Proceeds from issue and placement
of shares

Expenses incurred on issue and
placement of shares

Repayments to related companies

Advance from ultimate holding company

BMEXK
18 18 3%

1T MECERD

P15 IR

BITMEERNELEZRAX

BEBERNFK

RARTE HXAT%&/TA

Dividends paid to minority shareholders B D EAR R R
Repayments of borrowings BEEER
Repayments of obligations under EEREMEYFAE
finance leases
Dividends paid B E
Interest paid 2R F 8
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BE %K SR RS EH

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

ReRkRESHEEM

EQUIVALENTS FE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUzHERBESEH
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXge o828
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FR2EESERRESZHE
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH BeRBRELEELEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A

Bank balances and cash BITEFAE S

Bank overdrafts RITHE X

Bank balances and cash classified DEABBEHEEEEZ

as assets held for sale

ﬁETTI\ET&ﬁ%

388,000

437,900

(10,566)
(164,860)

(810,225)

(56,467)
(158,607)

(374,825)

305,953

140,620

458,050

490,489
(32,754)

315

458,050

865,065

9,714

(228,555)
757
(887,931)
(656,221)
(130)

(19,378)
(52,105)

(968,784)

141,611

(657)

(334)

140,620

161,626
(21,006)

140,620
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ=ZLZEN\F=A=+—HIFE

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September
1991 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the Company
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and the address of the principal place of business of the Company
is Unit 3101, 31st Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt
Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2007 were restated as a result of change in presentation
of sale proceeds and related cost of sales for sales of investments
held for trading to reflect the nature of sales of financial assets in
a more appropriate manner, details for these are set out in note
60.

—REIE

AR —hAh—FNWA=B%EA
REBBARE-NAN—FRADA
(i) N e BER AR AT
M - ERO R EBBE RSN
BRAR([BARM]) £/ XA
7] & it #% = 5E 2 #b 4k & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda * MA AR FE &%
ME MU BEBPIRERBI2H
EEEITHOIIEII0NE -

RAaMBBRIABITEY
MEBRRABZNEEE -

78 7T

HRHERFEEEREZHERS
RAREEALEKRER 22528 -
BB E_ZTTELF=A=1+—~H
LEERAVBRREES  EMR
REETARRMEEEZ HEMN
B BRFBERHEe0 -



Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 April 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) = Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment
HK(IFRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and
Treasury Share Transactions

Except for the changes in disclosures as set out below, the
adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior years
have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information
presented in prior year under the requirement of HKAS 32 has
been removed and the relevant comparative information based
on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has

been presented for the first time in the current year.

2.
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Hanny Holdings Limited $#&%E@ARA =]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ=ZLZEN\F=A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) —Int 12

HK(FRIC) —Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Presentation of Financial Statement'
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation'

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'
Business Combinations’

Operating Segments'

Service Concession Arrangements®

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

ERAMEREERT 2&B

s HREER
(4

wEEA )

/R = A

AEEAEIZATEA T

(
)

[ & BT

KGR E]

[
AR ERZFET RARERTER - &

ETS K

BRI ERE 1R
(BFTXK)

BRI REAFE 23R
(EFTXK)

BE G EAE IR
(BFTK)

BRI ERERR
K15 (BRTA)

BAMBREER|
F2HR(BITA)
B RREER
F3% (B K)
RAMBREER
2858
R (ARTHEHRS
ZEBZEY)
-REBENR
B4 (BT RS
ZEBLEY)
-BREZE 13N
R (ARTHEHRS
ZEBLZEY)

-REBEUR

MHRRZ 2T
fEEmRA

4 RMER

B RK?
MHEFBTAR
BRELZ
B
FEREREHE

EBAH

s
mEnE

RiEE2ERH

BA G ER
F19H-RE
FZEEZ
RE REES
REMHEERZ
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ZEEHEENR
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ZEEHRE AR
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ZFEHREEXR
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ZEEHEENR



Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” may
affect the accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27
(Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s

“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”

ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control, which will be accounted for as equity transactions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for the investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ=ZLZEN\F=A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

3.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combination

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree plus any
costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

When a business combination involves more than one exchange
transaction, each exchange transaction shall be treated
separately by the acquirer, using the cost of the transaction and
fair value information at the date of each exchange transaction
to determine the amount of any goodwill associated with
that transaction. Any adjustment to those fair values relating
to previously held interests of the Group is credited to the

revaluation reserve.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognized immediately in profit or

loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalized goodwill arising on acquisitions of net
assets and operations of another entity after 1 April 2001 but
before 1 January 2005, the Group has discontinued amortization
from 1 April 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is indication that
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be

impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Capitalized goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is

presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005
(Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment

loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalized is included in the

determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

Any excess of the consideration paid over the carrying amount of
net assets attributable to the interests in subsidiaries acquired are
accounted for as goodwill. Any excess of the carrying amount of
net assets attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries
acquired over the consideration, after reassessment, is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified
as held for sale (in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations).
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the carrying amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized
as goodwill. From 1 January 2005 onwards, the Group has
discontinued amortization of goodwill and such goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is

assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the carrying amount of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of
acquisition is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for

impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the carrying amount of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately

in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005
(Continued)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of additional
interest in an associate represents the excess of the Group’s
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the
additional interest in the associate over the cost of acquisition,

after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’)
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Group discontinue the use of equity method of accounting
from the date that its interests in associates is classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are measured at the
lower of the interest in associates’ previous carrying amount and
the fair value less costs to sell.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Management service income is recognized when services are

provided.

Revenue from sales of other assets are recognized upon the
execution of a binding sale agreement.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properties let under operating leases, is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair value
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognized.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is derecognized.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the

term of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognized as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the
lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land
are accounted for as operating leases except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the

fair value model.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in equity,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognized

directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized as a
separate component of equity (the currency translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognized as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement in the period in which

they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

dealt with in equity.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Other asset

Other asset represents cost of acquisition of the exclusive
development right to a land development project in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and also the right to obtain the
land for the development. The amount are stated at the lower of

cost and net realizable value.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination/acquired

separately

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognized separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair

value at the acquisition date.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination/acquired

separately (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortization for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
direct cost to acquire the properties. Net realizable value is
calculated at the actual or estimated selling price less related

costs of marketing and selling.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments

that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may

be designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial

recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping

is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms parts of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated at fair

value through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured

at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized directly in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or

loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest

earned on the financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, convertible note receivable from an associate, short-
term loans receivable, loans to associates, amounts due from
related companies, margin loans receivables and bank balances)
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity
is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organization.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of one to two months, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss
is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognized.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognized directly in
equity. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its

liabilities.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity

instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included in

equity (convertible loan notes reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
loan notes is carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible loan notes reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance stated
in convertible loan notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible loan notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognized in

profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible loan notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortized over the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
margin loans payable, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to ultimate holding company, borrowings and bank
overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
resulting gain or loss from fair value changes is recognized in
profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contacts
and the host contacts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognized initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization

recognized in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized directly
in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is

recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

In relation to share options granted before 1 April 2005, the
Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2 with respect to share
options granted on or before 7 November 2002 and vested before
1 April 2005.

Share options granted on or before 7 November 2002 and vested
prior to 1 April 2005

Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognize
the financial effect of these share options until they were
exercised.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
will be recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
per share over the nominal value of the shares will be recorded
by the Company in the share premium account. Options which
lapsed or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZZ=ZLZEN\F=A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Impairment loss on short-term loans receivable and loans to
associates

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of short-term
loans receivable and loans to associates. Appropriate impairment
for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit and
loss when there is objective evidence that the amounts are not
recoverable.

In determining whether allowances for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aged status
and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognized
based on the estimation of the future cash flow expected to
receive and a suitable discounted rate in order to calculate the
present value. As at 31 March 2008, short-term loans receivable
and loans to associates are amounted to HK$126,239,000
(2007: HK$308,549,000) and HK$417,541,000 (2007:
HK$372,072,000) respectively.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on available-for-sale investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment
in relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investments in equity
securities, the Group takes into consideration of significant or
prolonged decline in the market prices below the respective costs.
As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of available-for-
sale investments is HK$1,443,521,000 (2007: HK$995,696,000).
The directors performed impairment assessment of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments and an impairment loss
of HK$72,383,000 were recognized in consolidated income
statements.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings and convertible loan notes which were
disclosed in notes 42 and 45 respectively, and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital

and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividend, new share issues, new borrowings raised and repayment

of borrowings.

2.
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6. Financial Instruments

6a. Categories of financial instruments

% TH

6a. T AEH

2008
—BENF
HK$000
T8

Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss

Investments held for trading
Convertible notes designated
as at fair value through profit or loss
Conversion options embedded in
convertible notes
Conversion options embedded in
convertible note receivable
from an associate

MBEE
F ARz

HKIFEERE

BERRNFEIERIL A

Bz A A BRER
A RBER R

e — BB = R A A]
RBER L

617,586

98,753

11,350

1,119

728,808

1,443,521

55,521
82,980
126,239
94
417,541
490,804

1,173,179

Available-for-sale financial assets of it 3% E B B E

Loan and receivables EXEREYE

Convertible note receivable from JiE U — & Bt & B Y
an associate A R ER

Trade and other receivables g 5 N E b e W F IR

Short-term loans receivable JE U 52 HR B 5Kk

Amounts due from related companies JE I FE 38 R Al FR I8

Margin loans receivable JE W FF R & 3K

Loans to associates BB ERNREK

Bank balances and cash RITEGF RS

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 3R # 84 X A< ZI BR B9

MKkAasE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M e 5RIE
Margin loans payable ERTFFRE K

Amounts due to related companies
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Borrowings

Bank overdrafts

Convertible loan notes

FE& 5t B3 3& R B 5R0R

J& A+ R 48 122 B B 5RIR
& 3K

RITEX
ARBERERE

186,200

167,714

216,125
32,754
627,776

1,230,569

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
THER

598,748
122,549

52,070

44,642
818,009

995,696

241,450
381,401
308,549

2,813
372,072
161,626

1,467,911

75,499
6,377
162,817
169,757
598,350
21,006
659,341

1,693,147



6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments were set out in
note 6(a) above and details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk management

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and the financial guarantees issued by the Group arising
from:

o the carrying amount of the respective recognized
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed
in note 51.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

6.

BB ITA

6b.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk management (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks and other financial institutions
with high-credit-ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.

In addition, the credit risk on corporate guarantee given to
third party is limited because the management will regularly
review the financial performance of the third party and

reconsider the continuance of the given guarantee regularly.

The Group has loans to associates amounting to
HK$417,541,000 as at 31 March 2008, which expose
the Group to the concentration of credit risk on two
counterparties. Other than that, the Group have no other

significant concentration of credit risk.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk primarily
relate to debt element of convertible notes (included
in available-for-sale investment), convertible loan
notes liabilities issued by the Company, convertible
notes designated at fair value through profit or loss,
conversion note receivable from an associate and
fixed-rate borrowing as set out in note 24, 45, 34, 28

and 42 respectively.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relate
to variable-rate short-term loans receivable, margin
loans receivable and payables, loans to associates,
bank balances, amount due to ultimate holding
company, borrowings, bank overdrafts and amounts
due to related companies as set out in note 35, 37,
38, 39, 41, 42, 43 and 36 respectively.

The Group maintains a mixture of variable rate and
fixed rate borrowings. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitor interest rate change exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate

change exposure should the need arise.

6.
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6b.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

o

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, the
sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative instruments at the balance
sheet date. For variable-rate short-term loans
receivable, loans to associates, bank balances,
borrowings, bank overdrafts and amounts due
to related companies, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the relevant asset
and liability outstanding at the balance sheet
date was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2008 would increase/decrease by HK$3,348,000
(2007: increase/decrease by HK$1,965,000).
The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates increased
during the year mainly due to increase in bank
balances and borrowings as well as decrease in
amount due to ultimate holding company and
short-term loans receivable.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. BBEITR#E)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. B EABREEBAFERERXK
(Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) TSR ()
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) ()  FIEER (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BMRRE DT (&

() If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/ (nny & F == 52 hn
lower and all other variable were held constant, 50 f& £ % - m AT
the Group’s: EHMEHERZTT

g AEEH
investment revaluation reserve would w"EEHGEH

decrease/increase by approximately
HK$8,735,000 (2007: HK$10,791,000),
as a result of the change in fair value of
the debt element of convertible notes
(included in available for sale investments);
and

profit for the year would decrease/increase
by HK$285,000 (2007: HK$814,000),
as a result of the change in fair value of
convertible notes designated at fair value

through profit or loss.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Price risk on listed securities under available for sale
investments and investments held for trading

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities included in
available-for-sale investments and investments held
for trading. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted in the
Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks of listed
securities included in available-for-sale investments
and investments held for trading at the reporting
date.

If the share prices of the respective equity investments
had been 5% higher/lower and all other variable were
held constant, the Group’s:

o profit for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$30,879,000 (2007: HK$29,937,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading; and

. investment revaluation reserves would
increase/decrease by HK$16,304,000 (2007:
HK$12,398,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale investments.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Price risk on conversion option embedded in
convertible notes/convertible notes designated at
fair value through profit or loss/conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable from an
associate

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
conversion option embedded in the convertible notes,
convertible notes designated at fair value through
profit or loss and conversion options embedded in
convertible note receivable from an associate at each
balance sheet date with changes in fair value to be
recognized in the consolidated income statement as
long as the convertible notes are outstanding. The fair
value adjustment will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in share
price and its volatility of the convertible notes issuers.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ifi)

Price risk on conversion option embedded in
convertible notes/convertible notes designated at
fair value through profit or loss/conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable from an
associate (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the change of share price
and its volatility of the convertible notes issuers at the
reporting date only.

If the share prices of those convertible notes issuers
had been 5% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would be increase/decrease by HK$1,883,000 (2007:
HK$9,343,000), as a result of changes in fair value of
conversion option embedded in the convertible notes,
convertible notes designated at fair value through
profit or loss and conversion options embedded in
convertible note receivable from an associate.

If the volatility of share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 5% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit for
the year would increase/decrease by HK$4,235,000
(2007: HK$4,208,000), as a result of changes in
fair value of conversion option embedded in the
convertible notes, convertible notes designated at fair
value through profit or loss and conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable from an
associate.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk on conversion option embedded in
convertible notes/convertible notes designated at
fair value through profit or loss/conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable from an
associate (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the
pricing model used in the fair value valuation of the
conversion option embedded in the convertible notes,
convertible notes designated at fair value through
profit or loss and conversion options embedded
in convertible note receivable from an associate
involves multiple variables and certain variables are
interdependent.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilization of the
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings as a source of liquidity. As
at balance sheet date, the Group has no available unutilized
bank loan facilities. Details of the borrowings are set out in
note 42.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

6.

% TR (#)

6b.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. MWK ITH (&
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. W EKREEBERKE
(Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk TEE R
Liquidity tables B E &K

Less than
Weighted 3 months Total Carrying
average oron 3 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate demand to 1year 1-5 years S5+years  cash flows 31.3.2008
SR KR R-BBENEF
mnig @A =Rz RERE =+-AH
TR = RERE -5 -Zif EEHL ag W EE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

2008 “EENE
Non-derivative financial FTEHBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREM
B3R 186,200 186,200 186,200
Amounts due to ERBENR
related companies B 167,714 - — - 167,714 167,714
Bank overdrafts RITEX 32,754 - - - 32,754 32,754
Borrowings RN 30,000 64,915 84,425 60,639 239,979 216,125
Convertible loan notes MRBRERZR - 14,134 734,967 - 749,101 627,776
416,668 79,049 819,392 60,639 1,375,748 1,230,569
Weighted Less than Total Carrying
average 3 months 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate  or on demand to 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years cash flows 31.3.2007
DR FAE R-ETLE
mig =A% =fifz Behe —A=+-AH
TR % REKE - —Enf RENE BE HREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT THEL TAT THET THET
2007 “EELE
Non-derivative financial FERKER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREM
Ef5E 75,499 - - - 75,499 75,499
Margin loans payable ERAREE 6,377 — — — 6,377 6,377
Amounts due to JEREELT
related companies A 162,817 — — - 162,817 162,817
Amount due to ultimate R RRER
holding company NGIER: 169,757 - — — 169,757 169,757
Bank overdrafts ROTEX 6.50 21,006 - - - 21,006 21,006
Borrowings EX 6.03 510,000 9,978 48,602 57,193 625,773 598,350
Convertible loan notes AHBEESZE 2 — 15,415 816,969 - 832,384 659,341

945,456 25393 865,571 57,193 1,893,613 1,693,147
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

6b.

6c.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases during the year ended 31 March 2007,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. No sensitivity
analysis was prepared since the directors of the Company
considers the amount involved is not significant.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices and rates from observable current market
transactions as input. For an option-based derivative,
the fair value is estimated using option pricing model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

6.

% TR (#)

6b.

6cC.

BHEEREREBERREBR
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Revenue

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, sales of other asset and services provided to outside
customers for the year, the net gain on investments held for
trading and gain on convertible notes converted into investments
held for trading. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year,

for both continuing and discontinued operations, is as follows:
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A

WAEFRETIREFLNEM
ETHIABEPHWEMEE AR
PR H IR H) B W N B MR
FE - REEERERSFERA
ABRERHBSBEEEREZNR
E°K’§IE@ZIK¢fH&A(“?E?—ir
BRENEFHEXL) oD

2008 2007
—EENEF ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

Continuing operations FEREER
Gain on convertible notes converted ARBRERLRBRE
into investments held for trading BERE 2 WE 434,221 —
Net gain on investments held for trading BFEEBERE ZWEFEE 39,398 60,323
Sales of computer related products HEBKABRE R — 7,839
Sales of other asset HEHMEE 130,000 —
Water supply business K ETR 5,862 —
Sand mining business HEK 18,107 1,158
627,588 69,320
Discontinued operations FIFEEK
Sales of computer related products LA FMemorex®J oh hE 3H
under “Memorex®” fi A8 B8 2 o 229,442
Sales of consumer electronic products HE ,ﬁ BEFE 59,811
289,253

627,588 358,573
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Segment Information

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group acquired
subsidiaries which are engaged in the business of water supply in
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and resulted in a new
business segment of water supply during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group disposed of
its subsidiaries and assets relating to the trading of computer
related product business under the trade name “Memorex®”
and trading of consumer electronic products, which resulted in
discontinuance of business segments of (i) trading of computer
related products under “Memorex®” and (i) trading of consumer

electronic products.
Business segments

The Group is currently organized into five business segments,
namely (i) trading of non-"Memorex®” computer related
products; (ii) trading of securities; (iii) property development and
trading; (iv) sand mining and (v) water supply.

BE-2T/\F=A=+—H1%F
B OAREERER T EARKFE

Z
(T B ]) 4 Bk S5 2 W B 2
S ARE R B MK LR
S o

HE-_ZTZT+E=F=+—HI*F
[Memorex®] 2 B EEEmE 5
XBRBEETERBESEB W
BArRIKREE <@ [Memorex®]
BEKERERESRG)VEBETE
B SEB BRI -

EZ P

AEBRSHABESDLEMEK -
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B2 (B FEE (IMMEEE
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Segment Information (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

below:

for the year ended 31 March 2008

HE_ZF3/1#

ZA=+-HIEE
GROSS PROCEEDS FEHERE
REVENUE 9

Gain on convertible notes converted into
investment held for trading

ARARERARERERE
a6

Net gain on investments held for trading BEBEREUATE

External sales NEBEE

SEGMENT RESULT EER

Interest income FEKA

Unallocated corporate income FARBERA

Unallocated corporate expenses FARLEZ L

Finance costs HEER

Change in fair value of conversion options RAREAAEL
embedded in convertible notes ATEEY

Change in fair value of conversion options embedded  EM — BB A NGz LAZE K
in convertible note receivable from an associate BEZDATEED

Change in fair value of convertible notes

designated at fair value through profit or loss
Change in fair value of investment properties
Discount on acquisition of additional

interests in subsidiaries
Reversal of impairment loss on club debentures
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal and dilution of

interest in an associate
Loss on remeasurement to fair value less cost

to sell in respect of disposal group held for sale
Share of results of associates
Discount on acquisition of additional

interests in an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

RERLTFEIIELHAREZ
UHARBIATERS

RENELLTEED

BRIENREGNE

EFEFRERRED
TRHEREZAERR
HETRHERE ZBA
HEWERR W
HEREE-HBELNES
ZER
BEREZHEMRIENHER
NTEHHERRZBR
EEBENRZE
HR-RBERREERE

BB B AT R
FERAY

AEREH

Trading of
non- “Memorex®"
computer related

products

3 [ Memorex®
EERBERES
HK$'000

TER

8.

Trading of
securities

EHEH
HK$'000
T

903,439

434221
39,398

473,619

477,123

N

LE

130,000

130,000

(102,172) 5070
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REEBZOBREMEIW

Continuing operations

Property
development
and trading

Sand mining

NEXRRER 5y ik
HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
TR

18,107 5,862

18,107 5,862

18,107 5,862

(3.469)

Water supply ~ Consolidated

A
WA

HK$'000
TR

1,057,408

434221
39,398
153,969
627,588
376,552
153,720
735
(106,151)
(155,939)
(38,327)
11,359

16,301
103,253

5,491
225
(72,383)
(166)
12,507
(268,525)

(90,171)
95,959

148,309

192,749
(144,763)

47,986
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. NEER (&)
Business segments (Continued) E¥BoHE(E)

Trading of

non- “Memorex®" Property

computer related Trading of  development
products securities  andtrading  Sand mining  Water supply  Consolidated
%[ Memorex®|
ERRBERES #5EE NXYRRER 5y ftx &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Assets and liabilities EERER
At 31 March 2008 RZEFNEZf=1-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 742,270 234,927 1,335,847
Interests in associates BANEES 1,037,364
Unallocated corporate assets ANELELE 2,820,774
Consolidated total assets GREEE 5,193,985
LIABILITIES B8R
Segment liabilities AEEE 134,704 137,408
Borrowings and bank overdrafts BERBETER 248,879
Unallocated corporate liabilities RORLEEE 1,040,097
Consolidated total liabilties GRAaRAR 1,426,384
Trading of
non- “Memorex®"
computer related Trading of
products securities  Sand mining  Water supply Corporate  Consolidated
[ Memorex®|
ENEBERES R5EE b3 ik ik &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiER TER TER TER TET
Other information EMEH
For the year ended 31 March 2008 HE-FE/\F=F=1-H
IHFE
Capital expenditure in respect of property, VERE-T-V'ET d
plant and equipment BERRR 108,959
Capital expenditure in respect of intangible assets BHEECEAEY 105,130
Release of prepaid lease payments AR RENTER 392
Amortization of intangible assets BREERH 2,600
Depreciation & 35,467
Allowance for other receivables HinEKFERE 7,009

Allowance for margin loans receivables BUAREDRE 1,435




Segment Information (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)
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Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEAEER FHEER
Trading of non- Trading of
“Memorex™” computer Trading of
computer Property related consumer
related Tradingof  development products under electronic
products securities andtrading  Sand mining Sub-total ~ “Memorex®” products Sub-total  Consolidated
*
[ Memorex® | [Memorex® |
BHIER NERE ERIER HEET
EmES BHEE REE 37 INaE ERESH EmES s Fe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FHL FHL FEL FEL FHL FEL FEL
For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-FF+%F
ZH=T-AItFE
GROSS PROCEEDS FeREsE 7,839 169,005 - 1,158 178,002 229,442 59,811 289,253 467,255
REVENUE LON
Net gain on investments held for trading ~ #FEBRENEFHE — 60,323 — — 60,323 — — — 60,323
External sales IhEpEE 7,839 - - 1,158 8,997 229,442 59,811 289,253 298,250
7,839 60,323 - 1,158 69,320 229,442 59,811 289,253 358,573
SEGMENT RESULT FEEE (2,494 16,389 — (11,224) 2,671 (35,225) 1,170 (34,055) (31,384)
Interest income FlElA 116,135 67 116,202
Unallocated corporate income KABBEMA 16,482 - 16,482
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBECEX L (11,689) — (11,689)
Finance costs HBER (83,384) (667) (84,051)
Change in fair value of conversion URREBRREL
options embedded in convertible notes ATEEY (187,131) — (187,131)
Change i fair value of conversion ER-HBERRZ
options embedded in convertible RARRRAEL
note receivable from an associate NEEEY (18,39) — (18,396)
Changein fair value of convertible BERATEIIBIHABRL
notes designated at fair value RBRERZ
through profit or loss ATEEY 16,816 - 16,816
Change in fair value of RENEZNTEEY
investment properties 2,642 - 2,642
Discount on acquisition of subsidiaries WERBLRTE 132,462 — 132,462
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZRERR (6,621) - (6,621)
Impairment loss on THEEREZ
available-for-sale investments HERE (45,751) - 45,751)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 N 1,344 — 1,344
Gain on disposal of associates HEBENA M 5,097 — 5,097
Share of results of associates EEBENRAEE 35,356 — 35,35
Loss before income tax BERAEBR (23,967) (34,655) (58,622)
Income tax (expense) credit ER (AR E% (32457) 26,235 (6,222)
Gain on disposal of Disposed Business HERTEEH 2 Wi — 1,526,346 1,526,346
(Loss) profit for the year REE(BB)ET (56,424) 1517,926 1,461,502
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TENF=AS+—AUEE

B . yaNy b RN =
8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. NEEHR (&)
Business segments (Continued) EBDE(E)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BEEEEH FEHEEH
Trading Trading of
of non- computer
"Memorex”" related Trading of
computer Property products consumer
related Trading of  development under electronic
products securies  andtrading  Sand mining ~ “Memorex®" products  Consolidated
*
[ Memorex” | [ Memorex” |
SHiEE NEER EkiEE  HBET
Eng EH5ER REE "y  ERZs  EnES Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAT TAT TAR TAET TAR TAR
Assets and fiabilities BEREE
At 31 March 2007 RZFE+5=A=+-A
ASSETS §E
Segment assets PEEE 1,101 724,110 229,288 128,730 - — 1,083,229
Interests in associates BENRER 875,614
Unallocated corporate assets ROBRCEEE 3,048,864
Consolidated total assets BARBEE 5,007,707
LIABILITIES &&
Seqment labilities PEEE 9,220 6,377 - 1543 - - 17,140
Borrowings and bank overdrafts BERRTEX 619,356
Unallocated corporate liabilties APECERRE 1,172,099
Consolidated total liabilities melaR 1,808,595
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREREH FREES
Trading Trading of
of non- computer
“Memorex™" related Trading of
computer Property pdeUCIS consumer
related Tradingof  development under electronic
products securities andtrading  Sand mining Corporate Sub-total ~ “Memorex™ products Sub-total ~ Consolidated
E3
['Memorex® | [ Memorex® |
ZliEE NEERE THAE  KEET
EREH  BAERE REE e i Nt ERBZ ERES Nt &8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHL FHL FHL FHL FHL FAL FAL FEL FiT Fin
Other information EMEH
For the year ended 31 March 2007 HEZFStf
ZAZF-HILEE
Capital expenditure in respect of property, NE BERREZELEY
plant and equipment - - - 134,684 4,004 138,688 — — — 138,688
Depreciation ik} - - - 10215 2,149 12,364 1,280 - 1,280 13,644
Allowance for other receivables EHENFERE - - - - - — 11877 - 1,877 1,877
Write-off of loans to associates HELTHENFE - - - - 1331 1331 — — — 1331
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. ) HE W e

Segment Information (Continued) 8. DEEHR (&)

Geographical segments 15 5 4R

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue TREHRWETE (FwEm
by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/ R 2 IREH) DA S BIKA
services: DT

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$‘000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Continuing operations: B EER
PRC (including Hong Kong) RE(BERHE) 627,588 61,481
North America it = — 7,301
Others Hth — 538
627,588 69,320

Discontinued operations: JERFBEE

North America IS 258,170
Europe B 28,882
Others HAih 2,201
289,253

627,588 358,573
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8. Segment Information (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets (excluding the amount of goodwill), and additions to
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, analyzed by

the geographical area in which the assets are located:

TENF=AS+—AUEE

8. % & (&
o3 o 58 ()

PTHREEERBE(MEEEBER
) mEmE - MEMREBEARET
BEANERZFEEMRHIE R
DEZOMWME

Carrying amount

of segment assets

PHEEZKREE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FEBT
Hong Kong BB 884,270 725,211
PRC s 451,577 358,018
1,335,847 1,083,229

Additions to property,

plant and equipment and

intangible assets
ME - BERKRBUR
BREERE
2008
—BENF
HK$000
FH

590
213,499

214,089

2007
—EERLF
HK$'000
FHET

4,004
134,684

138,688
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9. OtherIncome 9. Hfzlg A
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BRSERY FBEEY "R

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF Embiidc —TT/\F EEkESLcEN —TE/\F Eeklldc
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER THBL TR TR TR TBL

Interest income on loans and ERRERREL
receivables MEBA
~Interest on bank deposits -RAOGEFFE
- Interest on convertible note -EY—EEEAE
receivable from an associate RBEE
ME 10,693 3334 10,693 3,334
~ Interest on loans receivable -EUREZF A 35,546 28,857 35,546 28,857
~ Interest on loans to associates - E R E
EIAE 26,479 13,456 26,479 13,456
~ Interest on other receivables - EtERFHEFS 3,627 — 3,627 -
80,027 80,027
Interest income on HEEREL
available-for-sale investment FIERA 65,882 65,882
Interest income on convertible EEREATEFEL
notes designated at fair value FABHZULE
through profit or loss SERZHBHA
Exchange gain B 5 W e
Dividend income REWA
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment F M 27 2
Rental income HEUA 529 529
Management fee income ERERA 3,702 3,702
Others it 2,307 2,307

171,51 161,567 171,511 169,392
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10. Finance Costs

11.

Continuing operations

BEEYER

2008
—EENE
HK$'000
TER

Interest on borrowings wholly BREFATHERL
repayable within five years: EERE
-Bank borrowings and overdrafts  —fR{TEERE L 2,082
— Other borrowings -HitfEE 110,657
~ Finance leases -BERY -
Interest on bank borrowings not BEARNRENEHEE
wholly repayable within five years L RITEERE 5,422
Interest on convertible loan notes A} LAEREE 2 FI8 37,778

155,939

FENF=ZH=4—

HIEFE

MBEH

Consolidated
=4

Discontinued operations
FREES

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
S —T2\F EmERSL —Z2T)\F Emkriaa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TAT TRR TAT

2,082
110,657

5,422
37,778

155,939

Loss on Remeasurement to Fair Value N BEHEHEZLEAHRNEFH
Less Cost to Sell in Respect of Disposal STEARFEREERAE
Group Held for Sale/Disposal Group ZER /SEEEZEHE
Held for Sale 4 7

(i) On 25 March 2008, the Company entered into a conditional () RZZTEENF=-A=+HA "

sale and purchase agreement with Hugo Field Limited,
an independent third party, to dispose of 29.2% interest
in China Enterprises Limited (“CEL", a 55.2% owned
subsidiary of the Company), at a cash consideration of
HK$152,418,000.

The group of assets and liabilities of CEL constitute a
disposal group which is classified as held for sale as at
31 March 2008. CEL will cease to be a subsidiary and will
be accounted for as an associate of the Group under equity
method of accounting upon completion of the disposal.
The disposal of 29.2% interest in CEL was completed on
8 May 2008.

N QA B T E = FHugo
Field Limited 3] 32 & &1+ B & #
& U2 (8 152,418,000
# Jt H % China Enterprises
Limited([CEL] * " A R #E A
55.2% 2 Ml & A 7] )29.2%##

o

Bk

CELzEERBEHAGHBK L
E4l5 - %_EEJKE:H
ST HREABEHEE -
& K & CEL;HTEEBH
Bror TeEREBEEZREE
ARSI BAEE 2B E QT -
HECELZ292% B N =
EENFRANBEK -



11. Loss on Remeasurement to Fair Value
Less Cost to Sell in Respect of Disposal
Group Held for Sale/Disposal Group
Held for Sale (Continued)

(ii)

The directors of the Company committed a plan to dispose
of its 12.82% interest in Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited (“Wing On") (of which 1.22% interest and 11.6%
interest in Wing On were held by CEL and certain wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company respectively) during
the year ended 31 March 2008. Accordingly, the entire
interests in Wing On were classified as assets held for sale
at 31 March 2008. On 7 April 2008, the Group disposed
of the following assets to CEL (i) certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries which holds investments held for trading
and (i) the 11.6% interest in Wing On, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$30,000,000. The 11.6% interest in
Wing On together with the 1.22% interest in Wing On held
by CEL formed part of the net assets of CEL to be disposed
of on 8 May 2008.

11.
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BFEHEEZLEAB EFH
STEAAFEBEERA
ZEE/FEEEZHE
#HEBl (&)

(i) ARBESFEREEE_ZTZTNF
A=+ BLEFEEEL
EHNKLRE(ZER) BR
RA([KE]) (KEZ21.22%
K116%# &= o 5l BCELK
RAARETEZENB QA #F
) 21282% % %= 2 & &l o
B Kz 2HEZRZ
TENF=-A=+—HHBE
BREBEHEEE R_ZF
NEMA+EH - KEBEMCEL
HETIEE :: VHERHIEE
BEREZETZ2EMB A A
R (i)ok & 2 11.6%4E 25 - 484K
{& /30,000,000 JT > KEL Z
11.6%# &= & FICELIF B K &
21 22%% % K CELES o /%
BE RZZEZEN\FHRANH
Hj'%o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

11. Loss on Remeasurement to Fair Value N HFEEEZHEARNERN
Less Cost to Sell in Respect of Disposal TEARLAFERMEBERSK
Group Held for Sale/Disposal Group BB/ FHEHEEZHE
Held for Sale (Continued) ARl (E)

The following amounts represents the assets and liabilities of THEBEEASEER_ZEZTNF=
CEL and the 12.82% interest in Wing On held by the Group as at R=+—HABHBCILZEER ﬁ
31 March 2008, which are presented separately as disposal group BERXKEZ12.82%Em - RiRE
held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet. EEBBRBIUEYAFEES Z
HEER -
2008
—sENE
HK$000
FER
Interests in associates (note 23) g nalEm (WiE23) 651,029
Convertible note receivable from an associate U — B2 AR 2 A HiBER 55,521
Convertible options embedded in convertible note JE Y — RS Hﬁ’ EWNEI
receivable from an associate A HMEE 2 ik 1,119
Deposits for acquisition of interests in properties WIEMERR 2ES 60,013
Available-for-sale investments AHIEERE 9,562
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e W SR IE 25,931
Investments held for trading HIEEBKRE 85,918
Short-term loans receivable JEW R B E K 21,627
Loans to associates FEREl RN =& 36,610
Bank balances and cash RITHEF LIRS 315
947,645
Less: Loss on remeasurement to fair value less cost to W RS 2B EER
sell in respect of disposal group held for sale (Note) EHTEARFER
SHEN AN 2 BB (MiF) (90,171)
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale BHEAREHECHEHEMNEE 857,474
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H b e 5RIE 90,954
Tax payable J& 5 B 3R 25,908
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale BHEAREHECHEHEMNAE 116,862

Note: The amount of HK$90,171,000 represented the loss on Mt - 90,171,000‘}%7_&2%5? BEHHER

remeasurement to fair value less cost to sell, which is calculated $@;ﬁtfﬁﬁﬁ$21§ﬂ% ULy,
based on the difference between the 29.2% of net asset value EZNF=ZA=Z+—HCELEE FE
of CEL as at 31 March 2008 and the cash consideration of 229.2% 8138 & X {8 152,418,000 % 7T

HK$152,418,000. ZEFERE -



12. Income Tax Expense

Continuing operations

i B E S

2008 2007
—ge 5 [EELEE
HK$‘000 HK$'000
TR T

The charge (credit) TR BE
comprises:
Profit tax: MEH -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEBNER 119,876
Overseas RN 7,050
126,926
Deferred tax (note 46) EEBIE (f75146) 17,837

144,763

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) of

the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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12. MBHEX

Discontinued operations Consolidated
FREEY 58
2008 2007 2008 2007
SEZET)\F PRl —2T)\F ekl
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TEL TER TEL

119,876
7,050 (78,874)

126,926 (44,709)
17,837

144,763
ERMNERAANFE BT RERB

WA IR RI1I7T5%(ZE T+ F .
17.5% )t & -

EEMAERRAELE ZABEHIR
BRI AR ZBRITHENE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 &= —

12. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

TENF=AS+—AUEE

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

profit (loss) before income tax per the consolidated income

statements as follows:

12. FREHRHAX (&)

AEEMERAXERA

Yeas & A

BR AT B AT S A (B 1R ) 2 ¥ Bk 10

™~

2008
-
HK$000
TR

Profit (loss) before income tax expense:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations (note 13)

BRATS A < pa A (B1R) -

SFECEET
IEHBHEER (Mt 13)

192,749

192,749

Tax at applicable tax rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%)

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not recognized

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions

BEAHRE17.5%
ZETEF I 175%)

TE IR
33,731
EMBENREE I RBTE (16,793)
BAHRBRAZ BT E
(6,056)
ENMBR oM
97,666
AERNMBEBEREZNBEEE 36,595

REMRIAEREE 2

MEBARIZTARATERZZE

(273)
(107)

Others Hth
Income tax expense for the year REFRFERAXL

144,763

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FAT

(23,967)
(34,655)

(58,622)

(10,259)
(6,187)

(49,273)

61,899

17,405

(7,856)
493

6,222



13. Discontinued Operations

For the year ended 31 March 2007

On 19 January 2006, the Group through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Memorex International Inc. (“MIl"”), entered into
agreements (the “Disposal Agreement”) with Imation Corp.
(“Imation”), a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
to dispose of (i) Mll's entire interest in Hanny Magnetics Europe
Limited, Memorex Canada Ltd., Memorex Products Europe
Limited, Memorex Products S.A.S., Memorex Products GmbH,
Memorex Products (Taiwan) Inc. and Memorex Products, Inc.
(the “Disposed Companies”); and (i) Mll's trademark license and
other assets relating to the trading of computer related product
business under the trade name “Memorex®”, which include the
business of design, development, marketing, distribution and
sale of hardware, media and accessories used for the storage of
electronic data conducted by MIl and the Disposed Companies
(the "Disposed Business”). The disposal was completed on
28 April 2006.

The business segment of trading of computer related products
business under the trade name “Memorex®” and trading
of consumer electronic product business were classified as
discontinued operations during the year ended 31 March 2007.

Annual Report 2007-2008%3% 112

13. R EXER

=TT F=A=1T—HILFE

i
H

RZEZERF-—ATNALB &%
B % i@ H I = & [ B 2 7 Memorex
International Inc. ([ MII]) £Z Imation
Corp. ([Imation ) ( — R4 49 &

REMEMzAR)EI M ([H
E W&l - A& () MIIFR Hanny
Magnetics Europe Limited + Memorex
Canada Ltd. * Memorex Products
Europe Limited  Memorex Products
S.A.S. » Memorex Products GmbH
Memorex Products(Taiwan)Inc. &
Memorex Products, Inc.([ H & 2
Al 228 s Rii)MIZER
BT O] FE & E b B B8 LA [ Memorex® |
MAZHEEEEMBMER XK
CEE(BEMIREERA#ETZ
BFEEBERERMAEMS KK
Hz&Rat FE - EH - DiENHE
EZEBTLEEXEK] - HEE
RZZEZERNFEA=ZFTNHZEX °

HE-_ZZ+tF=-A=+—HLF
€ ' [Memorex®] @ k2 & K 1H @8 &
nEBESEBREEETERESFE
BRI EEREER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ=ZLZEN\F=A=+—HIFE

13. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 13. 3K
The profit for the year from the discontinued operations for ERNFOA-—HE-_ZTTRF
the period from 1 April 2006 to 28 April 2006 was analyzed as X )EJ +/\BH Fﬁ EHBEEBF
follows: €% M5

1.4.2006 to
28.4.2006
—EEXRE
A—R=&E
—EEXRE
mA=+NH
HK$'000
FAT
Loss of business segment of trading of [ Memorex® ] in k& & B 48 3
computer related products businessunder E MBS EBLEEETE R
the trade name “Memorex®” and trading B9EB B ZEIR
of consumer electronic product business (8,420)
Gain on disposal of Disposed Business & & T 2 Wss (MY aE49(i))
(note 49(ii) 1,526,346
1,517,926
Attributable to: EER
Equity holder of the Company RAARIREREA 637,972
Minority interests LR R ER 879,954
1,517,926
The related assets and liabilities at the date of disposal of HEXBEANHESCH  EBEEN

Disposed Business is disclosed in note 49(ii). BEPH A9 E -



13. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 13.

The results of the trading of computer related products under
“Memorex®” and trading of consumer electronic product
business for the period from 1 April 2006 to the date of disposal

were as follows:
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FIFER (F)

R-_ZEERFHA-—RELEEH

HA R > [ Memorex®| & hE & B4

%

>t

EmBZEBNHEEETERES

EBzEEMT

1.4.2006 to

28.4.2006

—EEXRE

A—B=ZE

ZBEAE

mA=+/NH

HK$000

Fib

Revenue WA 289,253
Cost of sales 3 & pk AN (231,045)
Other income Hu A 7,825
Distribution and selling expenses DHERIEERAX (89,370)
Administrative expenses TR (10,651)
Finance costs W% ER (667)
Loss before income tax bR P13 B A0S 18 (34,655)
Income tax credit PRS2 26,235
Loss for the period NHAR B5 18 (8,420)

The cash flows of the discontinued operations were as follows:

FERBXEB2RERENT :

1.4.2006 to
28.4.2006
—EERE
MA—HZE
—EERE
mMA=+N\H
HK$'000
FAET

Net cash from operating activities KEEFEEZREFEE
Net cash used in financing activities MEXEBEHRA 2R FE

72,599
(62,072)
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

14. Profit for the Year

Continuing operations

FHEEERR

2008
—EENE
HK$'000
FHET
Profit for the year has AR E 5 A
been arrived at after BBk (GtA)
charging (crediting):
Staff costs (including BTIRA
directors' emoluments):  (BIEEZHE) ¢
Salaries and other ek
benefits H bt F 22,980
Discretionary bonus B ETEAT
included in gain on (BEFAHE
disposal of Disposal HEEB

Business I z)
Retirement benefits BRER

scheme contributions FHEIER

Release of prepaid lease B E f Z
payments

Amortization of intangible & /& 7 # &

assets (included in (BRtATTERX)

administrative expenses) 2,600
Depreciation of property,  ¥1% -« # £ &

plant and equipment REWE 35,467
Write-off of loans to Wiges THE

associates RRIER
Allowance for other HAhfE Y R B

receivables
Allowance for margin BT REREE

loans receivable
Auditor's remuneration £ R B &
Cost of inventory BRAEME

recognized as expense ZIEERA
Share of income tax of oy N

associates (included FrEH (B A

in share of results of FE kB

associates) NCIES D) 1,996
Exchange loss (gain) ERER(RE) 14,484
Reversal of allowance for  EWEF A EREE

loans receivable (4,472)
Reversal of allowance for & 5 & I 518

BREO (88)

trade receivables

2007

ZETLEF
HK$'000
FHET

19,657

12,364

1,331

14. REE R

Discontinued operations Consolidated

Rl b B4
2008 2007 2008 2007
S LI —zzis
HK$‘000
TR

SLICN -7
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

HK$'000
TEL

11,852 22,980 31,509

2,600

35,467 13,644

1,331

11,877

6,607
231,045 232,325

1,996
14,484

4.472)

(88)



15. Directors’ and Employee’s
Remuneration

(a)

Directors’ remuneration
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15. EEREEMNE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2007: 8)

directors were as follows:

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

PR Bl 9%

e

Hip 2 -
e & EAE R
EARTE M ET B HER

Yap, Allan

Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Yap, Allan

e

Hit g -

o MEAMREF
By 1B fE4T
BARTE P ET B

Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard

Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

=P/

we

Hin i & -

e L EAMEF
%IT@
RAKAE A ET B HER

EXMe

BN T/ 2EE (=T
ZE8R)EHZMEW
o

2008
—BBNE
HK$000
FiE T

2007
ZETLHF
HK$'000
TAET

163

2,400
15,119
12

17,694

2,195

113

2,308
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15. Directors’ and Employee’s
Remuneration (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

15.ZEEREEME (&)

Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Fees
Other emoluments:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

i

ok

e

HEH<
e K H A AR A
BARTE M ET B

Wong King Lam, Joseph

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

"R®

e

Hibi g -

#ra REAMREF
RARE R B HE R

Yuen Tin Fan, Francis (resigned during the
year ended 31 March 2007)

Fees
Other emoluments:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

"R
(RBE_TZ+HF
=A=+—8H
IEFERME)

we

Hpe -

e RHEAMEF

R R FI A B4 3

2008 2007
SEIIEN -z
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT Tz

48

50



15. Directors’ and Employee’s
Remuneration (Continued)

(a) Directors’' remuneration (Continued)
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15 ZEEREEME (&)

Sin Chi Fai

Fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

2008
—2ENF
HK$°000
T
HE
we
H o M4 -
%8 RE BT

BARTE P ET B

Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

Fees
Other emoluments:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

7 B

wE

Hit g -

#ra MEAMREF
BARE RSB LR

Total

Directors’ fees
Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits

Discretionary bonus

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

EFMe

o kHEMER
e kE AR T
BB TEAL
EARTE M ET B HER

2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
THT

52

321

4,595
15,119
125

20,160
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15. Directors’ and Employee’s

Remuneration (Continued)

(b)  Employees’ remuneration

15.ZEEREEME (&)

(b) EEBE

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals of the HE-ZZNF=A=+—H

Group included two directors for the year ended 31 March
2008 (2007: two directors), whose emoluments are

included in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the

remaining individuals are as follows:

LFE AEEREMA (=
ZTLF  MBIEFEAZ
Efu&eSHFALTZHEE 275

RNEX@ - EBATZHME

Salaries and other benefits
Performance related incentive payments

Retirement benefit scheme

WEMT
2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FET
FekHEMmEF 3,242
HEEXBEEE o HE 356
RKTEF AT & 180

3,778

2007
—FTL£F
HK$'000
FBT

2,120
178
115

2,413

Number of employees

BEAH

HK$nil to HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

T8 7L & 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 /%8 7T &
1,500,000 7% 7T

1,500,001 %8 7T &
2,000,0007% 7T

2007
—ETLF
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16. Distributions 16. 73Kk
2008 2007
—EBEBNF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Final, paid — HK1 cent per share for 2007, K& B ——_ZFZFT+F
with a scrip option (2007: HK6 cents per BRI B (TEE
share for 2006) UERRE) (ZEZLF
—TERFFReE) 15,027
Interim, paid — HKO0.5 cent per share R BN ENE
for 2008 (2007: HK5 cents per share FRRO0.58 M (r] iR =
for 2007) with a scrip option UBRRBE) (ZEZE+HF
—ETEETRSEL) 25,049 12,628
58,430 27,655
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend EFETERAREBE_ZTZENF
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: HK1 cent per share in “A=+—BLFEZREARE
cash with a scrip option). (ZZEZLF - GRBES18M - 7
BEURRE) -
Share dividends were offered in respect of the 2007 and 2008. RRARERZZFEZELFRZFTZEN
These cash and share dividends were as follows: FRERNDKRE - ZERERERH
REWMT :
2008 2007
—BENE —EELF
HK$‘'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividend g
— cash —-RE 19,378
— share alternative —RipEE 8,277

27,655
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EBENIEEEELEME

o8
4 5

ThHF AR
ARABBEFSEAREERESR

e |RME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE
BERATEATEETE

17. Earnings (Loss) Per Share
For continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on the
following data:
Earnings: &R
2008 2007
—EBBNF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THETT
Profit for the year attributable to equity FAEERERARNZ
RRFIRERH AR
F 2 A 129,110 527,080
—ARBEREREMNE N/ATiE A 31,931
AEEREERN
RRARRAERE ARG
129,110 559,011

holders of the Company for the purpose

of basic earnings per share
F % 7

— Interest on convertible loan notes

Earnings for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the purpose

of diluted earnings per share




17. Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Continued) 17.

For continuing and discontinued operations (Continued)

Number of shares:

Annual Report 2007-20084 i
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e -

kB (EE)

122

/la

WRELLEXBRIEFREXTMS

2007
—EELEF
'000
T &
(Note)
(Ft3E)
Weighted average number of ordinary AEERERANZ
shares for the purpose of basic earnings @M NEFHEE
per share 4,384,156 3,273,953
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EEHTEREE#HETLE
— Share options — iR = 8,690
— Convertible loan notes —AHBRERERE N/ATIEH 1,141,814
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEEREERN
shares for the purpose of diluted TR N FIIE B
earnings per share 4,384,156 4,424,457
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares has been adjusted Krar : ERBRMEFHEBE S HME
for the effect of bonus issue as described in note 44. 44 BT 2 BEATAL AR B2 & i 1E 1B

No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended

HRABRA A BREEHERFER

31 March 2008 as the conversion of convertible loan notes would EHERESER 2 FIRBFE N -

result in increase in earnings per share from continuing and

discontinued operations.

MR —_EZENF=A=+—HILF

BUEE2/GHRETRT -



123 Hanny Holdings Limited 3@ &E@EERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e |RME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

17. Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Continued)

For continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (loss):

17. BREF (FE) (&)
RO R QLTS
AATIRESEABERABEL
MEe S SRR RN R 8 B TR
AT B E

&ar(EE)

2008 2007
—EBNF —ETLF
HK$‘000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to equity KARIRERA A
holders of the Company FE 15 F E &= A
129,110 527,080
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued B ARAIRERB A
operations attributable to equity JEEIERBET
holders of the Company FE s F (637,972)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic TEREREER
and diluted earnings (loss) per share ZEREERET (FHE)
from continuing operations Z BT (EE) 129,110 (110,892)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

No diluted loss per share was presented for the year ended
31 March 2007 as the exercise of share option and the conversion
of convertible loan notes would result in decrease in loss per

share from continuing operation.

No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended
31 March 2008 as the conversion of convertible loan notes
would result in increase in earnings per share from continuing

operations.

BEREAREERN (BIE) TK
Rznr&E EXHRERMERR -

BRITERRE RSB L BRER
EREENKREFELEETZE
PREER D B YE2TEE
ETLF A=t -HULEFESK
BEER -

HRAABERRRZ L HREEH
KERBEREXEB 2 BRA N IE
M MU EINEE—TE)N\F
A=t BULFEZEREER
Fil o
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17. Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Continued) 17. 8RER (BE) (#)
For continuing operations (Continued) RERBESEEBL (&)
The above has not accounted for the conversion of the convertible HRABERBEER otk
note issued by the associate for the year ended 31 March 2007 N EFERBEEZZEZLF=A
and 31 March 2008 since such conversion is anti-dilutive. =t+t—HEZEZENF=ZA=+—

HIEFERBAEERRBEITHA
ARBRE-

For discontinued operations KEFFEED

For the year ended 31 March 2007, basic earnings per share HE_ZTTLF=A=+—AH L
for the discontinued operation was HK19.49 cents per share FE IFBEBNERELRER
and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation FAESRI1949EM - MIFERFEE
was HK14.39 cents per share, based on the profit for the year BOEREERN AR F1439
from the discontinued operations of HK$637,972,000 and the B DIRBIEREEBFE & A
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings 637,972,000 T} E X HRRER K

per share. BERNFAHEBAZOEEE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment

18. ¥ % ~ ERERRE

Furniture,
fixtures Sand
Leasehold Plant and and Motor mining
buildings  machinery Moulds  equipment vehicles vessel Total
RE#EB
HERT HEREMN A R#&E RE 378 “am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
THE GROUP X&E
COosT A
At 1 April 2006 RZZTTR
FMA—A 46,463 10,131 2,971 10,766 2,672 — 73,003
Currency realignment SR — — — 1,262 (41) 4,261 5,482
Additions NE — — — 1,133 2,302 — 3,435
Arising from acquisition K EUREER B AR
of subsidiaries — 40 — 142 387 134,684 135,253
Disposals L& (33,335) (10,131) (2,971) (320) (514) — (47,271)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB AR (13,128) — — (4,413) (133) — (17,674)
At 31 March 2007 RZZZLE
—A=+—-H — 40 — 8,570 4,673 138,945 152,228
Currency realignment EHRE 5,733 346 — 14 105 12,282 18,480
Additions RE - 3 - 587 - - 590
Arising from acquisition REWERED
of subsidiaries 78,060 3,597 — 91 121 26,500 108,369
Disposals & — — — (1,000) (350) — (1,350)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR — 17) — — (368) — (385)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENF
=A=t+—H 83,793 3,969 — 8,262 4,181 177,727 277,932
DEPRECIATION AND FTERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2006 RZTEREF
mA—H 10,621 10,131 2,971 9,017 1,696 - 34,436
Currency realignment ERAE _ _ _ @ _ _ 4
Provided for the year KEEHE 549 11 — 1,231 358 10,215 12,364
Eliminated on disposals o B 8 (10,682) (10,131) (2,971) 317) (418) — (24,519)
Eliminated on disposal 6 BB 72 7] B A 8
of subsidiaries (488) — — (3,289) 61) — (3,838)
At 31 March 2007 i
—A=+—H — 11 — 6,638 1,575 10,215 18,439
Currency realignment g 662 60 — 10 24 104 860
Provided for the year KEERE 6,612 250 — 443 786 27,376 35,467
Eliminated on disposals s B8 _ — — (570) (350) — (920)
Eliminated on disposal 6 BB 2 7D B i 5
of subsidiaries — (4) — — (174) — (178)
At 31 March 2008 RZZSNE
ZA=+—H 7,274 317 — 6,521 1,861 37,695 53,668
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENF
=A=1+—H 76,519 3,652 — 1,741 2,320 140,032 224,264
At 31 March 2007 RZZB+E
ZA=z+—H — 29 — 1,932 3,098 128,730 133,789




18.

19.
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Property, Plant and Equipment 18. Y15 ~ R RKRME (#)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated LuimE  HMERREREER K
on straight-line basis at the following rates per annum. BERERNATERFE -
Leasehold buildings Over the period of the leases MEBF 1284 F Hi 5k
or 2%-5% 2%-5%
Plant and machinery 10%-20% 1 8% T2 M 10%-20%
Moulds 25%-33% BA 25%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%-33% HHE - EKBRRE 10%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25% AE 20%-25%
Sand mining vessel 10% B 10%
The Group’s leasehold buildings are situated in a land in PRC with AEBZHEBFALRPE—IEH
medium-term leases. HARR 40+ 3 o
Investment Properties 19. REWI=
HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE NF1E
At 1 April 2006 R-ZTERFHA—H 133,000
Additions NE 10,358
Increase in fair value recognized in the REEWFRER 2 AN FEE M
consolidated income statement 2,642
At 31 March 2007 R_EZLF=A=+—H 146,000
Additions NE 747
Increase in fair value recognized in the RERE W R R Z A B N
consolidated income statement 103,253
At 31 March 2008 R_EENF=R=+—8H 250,000
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19. Investment Properties (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2008 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out by RHL Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent valuers.
The valuation of the Group's investment properties was arrived
at by using direct comparison method where comparison based
on prices information on comparable property is made. During
the year ended 31 March 2008, a gain on fair value changes in
investment properties amounting to HK$103,253,000 (2007:
HK$2,642,000) was recognized in the consolidated income

statement.

The investment properties are held under long leases and are
situated in Hong Kong.

All of the Group’s investment properties held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

19. REW = (&)

AEBBEWER_TTNF=A
=+ —BZAFEUABEERMT
KAMITHEBER AR AR ET M
BERAEEET AKEIKREME
HEDFERAEZ LB RIRTHER
MEZEBERELHLERERE - &
E-FTENF=ZA=+—HILFE
N REAKREREREEDER
& & B Y 25 103,253,000 %8 7T ( —
TT A ¢ 2,642,000/87T) °

REMENERBBOTALMVRE
B e

REERRDNES K ERNIEEM R
REMOBENMAEREMERR
FEEAFE  XDBARIAR



20. Prepaid Lease Payments

21.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands in
the PRC held under medium-term land use rights.
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AEENBNHEHENRBEREET
RETHIMERERANHEEL

Hb o
2008 2007
—z2)\5 LN
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: FERBEBMEL DT
Non-current asset EMEBEE —
Current asset MENEE —
Goodwill 21. BE
HK$000
FET
CosT B A
At 1 April 2006 and 31 March 2007 RZZEZERFOA—B K
—EE+F=/=+—H 6,621
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAREE 26,524
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—H 33,145
IMPAIRMENT LOSS WEBER
At 1 April 2006 RZZEZRFMA—A —
Impairment loss recognized R EEIE 6,621
At 31 March 2007 and 2008 R_ZBZELFR_FTTENF=ZHA=+—H 6,621
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 March 2008 RZZEZENF=A=+—H 26,524

At 31 March 2007

R=FBLF=A=+—A
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21. Goodwill (Continued)

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are set out

below:

(i)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007

An impairment testing was performed in relation to the
goodwill arising from acquisition of Rapid Growth Profits
Limited and management determined that the goodwill
was impaired and full amount of goodwill was charged
as impairment loss on goodwill arising on acquisition of

subsidiaries in the consolidated income statement.

For the year ended 31 March 2008

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March 2008
of HK$6,869,000 and HK$19,655,000 is attributable to
the acquisition of (i) Regrowth Resources Limited which is
engaged in water supply business (cash generating unit of
water supply business) and (i) RE=ETE 2 EME 5 E
fR 2 &) which is engaged in sand mining business (cash

generating unit of sand mining business) respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment in either of

these two cash generating units containing goodwill.

FENFZAS+—AILFE

e (E)

BERRERENANFERDT

BE_ZTLHF=-F=1+—H
EFE

£ 3t B 78 A& Y B Rapid Growth
Profits Limited FfT 2 4 2 72 B 3t

%:IWTE/E\HEI ! %:}EFWLAELL
HEERE MEIHEmEHRE
ERKENRBARFESXEE

B E B R AR A W e R BB

BE_TT N \F=ZA=1+—H
EFE

RZEENF=ZA=Z+—H
Bk ™ fE /46,869,000 & 7T &
19,655,000 7% 7T H) 75 2 5 Bl 2k
B U (D EHKEB (K
XBHMREeEASBN)NHE
ERBEBRAAR(NKEERY
%f*m%;ﬁgéﬁiﬁfﬁ%ﬁ

NA (KW EBNBReESE
ifﬁ) °

BE_ZZN\F=ZA=t+—H
LEE AEEEEERSM
EeEmEnReELEMH]
EHBERE -



21. Goodwill (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of these two cash
generating units and their major underlying assumptions

are summarized below:

Cash generating unit of water supply business

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a 5-year period and discount
rate of 17%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit's past performance and management’s expectations for

the market development.

Cash generating unit of sand mining business

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a 5-year period and discount
rate of 18%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit's past performance and management’s expectations for

the market development.
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(ii)

BE_ZTZTZN\F=R=+—H
IFFE (&)

ZMER S EE BN A U E
CHELRETERBEREMEE
BEA R

BERRE R T & E B

KEMMTW@ IR B
FAEENEELET - ZitEE
DER D= e %5¢ Y EE

BEMECVBREZE S
METER - WIR17%REIR K5
B -AFHUAIINRERED
FTABRENS3%REREHRE
EREBEAFEEZHEBEIER
REEE /AR L Z AR
FR(RREEHERANREN
) ZEMFOIRBZEM
ZBERANEREEH TS E
RBEHMERE -

R RBE)E T ELEN

REMH A KESESRERE
REEFEEAETE - Lt &)
DABAERRESFE  THE

BEMECVBREZE S
mETEA - WIR18% AL IR K5t
B RAFHUINRERED
FTRAEBE3REREHES -
ERBEFEEZZEMEIER
RERSRAREZEE
FR(RREEHERANREN
) ZEMFHIRBZENM
ZBERANEREEH S E
RBEBHMERE -
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22. Intangible Assets

2. B EE

Operating
right to
Customer  water supply
contracts business Total
itk E &
EFERN RERER k]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHBT
CosT B
Acquired on acquisition of B B /BB~ A R 1S
subsidiaries and at ER=ZZZENEFE
31 March 2008 (Note 47) =R=+—8(Mit47) 91,735 13,395 105,130
AMORTIZATION e
Charge for the year and at FRIMBREAZZEZTNF
31 March 2008 —A=+—H 2,377 223 2,600
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2008 RZZETNEF
=A=+—H 89,358 13,172 102,530

The above intangible assets was purchased as part of the
acquisition of the Regrowth Resources Limited (water supply
business) and R W E & EM & % B R 2 7 (sand mining
business).

The above intangible assets have definite lives and are amortized

on a straight-line basis over following periods:

Customers contracts 10-15 years

Operating right to water 26 years

supply business

it EENERKRBHEER
BRRABI(HKER) RR=ME
EREMESZBERQA(RYER)
M — B mEA e

tHRBYEENERMAR XX
TOIHAR I AR E B

10-154
264

EFE&H
WK E LR
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. . oY = 435 3¢
23. Interests in Associates 23. BtE ARl fER
2007
—EBEBNF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cost of investment in associates which are: R T3 Bt & QN a8 E Z KA -
— listed in Hong Kong (note a) —EEB L™ (M Ea) = 285,739
— listed overseas (note b) — /s £ (M 5EDb) 313,235 239,004
— unlisted (note c) — 3 £ (FifFEc) 6,353 281,523
Share of post-acquisition profit, net of FEAE Y B 12 0% A1 -
dividends received AR OS] 66,747 69,348
386,335 875,614
Interests in associates included in assets VRBIEHEEEZ
held for sales (notes a and c) (note 11) & AR R
(Hiztalc) (Krati1) 651,029 —
Fair value of listed shares k2 AFE 212,168 278,262
Notes: Hfat -
a.  Asat 31 March 2007, the amount represented the 20.36% equity a. NRIZZEZELEF=A=+—80" %
interest in Wing On held by CEL. % FH 18 RCELIF B #920.36% K &
[ HE -
During the year ended 31 March 2008, the changes of the interest REBEE-_ZTZNF=A=+—H
in Wing On held by the Group are as follows: IFE AREERFANKETE
mWEHMT
(i) In June 2007, CEL converted the convertible note of Wing On i) RZ-ZZEZTLFNA-CE
with principal amount of HK$237,000,000 into 300,000,000 K & % 7%237,000,000
shares in Wing On and disposed of 355,000,000 shares in BITHKZALBRERA
Wing On to the market at a consideration of approximately 300,000,000 A% 7k %2 & fn + I
HK$262,059,000; 12 X 18 £9262,059,000 7 7T 74
35 | i & 355,000,000 % 5k
2t
(i) In June, July and August 2007, the Group acquired (i MZZTEZELFRA - t£tAK
223,772,000 shares in Wing On in aggregate from the NA RNEBERMSEBA
market at a total consideration of HK$122,321,000; and & #£223,772,000 & 5k & &
7 #R1{E /5122,321,0007%
TR
(i) In November 2007, the Group disposed of 59,595,000 (i) RZTZTELF+—H 2%
shares in Wing On at a consideration of HK$25,470,000. & ¥ 1 {8 25,470,000 7% JT

£ 59,595,000 % 5k &2 B 19 ©
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23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, Wing On also increased
its share capital from HK$61,059,000 as at 31 March 2007 to
HK$182,076,000 as at 31 March 2008 by placement of shares,
exercise of share options and conversion of convertible bond held
by other convertible bond holders of Wing On. As a result of the
above transactions, the Group’s interest in Wing On were reduced
from 20.36% as at 31 March 2007 to 12.82% as at 31 March
2008, and resulted in a loss on disposal and dilution of interest
in an associate amounting to HK$268,525,000 and a discount
on acquisition of additional interest in an associate amounting
to HK$148,309,000. The directors consider that the Group has
retained significant influence over Wing On by the representation
of the Group on the board of directors of Wing On despite the
interest held by the Group is below 20% and the Group has
continuously accounted for Wing On as its associate.

As explained in note 11, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement to dispose of its 29.2% interest in CEL at a cash
consideration of HK$152,418,000. In addition, the directors of the
Company committed a plan to dispose of its entire interest in Wing
On, and accordingly, its entire interests of Wing On held by the
Group were classified under assets held for sale and not accounted
for using the equity method of accounting as at 31 March 2008.
Details of these are set out in note 11.

FENFZAS+—AILFE

23. BEE N Al ()

ftax - (4&)

(#)

HE_TEZNF=A=+—H
LEFE kL2 HBBEERD
THEERER L BB EMKEA
HBBEFBFEAFTENA LR
B BERAIAAZ_ZTZTLF=
A =+ — H #61,059,000 /& T &
E-_ZTTZNFZA=1+—8H
182,076,000 % 7T © /A #E 17 kil
RGP FAEBRXEHEREZ
TZELF=ZA=+—HM2036%
BRE-ZENF=ZA=+—HBH
12.82% + I & $1268,525,000/% 7T
F—HBEE AR E R ERES
B 18 » LA K 148,309,000 7 JT #) 1
B-HBE QR EETE-ES
REAEBECDRBAEEN KR
EFTHREREBEHEKLTHERK
YE BREALBBBFEMNEZD
[FZE20% AT MAKEED#E
1ok ARV B E QT -

BMK TR A AEE
Y BEhRKtBERRERE
152,418,000 /8 7T ! & E M CELH
292%HEam o W AAFES
B%E—IBE - HEHRKZ
MNEHEDZ  UBR_TENF=
A=T—BAXRKEFENZH K
ZREHEAFEHEEAE I
BIRERESTEAR - ZE5H15
BRI .



23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b. The amount as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 represented the
Group's 24.26% equity interest in PSC Corporation Ltd (“PSCL").

Included in investment in associates is goodwill of HK$38,979,000
as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 arising on acquisition of associates
in previous year. The movement of goodwill is set out below:
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23. BE N TR ()

ffat - (&)

bh. RZZEZNFR-_ZTZTLF=A
—t+—BZ&HEALEEME
TREEBER AR (E/]) 2
24.26% & HE o

REERAZREBERBEF
EWEBE AR MELAZEmE
RZEENFRZZEZTLF=A
= +— B %% /&38,979,000/& T °
HEZEHFBIHN T

HK$'000
FATT
COST 24
At 1 April 2006, 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2008 HRZ-ZZTZXFMA—H -
—EELFNPA—HRE
—EENF=ZRA=+—H 53,370
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT ﬁﬁé& EJHE
At 1 April 2006, 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2008 R -_ZTZXFMA—H -
:%@—Eti WA—HBK
—EZNFE=ZA=+—H 14,391
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 RZZEZELF=ZA=+—HBK
—EENFE=ZA=+—H 38,979

C. As at 31 March 2007, the amount represented the 26% equity
interest in Hangzhou Zhongce Rubber Company Limited (“HZ
Rubber”) held by CEL. As explained in note 11, the related assets
and liabilities of CEL were classified as disposal group held for
sale and accordingly, the interest in HZ Rubber were classified as
disposal group held for sale as at 31 March 2008. The amount of
HK$6,353,000 as at 31 March 2008 mainly represented the 28.6%
interest in Mass Success International Ltd., a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and engaged in investment holding and

provision of management services.

¢ NR-TZEZLHFZA=+—H %
BIECELFTFE oMM AP R BB E
RAR(TMIMNAREER])26%
A& 4 o B A B FE11 PR BA - CEL
WEREERABERBERFIEHE
EHEHR R-_ZEZENFEZA
=t+t—HmMMNPEEBREESE
AREHELEMHERN RZ2FZT
NA\F = A=+ —HH#6,353,000 %
JC & Z $5Mass Success International
Ltd. 2 28.6% % - Z A Al N EE
BREESTMA T  HEREE
[ R EE R -
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23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

23. BFE N A (4F)

ftax - (4&)

d. Details of the Group’s principal associates are as follows: d. ARBERBE DA ZFRHHS
L/
Place of Proportion of equity
incorporation/ Place of interest attributable
Name of associate establishment operation to the Group Principal activities
AR KEBEEMN
BEQNREH B 3L it B O i B PR % tE 1 FTEEK
2007 2008
—TTEE ZEBENFE
% %
PSCL Singapore Singapore 24.26 24.26 Supply of household
= BTN BTN consumer products
HEZAHEER
Wing On Bermuda Hong Kong 20.36 12.82 Business of providing
KE BRE BB package tours, travel
and other related
services
RERTE - R
K B A AR B AR 15 2
7%
HZ Rubber PRC PRC 26 26 Manufacturing of tires
N BB Y oY FiE g

PSCL is a company listed in the Republic of Singapore and its
financial year end date is 31 December. The Group has equity
accounted for its share of interest in PSCL at 31 March 2007 and at
31 March 2008, based on the net assets of PSCL at 31 March 2007
and at 31 March 2008, respectively, extracted from the published
interim financial information of PSCL.

Tgh— BRI mE EME
MZAR HUBRFEL£ERA
+ZA=Zt+—H - AEEEEE
BR_ZEE+F=A=+—HK
—EENF=ZR=F+—AZ#
= IRBEER_ZEZTLF=
A=Z+—HEZ-_ZEZNF=A
Tt+-—RCZEEFE(GEAY
BREFZEZPHBBER)HE
W ARSI AR -



23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Wing On is a company listed in Hong Kong and its financial year
end date is 31 December. The Group has equity accounted for
its share of interest in Wing On at 31 March 2007 and up to
25 March 2008 (being the date of classification of interest in Wing
On as assets held for sale) based on the net assets of Wing On
at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007 respectively, after
adjusting for any material transactions up to 31 March 2007 and
25 March 2008.

HZ Rubber is a PRC sino-foreign equity joint venture.

The above tables list the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details of
other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The summarized financial information in respect of the Group's
associates under equity method of accounting is set out below:

23. BME N A ERE

UEX

Total assets BEEEE
Total liabilities BEBE
Net assets BEFE

Group's share of net assets of associates

AEBERERE QR EEFE
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(%)

(&)

XKL —BREB LM 2 A A

HYBFEHERBART A
=+—H - REBEMEXKZRZ
EEHF=ZA=+—BUKEZE
—EENEF=ZA=-THBAAR
KEMERDERIBIFHEEE
ZBH)ZEmE DREBEXKEZR
—TEERFt+ZAZ+—HEZ
TELtF+A=+—HZE
EFE(EHEE-_ZTLF=
A=+—RARKRZZFEZTNF=A
:+£E¢ZEHEK§%ﬁﬁ
AE)FHE - WARY BER -

MM E B —E A B
BoE o

ERVNE 2 AEBEBHEE QR - T)
EERATEVEAEELRFE
PEBRERASBEFREEF
BEXRBHZA EE%J%
HHREMBMELNNSERERER
RILEK

AEEBERARRBEESGX

REIHBEMNBRENT
2008 2007
—EENEFE ZEELF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHE T FATT
2,098,800 10,796,695
(487,266) (6,872,066)
1,611,534 3,924,629
347,356 836,635
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: H . 48 EK \ S| HEE X /4
23. Interests in Associates (Continued) 23. BENTI R (&)
Notes: (Continued) et - (%)
e. (Continued) d. (%)
The summarized financial information in respect of the Group's AREMEARWIHRAESS
associates that are not accounted for using the equity method of AEAABRZHMBEN(GFARA
accounting (included in assets held for sale) is set out below: FHEEE)BZHINMT ¢
2008
—EEN\EF
HK$
BT
Total assets BERE 11,329,977
Total liabilities BE#E (7.212,046)
4,117,931
Group's share of net assets of associates AEEELBEAREEFE 651,029
The revenue and profit for the year of the associates that are and AEEHERNTHAB LRI IERA
are not accounted for using the equity method of accounting are B g A AR Z A KB F #
set out below: 07 n i N

2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TR

Revenue A 15,365,782 10,510,049

Profit for the year N EE 55 F 274,817 97,098

Group’s share of profit of associates AREEEMLEBZE QT
for the year R Z S F 95,959 35,356




23. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

f. The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates. The amounts of unrecognized share of those
associates, extracted from the relevant audited financial statements
of associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:
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23. BME N TIREZ (4B)
Bat o (&)

f. AEECKRILEREMGSE THE
RAZEE - LT RERZSH
BRBAIZAFER R RABERE
BHENT DEEaEREE
DR E LB R

2008 2007
—EENF —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR

(558)

Accumulated unrecognized of share losses JEIREEE AR Z
of associates 2Rt KRR BB
Unrecognized share of losses of associates (Xl ANl o

for the year REEREREE
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24. Available-for-Sale Investments 24, O HEERE
2008
—EENE
Notes HK$'000
B e FET
Listed investments: EHEE
— Equity securities listed —REELT
in Hong Kong ZRA 2 (a) 316,523
Unlisted securities: EETMES
— equity securities — & AR5 (b) 295,662
— debt securities —([EEE S () 821,774

1,117,436

1,433,959

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: 2 B #1M

1,404,127
29,832

1,433,959

EH DT -

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current assets MENE E

Available-for-sale investments FABEHEEZ

included in disposal group held S AR A #

for sale (note 11) HERE (K1)

— Equity securities listed —-REELETZ

in Hong Kong N (a)

An amount of HK$29,832,000 as at 31 March 2008 was classified
under current assets as maturity date of the related convertible
notes is in September 2008.

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FHET

247,967

43,662
704,067

747,729

995,696

995,696

995,696

R_EZNF=ZA=Z+—H"
29,832,000 B T2 @ HEHEARY
BE RERSEBEIJLBREENT

HASZZTZENFNA -



24. Available-for-Sale Investments
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

All listed investments are stated at fair value which is determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock
Exchange. During the year, the Group identified an impairment loss
of HK$72,383,000 related to listed security whose share price has
declined for a prolonged period.

The unlisted securities as at 31 March 2007 represented 9.76%
interest in Apex Quality Group Limited (“Apex”). Apex is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its subsidiaries are
engaged in hotel and leisure related business.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group acquired
various unlisted equity securities at a total consideration of
HK$502,000,000. The investees are mainly engaged in holding of
properties interests in the PRC. The Group also disposed of certain
unlisted equity securities with carrying value of HK$250,000,000
through disposal of subsidiaries as set out in note 49(i).

The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
at each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

The amount represented the fair value of debt elements of the
convertible notes issued by various companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group subscribed
a convertible note (“SCL 2009") with principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 issued by See Corporation Limited (“SCL"). SCL
is a public limited liability company with its shares listed on the
Stock Exchange. SCL 2009 carries interest at 1% per annum with
maturity on 4 December 2009 at redemption amount of 100%
of the principal amount. The fair value at initial recognition of the
debt element of SCL 2009 and conversion option element of SCL
2009, amounting to HK$99,376,000 and HK$624,000 (note 27)
respectively, are measured in accordance HKAS 39.

24. AREEER
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24. Available-for-Sale Investments 24. A HEERE (#)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hax - (&)
() (Continued) () (#&)
Details of the terms and conditions of the principal convertible FEARBRERZBERZGHF
notes are as follows: BEAAT
Fair value of
debt element as at
RT5AH
BEBIATE
Redemption
Convertible Principal Interest rate amount over 31 March 31 March
note amount  Issuer perannum  Maturity date the principal 2007 2008
ZTTtE ZBENF
BESE =A =A
TRREE xEE BOA FRE A BUAESHE =+-A Er=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TR TR
[TC Properties 450,000 ITC Properties Group Zero 10 August 2010 110% 277,331 PRERTL
2010 Limited (“ITC Properties”, g —Z-%%
EEmE formerly known as Macau NA+H
_Z-% Prime Properties Holdings
Limited)
ERmESERRAR
(TewshE]l) - At
REFRMES
BERRA
ITC Properties 270,000 ITC Properties 1% 14 June 2011 110% 218,841 229,877
201 BEHE —E-—F
ERME ~NATMmA
-2
SCL 2009 100,000 SCL 1% 4 December 2009 100% N/A 87,245
EEE EEH ZZEINE
ZETN +ZAEA
SCL2010 170,000 SCL Zero 9 August 2010 110% 135,736 150,152
EEE EEH T ZZ-%ZF
—E-% NARE
Wo Kee Hong 30,000 Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) 7.25% 5 September 2008 100% 28,921 29,834
2008 Limited ("Woo Kee Hong") ZEE)N\E
Mz MEm(EE)BERAA NAERA
ZEEN (ImzEl)
Asia Standard 19,000  Asia Standard International 4% 14 May 2009 100% 17,116
2009 Limited (“Asia Standard") “EThE
ZBZZTN wBEBRARAR TATHA

(&)




24. Available-for-Sale Investments
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)
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24. AJASHERE (&)

ftax - (&)

© (&)
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the FEARBRERBEZHERR
principal convertible notes are as follows: AT
(1) Valuation of debt component () EHHLHzHE
The fair value of debt element was calculated based on BEHEBLZAFEERELD
the present value of contractually determined stream of BEEZAKRBERERNR
future cash flows discounted at the required yield, which FEWEERFR2VETE -
was determined with reference to the credit rating of the ARIRERENKLZEAL
convertible notes issuer and remaining time to maturity. REBEETAGETIR R
The effective interest rate of the debt component of each TEIHZEEmMET - B
convertible note as at date of subscription, 31 March 2007 REHH - —_ETELF=F
and 31 March 2008 are as follows: =t+—HEZZZN\F=A
=+—H FAUHLBERE
BHO 2 EEREMT :
Date of
Convertible note Date of issue Subscription 31 March 2007 31 March 2008
—EETLHF —BEN\E
AHRBEE HITHME REEH =A=+—AH =A=t+-—H
ITC Properties 2010 1 August 2005 8.59% 8.33% 9.34%
EHME-_E % —TTRHENA—A
ITC Properties 2011 15 June 2006 9.16% 8.63%
EEME—_T—— —EERFANATEH
SCL 2009 5 December 2007 10% —
EEE-TTH —TEtF+ZAEA
SCL 2010 10 August 2005 10% 10%
EEE-_T—F —EERFNATHE
Wo Kee Hong 2008 7 September 2005 10.25% 10%
MET 22N —TTRHENALR
Asia Standard 2009 15 May 2006 10% 9.25%

p -t £ )

—EZXREAA+TAHA
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24. Available-for-Sale Investments 24, M HEEERE (&)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Hiax - (&)

(¢ (Continued) (© (&)
R s o EE

Hhx - TR AT EER
BN NCIRTR T ST Y 2l
DZEE - RRBEAHRE
E_ZTE+F=-A=+—H
RZEBBENF=A=+—H
LTFERF(WMER) A
B MERENR ZBURL

(2)  Valuation of conversion option element (2)

Black-Scholes option pricing model is used for valuation
for conversion option element of convertible notes. The
inputs into the model of each convertible note as at date of
subscription and each of the year ended 31 March 2007 and
2008, if applicable, was as follows:

ITC Properties 2010

1 August 2005
(date of subscription)

™

31 March 2007

31 March 2008

—EEREFNA—H —EELHF —EBENF
BEBE—_Z-F (RBEH) =A=+—-8 =A=+-—H
Stock price HK$0.397& 7T HK$0.417% 7T HK$0.24 7% 7T
Conversion price HK$0.44 7% 7T HK$0.44 % 7T HK$0.44 7% 7T
HirfE
Volatility 73.57% 49.28% 48.79%
I
Dividend yield ZeroZ ZeroZ ZeroZ
Option life 5 years & 1.68 years 1.18 years
Hi#E F
Risk free rate 4% 3.79% 0.91%

B AL B ) =

ITC Properties 2011

15 June 2006
(date of subscription)

31 March 2007

31 March 2008

—FERFARATERA —BBLF —BENF
EHEmE—_T—— (REAH) =ZA=+-—H =Z=A=+-—H
Stock price HK$0.547% 7T HK$0.417% 7T HK$0.24 7% 7T
Conversion price HK$0.707% 7T HK$0.707% 7T HK$0.70 7 7T
HixfE
Volatility 61.62% 49.20% 48.79%
B g
Dividend yield ZeroE ZeroE Zero &
BE
Option life 5 years & 3.37 yearsF 2.56 years
HA R 4 AP
Risk free rate 4.62% 3.93% 1.38%

I 2 B ) =
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24. Available-for-Sale Investments 24, M HEEERE (&)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

(2)  Valuation of conversion option element (Continued)

5 December 2007

ftat - (&)

(o)

(&)

2 HiagHosrzhE(E)

SCL 2009 (date of subscription) 31 March 2007 31 March 2008
—EZ2tF+=AEHR —EELHF
EEE—_ZZAR (REAH) =A=+-—8
Stock price HK$0.1% 7T N/A T i HK$0.05 & 7T
Conversion price HK$0.47% 7T N/A i HK$0.47 T
HixfE
Volatility 56.37% N/AT 38 72.84%
R 8
Dividend yield ZeroZ N/A T i R Zero®
Bx
Option life 2 years N/A i 1.66 years &
HA#E 4F AR
Risk free rate 1.65% N/A T i 1.24%
2 3 B ) 2
10 August 2005

SCL 2010 (date of subscription) 31 March 2007 31 March 2008

—EEZHEFENATH —EZLHF —EENE
EER-E-% (RBEEH) =A=+-8 ==
Stock price HK$0.667%8 7T HK$0.697% 7T HK$0.057% 7T
& 1&
Conversion price HK$0.127%8 7T HK$4.06 7% 7T HK$1.087% 7T
Volatility 82.58% 66.83% 72.84%
K 18
Dividend yield Zero & ZeroE Zero &
Bx
Option life 5 years & 3.36 years & 2.38 years F
HA 4 BR
Risk free rate 4% 3.93% 1.24%

8 2 g ) =R
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24. Available-for-Sale Investments 24. AT HEEERE (#)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) fat - (%)
(©)  (Continued) @ (&)
(2)  Valuation of conversion option element (Continued) () HRumESRHy2EE(E)

7 September 2005

Wo Kee Hong 2008 (date of subscription) 31 March 2007 31 March 2008
—EZEAFNALR —EEtHF
MET=ZZN (REBAEH) =B=+-—H
Stock price HK$0.07 % 7T HK$0.47 7% 7T HK$0.707% 7T
Conversion price HK$0.107% 7T HK$17%8 7T HK$0.83 7 T
Rm(E
Volatility 55.94% 72.15% 97.61%
B
Dividend yield ZeroE ZeroZ Zero &
Bx
Option life 3 years&F 1.44 yearsF 0.43 years
Hi#E F
Risk free rate 4% 3.79% 0.80%
2 3 B ) 2
15 May 2006
Asia Standard 2009 (date of subscription) 31 March 2007 31 March 2008
—EEXERATEH —EE2LHF —EENE
REBZBEAR (REAH) =B=+-—H
Stock price HK$0.287% 7T HK$0.257% 7T
BfE
Conversion price HK$0.31/%8 7T HK$0.287% 7T
Volatility 45.24% 41.62%
I
Dividend yield 3.11% 1.99%
Option life 3 years&F 1.06 years
Hi R F
Risk free rate 4.18% 3.76%

B B ) =R



24. Available-for-Sale Investments

25.

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, a net loss arising on
change in fair value of approximately HK$9,688,000 for the
available-for-sale investments were recognized in investment
revaluation reserve, representing the net effect of the gain on
fair value change of HK$23,215,000 for listed equity securities
and the loss on fair value change of HK$32,903,000 for unlisted
debt securities. An impairment loss of HK$72,383,000 for a listed
equity security was directly recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, a net loss arising on
change in fair value of approximately HK$47,231,000 for the
available-for-sale investments were recognized in investment
revaluation reserve, representing the net effect of the loss on fair
value change of HK$34,902,000 for listed equity securities and
the loss on fair value change of HK$12,329,000 for unlisted debt
securities. A cumulative loss of HK$13,120,000 on fair value of
listed equity securities was removed from reserve and recognized
in the consolidated income statement during the year while
an additional impairment loss of HK$32,631,000 was directly

recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Payments for Acquisition of Long-Term
Investments

The amount as at 31 March 2007 represented the refundable
deposits paid for the acquisition of certain interests in port
business, water supply business, sand mining business and
the exploitation right for river sand business (the “Potential
Investments”) at a payment of HK$35,000,000, HK$35,000,000,
HK$25,000,000 and HK$50,000,000, respectively. These
payments would be refundable from the counter parties if the
terms and conditions had not been concluded within one year
after the payments made by the Group.

24,

25.
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25.

26.

Payments for Acquisition of Long-Term
Investments (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the acquisition of water
supply and sand mining business were completed and the
corresponding deposits of HK$35,000,000 and HK$25,000,000
were formed part of settlement of consideration for acquisition
of subsidiaries. Details of these are set out in note 47.

The remaining payments of HK$85,000,000 were refunded to the
Group as the conditions had not been fulfilled by other vendors

in accordance with the agreements.

Deposit Paid for Acquisition of
Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2007, the amount represented the deposits paid
for acquisition of 100% equity interest in Goal Wisdom Limited.
Goal Wisdom Limited is an investment holding company with its
subsidiary engaging in business of catering and entertainment
operations and related management. During the year, the
acquisition was cancelled because of certain conditions had not
been fulfilled by the vendor, including the requirement for the
land use right related to a piece of land located in the PRC to be
obtained by the subsidiary of Goal Wisdom Limited. The vendor
refunded the amount of HK$50,000,000 to the Group during the
year.

25.

26.
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27. Conversion Options Embedded in 27. A R EE 2 AR

Convertible Notes

2008 2007
LTV N -—zzix
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH FHT

The amount was analyzed for reporting FHEHREOMIEL DN
purposes as: ZEER

Non-current asset ERBEE

Current asset mENEE

7,223 52,070
4,127 .

11,350 52,070

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of certain convertible notes
subscribed by the Group and are measured at fair value using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, at initial recognition and at
each balance sheet date. The debt element of those convertible
notes are classified under available-for-sale investment.

As explained in note 24(c), the Group subscribed SCL 2009 during
the year ended 31 March 2008 and an amount of HK$624,000
was recognized as conversion options embedded in convertible
notes which was measured at fair value at initial recognition.
During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group also recognized
a decrease in fair value changes of approximately HK$38,327,000
(2007: HK$187,131,000) in consolidated income statement.

An amount of HK$4,127,000 was classified under current
assets as the maturity date of the related convertible notes is in
September 2008.

Details of the method and assumptions applied for the valuation
of the conversion options embedded in convertible notes are set
out in note 24.

ARMERE A BEEANEERE
ZETARBREBEZHBELD
RERERFEREEZERERRAN
R-HRHTHREERANRTFE
AEH RFAABRREZEHED
BESAHEERE -

B4 RBEE=ZZ T
NFZA=Z+—RHLEE A&

EREEEHE_TThL MAH
624,000 7L v © EER AT W]
ZREBE TRERNERER
ANFEEFE BE_ZEZENF=A
S+ —HLEFE AEBTREE
W 25 R R #938,327,0008 L (=&
T+ 4F 1 187,131,000 7T ) 2 A F
BE2RED -

4,127,000 T2 & BEBRARDE
ErRERE@ LBEEMNDH
BE-_ZZNFNA -

ARMEBZABEGERRBZ
TAERBRFENM 24
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28. Convertible Note Receivable from

an Associate/Conversion Options
Embedded in Convertible Note
Receivable from an Associate

The convertible note is held by CEL.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, CEL entered into an
agreement to subscribe for a convertible note (“Wing On CN")
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000 from
Wing On (a 20.36% associate of CEL). The Wing On CN carries
interest at 2% per annum and will mature on 7 June 2011.
The initial conversion price is HK$0.79 per share (subject to
adjustments). Unless previously converted or lapsed by Wing On,
Wing On will redeem the Wing On CN on 7 June 2011 at the
redemption amount which is 110% of the principal amount of
the outstanding Wing On CN. The effective interest rate of Wing
On CNis 9% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, CEL converted the
Wing On CN with principal amount of HK$237,000,000 into
300,000,000 shares in Wing On. The carrying amount of
convertible note receivable from an associate amounting to
HK$196,622,000 and the conversion options embedded in
convertible note receivable from an associate amounting to
HK$54,882,000 were transferred to interests in associates upon

conversion of Wing On CN.

As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of convertible
note receivable from an associate and the conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable from an associate
amounting to HK$55,521,000 and HK$1,119,000 respectively

were classified as held for sale, as explained in note 11.

28. B — RS B
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A2 0] R E R & A #54,882,000
Bz B — BB E AR 2] KR
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28. Convertible Note Receivable from

an Associate/Conversion Options
Embedded in Convertible Note
Receivable from an Associate (Continued)

The Group measured the Wing On CN in accordance with
HKAS 39. The debt element of the Wing On CN were measured
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost and
classified as convertible note receivable from an associate on
the consolidated balance sheet. The conversion option element
of Wing On CN were measured initially and subsequently at fair
value in accordance HKAS 39 and classified as conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivable from an associate.
During the year, an increase in fair value of HK$11,359,000
(2007: a decrease of HK$18,396,000) for conversion option
element were recognized in the consolidated income statement.

The debt component of Wing On CN was accounted for as loans
and receivables while the conversion options element of Wing On
CN was accounted for as derivative financial instruments.

Details of the method and assumptions used in the Black-Scholes
option pricing model in valuing the convertible options embedded
in convertible note receivable from an associate are as follows:
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23 March 2006

(date of
subscription) 31 March 2007 [=50 ' Eld Al

ZBEXRE
=Z=A=t+t=H ZETLHF Z2E\F
Wing On CN AXRAZBERE (k@AY =A=+-A° +-8
Stock price % & HK$0.7178 7 HK$0.6058 7t | L&l vizr
Conversion price HIRE HK$0.797% 7T HK$0.797% 7T HK$0.797% 7T
Volatility IR 96.47% 89% 50.93%
Dividend yield BX — — 2.63%
Option life HA 4 <F A 4.97 years 4 3.95 years 3.19 years £
Risk free rate £ 7 [ A R 4.39% 3.96% 1.53%
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29. Deposit for Acquisition of Interests in

Properties

The amount represented initial payments incurred in connection
with the acquisition of properties interest located in Shanghai,
PRC (the “Project”), as part of the assets acquired resulting from
the acquisition of Group Dragon Investment Group Limited (“GDI
Group”), as set out in note 47(ii).

Prior to being acquired by the Company, GDI Group entered into
a conditional agreement with a third party to acquire the interest
in properties in a parcel of land situated in Shanghai, PRC and
the 24-storey building being erected upon the land together
with 2 levels of underground carparks for a consideration of
RMB450,000,000 (approximately HK$424,528,000). An initial
payment of RMB58,000,000 (approximately HK$58,830,000) was
paid to the vendor pursuant to the conditional agreement.

However, the conditions stated in the agreement were not fulfilled
by the vendor and the GDI Group commenced legal proceeding’s
against the vendor. On 22 June 2006, the People’s High Court
of Shanghai City ruled the case in favour of the GDI Group and
demanded the vendor to continue fulfilling its obligations to
refund the deposits to the GDI Group under the agreement.

On 12 July 2007, an independent third party offered to
acquire the Project from the Group and made an deposit of
RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to HK$70,000,000) into an escrow
account held under the People’s High Court of Shanghai City as

protection to the Group.

The Project was held by CEL and the amount was classified as

held for sale as explained in note 11.

Subsequent to 31 March 2008, the disposal of the Project was
completed and the deposit of RMB58,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$60,013,000) was refunded to the Group.
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W= \i A=+—8%2
% HEZHEBEEEEK ARK
58,000,00 07‘5<$HEE. 260,013,000 /&
TIZESERETAER -

'JH

n



30. Other Asset

The amount as at 31 March 2007 was related to a land
development project of ¥R /& T 8 1L & % &= % E located in
Long Shan Development Area, Doumen District, Zhuhai City, the
PRC. The Group made a payment of HK$229,288,000 to PRC
government in return for the exclusive development right to the
project and the right to obtain the land for the development.
The Group is also entitled to sell the rights to the investors
at consideration to be agreed among themselves. The Group

acquired the other asset for resale purpose.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of the other asset at a
consideration of HK$130,000,000, and accordingly, a gross loss of
HK$99,288,000 (net amount of the revenue of HK$130,000,000
and cost of sales of HK$229,288,000) were recognized in the
consolidated income statement.
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0. HEE

R_ZTLtF=ZRA=+—H %%
CREAR—BURPBEKEM M
EELERERCKEMEILESEE
X¥ELTHBEEEE - AKEEMRF
Bl IR T 7 154 229,288,000 7T © LA
SZEB 2 EBREENRIREZ
THERER G 2R - REB I
ERIEZEFHECREBHLSETR
HETHRESE - AEBEDREEM
BEFEBEERR -

REE  AEBHEBIE=HEFR]
&k AR A {E 130,000,0007% 7T
EHMEE  AREEKERE
85 18 42 %899,288,000 75 7T ( 4& #1
B U2 2% 130,000,000 78 7T K $5 & AKX
229,288,000 7T ) °
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31. Trade and Other Receivables and

Prepayments

/S

2008
—BBNE
HK$°000
FBT

38,889

(36,503)

2,386

19,453
21,019
14,191
10,186

67,235

Trade receivables =) e
Less: allowance for doubtful debts on trade 5 : & 5 fE k218
receivables REEEE

Consideration receivables for disposal of HEMNE QR ERARE
subsidiaries (note) (K7at)

Other receivables H h pE W 5K IE

Interest receivables FE U FI B

Deposits and prepayments Ze RIENRIE

Trade receivables included in disposal group 5t A 45 {E§4 & 2 H &= 48 B

held for sale (note 11)
Other receivables included in disposal group
held for sale (note 11)

ZBSRWHIE (KaE11)

FEARHEIHE 2 B HE R

ZE MW SRIAE (FraE11)

Note: The amount was related to the consideration receivable for disposal

of Disposed Business and the amount was fully settled subsequent

to balance sheet date.

3. ESFRHEMEBERARERAE

2007
=
HK$'000
THRT

40,003

(38,902)

1,101

295,618
47,736
36,946

7,772

389,173

ZECHARLELEXHT 2 RKK

B UCOREERKZHES -
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31. Trade and Other Receivables and B.ESREMEBWRRERTE
Prepayments (Continued) TRIE(F)
The Group allows an average credit period of one to two months AEBMESHEF FHIE 1/\ —ZmM
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade BAZEESH NELEER EBSH
receivable net of allowance for doubtful debts at the respective JEE L 5% T8 40 BR R R B 1%2 51?&% PaR)il
balance sheet date: W

2008 2007

—EBEBNF —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHEx FHET

Not yet due X E) A 914 1,101

Overdue between one and two months wA— =R E A 550 —

Overdue more than two months 180 HA 8 18 R (I A 991 —

2,455 1,101

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess and EREWARFERA - AEBEEFT

understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines BRTHRECREPZEEERLE
its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each customer are EEHEERE - !LL%JE'Z EER

reviewed regularly. BHEIEEBHRE

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors AEBECvESRRFIBEHRBIERE

with aggregate carrying amount of HK$991,000 (2007: Nil) U BR FXBR 1 4215 991,000 L (= F

which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group THF:E) ZEXRBEREBRA

has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold R mH - AN S E IR R EE

any collateral over these balances. The average age of these BitiRgE AEENERZSH
receivables is one to two months (2007: one to two months). MRFAEMERGD - ZFRKFHIE

ZFHEER—EMEA(ZZEZ
tEF:—EMEA) -

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired 2EHERRIEER 2 BYEIE 2 BRER

2008 2007
SIINN -—TTi
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

Overdue more than two months %0 BA %8 @ N 1@ A 991 —
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TENF=AS+—AUEE

31. Trade and Other Receivables and 3. ESREMBWRERTE
. = =
Prepayments (Continued) T RIE (48
The Group has provided fully for all receivables over one year REBEWRFTE B ABER— EZ
because management considers those amounts are generally not JE W R IE 2 B uﬁ'kﬁéfﬁ R A =
recoverable. BER 7’% ZERE —REZEK @ °
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade BRI RBEBRERBZE
receivables
2008 2007
—EBBNF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$000
TERT FAET
Balance at beginning of the year F R 38,902 73,313
Exchange realignment E o 3f 2 546 —
Amounts written off as uncollectible Wi AT WE &5 (PX:17)] (34,411)
Amounts recovered during the year FRWE 58 (88) —
Balance at end of the year F R 36,503 38,902
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other Hi W ITB REEREH 2 &
receivables
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FAET
Balance at beginning of the year F Y 1,450 1,450
Impairment losses recognized on other ohE fb e U FRTE HE R
receivables ZBEREE 8,459 .
Amounts recovered during the year FRUE 458 (1,450) —
Balance at end of the year F IR 4 8,459 1,450
The impairment losses recognized on trade and other receivable is HE D KEAMERRIERR 2R E
mainly because of those debtors have financial difficulties. EETZRABVBEH®H 2EBHBA

PTER ©



32.

33.
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Investments Held for Trading 2. FEEERE
Investments held for trading at the balance sheet dates include: REZER  HIEEBEZREBRRE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Listed securities: Em&EsE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLW2BRAEAES 527,298 569,131
— Equity securities listed elsewhere REAMM T FH 2 RAES 4,370 29,617
531,668 598,748
Investments held for trading included in SFAFBEEE ZHEHRI 2
disposal group held for sale (note 11) BIEEERE (Kfat11)
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBEBEMZRAEFE 58,522 —
— Equity securities listed elsewhere —REMM S FTH 2 IRAEEH 27,396 —
85,918 —
Deposits Paid for Acquisition of B UWEFFEEEZREMN

Investments Held for Trading

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group entered
into conditional agreements to acquire 10,563,715 shares of
Guangzhou Global Telecom Inc., a company whose shares were
subsequently listed on Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of
United States of America on 17 May 2007, for a consideration
of US$19,015,000 (equivalent to HK$146,578,000) which is
based on the subscription price under the initial public offer of
Guangzhou Global Telecom Inc.. An amount of US$9,507,000
(equivalent to HK$73,289,000) was paid as deposit upon entering

the agreements.

During the year, the acquisition were completed and the related
deposits were transferred to investments held for trading

accordingly.

ZEE

HE-_ZZTtLtF=HA=+—H1
FE - AXEEEITBGEHE
LA Y B& Guangzhou Global Telecom
nc.(—EHEBKHEZRR_ZTZ L
FEATEtAREZESBIN F =&
B M 2 27 )10,563,715 % fx
7 K {8 /19,015,000 % 7t ( 8
% 7146,578,000 & 7T ) * J1 1R &
Guangzhou Global Telecom Inc. & X
PNHEENRBEET - Ril &
B 32 1% £9,507,000 % 7T (B &
473,289,000/ 7T ) °

AEE  WBDETK  HERS
AMEREREEEZRE -
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34. Convertible Notes Designated at Fair

Value Through Profit or Loss

As at 31 March 2007, the amount represented the fair value
of the convertible note issued by Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (“Mei Ah CN”) and Golden Harvest Holdings Limited
("Golden Harvest CN"”) amounted to HK$55,526,000 and
HK$67,023,000 respectively.

The Mei Ah CN carries interest at 4 % per annum with maturity
date on 10 August 2009, and can be redeemed at 106 % of the
principal amount. The Golden Harvest CN carries interest at 4 %
per annum with maturity date on 21 August 2008, and can be
redeemed at 104 % of the principal amount.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group subscribed
two convertible notes with principal amount of HK$40,000,000
from Wonson International Holdings Limited (“Wonson”) and
HK$118,275,000 from China Star Entertainment Limited (“China
Star”). The shares of Wonson and China Star are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group designated them as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss because these convertible notes
meet the criteria for the category of financial assets designated
at fair value through profit and loss. After the subscription, the
Group fully converted the convertible notes of Wonson and China
Star during the year. A gain amounting to HK$434,221,000,
representing the difference between the fair value of the shares
converted and the initial cost of the convertible notes paid by the
Group during the year, has been recognized in the consolidated
income statement. The shares converted are then classified as
investments held for trading.

During the year, the gain on change in fair value of other
convertible notes designated at fair value through profit and loss
of which the fair value is measured under Black-Scholes option
pricing model, was HK$16,301,000 (2007: HK$16,816,000).

3. EEERFEIEKRILF A

BRzA ZBRRE

R-ZBEZLF=ZA=Z+—H " &%=
EEBETRELENEEERA
AREARARLEX(KE)ARA
Al 9 Bl #& 17 A ¥ {8 7% 55,526,000 /&
7T %67,023,000 % 7T 2 A K 2 E &
(EEAHBRERIRIZFRAL
BMERE]) -

EDRARBREBUNFRIER S
RZZEZAFNANATRHIH A
BAEF106%E M - 57 KA 5
EBEUNFRAIEFE RZFTZN
FNRZ+—HEH ATREASHE
104% f& [E] o

BHE - ZEZENF=ZA=1+—HILHF
B AEERMKBEBEEEEGRA
AR EFEEEEERA
A(HPHEE]) DR RBEARASEE
40,000,000 /& 7T & 118,275,000 /& 7T
ZRMAHBER - MK RFAEE
RO RERIET - ARZE
ARBREBRRESEER L TFEIER
Vet ABm —HUBEE &Y -
WALEBECETZSEARLREER
BATEIERL G ABR ZHBE
EoRKEE XEERFAZH
HBMEEFREZ ] L BER -
7 81434,221,0008 T 2 Wz (BN E
HBmBHh s A FEERASEERF
AT 2 Al R ERB S KA 2 =
FIERGKAEBERER BRI
BRNDEEBERFIEEERRE -

FA - HMETERAFEIERILE
ANERZAHBREBRZ AT EE

Y /16,301,000 T(Z T T £
% :16,8160008 L) - Z A F &
Ui hm —sFRET I EBRA G

s

E_ o



34. Convertible Notes Designated at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued)
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4. B AFEIERILETE SR
NEEB2A ABRERE(F)

UJJ

EERAFEIRLFAREZA

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the 15

convertible notes designated at fair value through profit or loss

are as follows:

(1) Valuation of debt component

ARMBBREERB BN -8
g EERAPERZITERR
AW

(1) BB ZHE

The fair value of debt element was calculated based on

the present value of contractually determined stream of

future cash flows discounted at the required yield, which

was determined with reference to the credit rating of the

convertible notes issuer and remaining time to maturity.

The effective interest rate of the debt component of each

convertible note as at date of subscription, 31 March 2007
and 31 March 2008 are as follows:

BB RAFEDIBRES K
ErzBREERERMAT
Wa xR HEFE  Big
BeRaNKE2ENLBE
BETAZERTRRBRT
ZEmEREMEBETE - RAREA
BT+ F=H=+—H
R_ZEZNF=ZA=+—8"
BARBEBRERI D 2 BR
MEWT :

Date of
Convertible note Date of issue Subscription 31 March 2007 =8\ El{dq i}
—EELHF —EENF
ARBRE BHTAH RBEAH =ZA=1+t—-R0 ==
Mei Ah CN 11 August 2006 10% 9.75% 9.75%
%ﬁﬂ%@%% :gg/\ij\ﬂ"f' H
Golden Harvest CN 22 August 2006 10% 9.75%

EENGIBTE: T

—EERFNA-+=H
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34. B FEHS Ejﬂfié‘

34. Convertible Notes Designated at Fair i
WEREZARIREE (&

*
Value Through Profit or Loss (Continued) )

(2)  Valuation of conversion option element (2) RS zEE
BERAFEIELGABR
ZARBMBEBEZ HRMERDE
ARhr — SR HAEEE

Black-Scholes option pricing model is used for valuation for
conversion option element of convertible notes designated

at fair value through profit or loss. The inputs into the

model of each convertible note as at date of subscription BAEE RREEHREE
and each of the year ended 31 March 2007 and 2008 was ZEELFRZZFEENFE=A
as follows: =+—BLEEF BAHBKRE
Bt AR Z8EBOT
11 August 2006
(date of
subscription) 31 March 2007 [=50\ A
—EEXRE
NA+—H —EELF ZZENE
Mei Ah CN XERARBRE (RBEBEY) =ZA=+—8 [ =i
Stock price % & HK$0.38 87  HK$0.3578 7T [ LLElis
Conversion price HirE HK$0.44 B 7t  HK$0.44 BT | GLEliNE0m
Volatility R 67.8% 64.58% 90.04%
Dividend yield B= 1.03% 0.37% 1.45%
Option life A4 F A 1.5 years 1.18 years & 0.68 year F
Risk free rate = Bz 1| = 4.06% 3.76% 0.91%
22 August 2006
(date of
subscription) 31 March 2007  [=5 0\ Eld Al
—EBEXREF
NBE=+=8H —EELHF —EENF
Golden Harvest CN ERALBER (REAH) =ZA=+—8 =N
Stock price % & HK$0.158 & 7T CICERS-Tl HK$2:88 76 7t
Conversion price HInE HK$0.22 & 7T HK$2.2 & 7T HK$2.2 & 5T
Volatility R 50.35% 61.3% 49.83%
Dividend yield Bx Zero & Zero & Zero &
Option life HA 4 <F A 2 years & 1.39 years 0.39 year
Risk free rate 4 3 b B & 3.97% 3.79% 0.80%
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35. Short-term Loans Receivable 35. EWEEE R

2008
—EENF
HK$°000
FE T

Secured loans receivable (note) FEUW B IR E R (M aE)
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt W REREE

172,906
(68,294)

104,612

Secured loans receivable included in disposal 3t A &9 A EHHE L&

group classified as held for sales B E KB R E R
(note 11) (note) (Kta11) (HizE)

A Rl

21,627

Note: The loans were secured by (i) shares in land/property holding
companies; (ii) shares in companies engaged in garment
manufacturing and (iii) listed securities.

The loans receivable carry interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus
2% to 3% (2007: Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 2% to 3%) and are
repayable within one year.

Movement of the allowance for doubtful debts on loans

2007
e g
HK$'000
FBT

381,315
(72,766)

308,549

Kret - ZERA TR EER  ()FF
B MEHDBEOERD
(i 35 PR R B ) R A D

Ko (i) £ A& 7%

EREREESRERERNX
MHE3I%(ZEZTLF: &
BEREEFNEN2%E3I%) 7
B WAER-—FRNEE-

EREFNORERGBEZD

2008

=L LI
HK$°000
Fi#

receivable
Balance at beginning of the year F )48
Amounts recovered during the year FARU O 58

72,766
(CX.Yp))

Balance at the end of the year FRE

68,294

2007
—EELF
HK$000
FBT

78,491
(5,725)

72,766
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36.

37.

Amount(s) Due from (to) Related
Companies

The amounts are unsecured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime

Rate plus 2% and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2007, the related companies are the companies in
which the ultimate holding company has beneficial interest.

As at 31 March 2008, the related companies are (i) the Company’s
substantive shareholder and (ii) the Companies in which the

Company’s substantial shareholder has beneficial interest.

Margin Loans Receivable/Payable

During the year ended 31 March 2007, margin loans receivable
and payable are generated from brokers’ business, aged less than
one month and bear interest ranging from Hong Kong Prime Rate
plus 3.5% to 5%.

Movement of the allowance for margin loans receivable

36.

37.

A () BBE R R KA

ZREAEER  RBEERERF
EM2%EHE - WEARBREERER -

W-EE+F=-A=+—0 B
REERRERD RIES B ES
HAF o

RZEZENGF=ZA=+—8 " @&
NAEOARF W EBRE K>i)A
NAMTERFEEERERZOD
E—‘I o

W, FENFFRER

RE-FTLF=A=+—BIF
E - ERFRRRREN TR R
REERET R OR—MEA
12 7 18 5 B OB R K 13.5% E5% 3t
B o

ERAFREREBED

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$‘'000 HK$'000

FTER FAET

Balance at beginning of the year F )48 2,624 2,624
Impairment loss recognized ERRNIREEE 1,435 —
Balance at the end of the year F R 4,059 2,624
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38. Loans to Associates 3. B FHMENTER

2008 2007
—EENF e g
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FBT

Loans to associates BT EENTIER 380,931 372,072

Loans to associates included in disposal group 5t A 19 A {ES & HE 48R

classified as held for sale (note 11) Wi THE RARIER

(Kiat11) 36,610 —
The amounts are unsecured, bears interest at Hong Kong Prime ZERAEER REBREEF
Rate plus 2% to 3% per annum (2007: Hong Kong Prime Rate EM2%ZE3%(ZZTZTLF: BB
plus 2% to 3%) and repayable on demand or within one year. EEBEEMEM2%E3%) 5B - I

AREBRER—FRNEE -
39. Bank Balances and Cash VRITHEERE R

The bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term bank ROTHEFLRRSBEASEEAR
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less held by JESRRINBEA A=A
the Group. The bank balances carries interest at 1.5% to 5.3% NZBEBRITER - RITEFIREF
per annum (2007: 3.5% to 4.6% per annum). B15%&E53% (ST +F: £8

3.5% % 4.6%) 5T & o
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40. Trade and Other Payables and Accrual 40.
Trade payables B 5 MR
Accrued expenses JEH R X
Interest payables FEAS FI B
Disposals received (note) B & R (M aE)
Others Hth

EZNREMEIRERE
T RIB

2008 2007
SLEVVE -—TTis
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT Tz

45,569 17,140
14,077 15,224

2,776 26,361
30,000 —
16,901 31,998

109,323 90,723

Trade payables included in disposal group
classified as held for sales (note 11)

Other payables included in disposal group
classified as held for sales (note 11)

AR BFFIHE L EMER
BB S ENRIE (AE11)
AR BFFIHE L EMER

63,501 —

BE bR R (KfaE11) 27,453 —

90,954 —

The following is an aged analysis of trade

payable at respective balance sheet date:

Not yet due
Overdue within one month
Overdue between one to two months

Overdue more than two months

REZEER  BFEMNFE
ZEREE DR
AEH

B R —1E A
BH—=mEA
8 B R B W M8 A

96,921 17,140
691 —
442 —

11,016 —

109,070 17,140

Note: The amount represented a deposit received upon entering into a

conditional agreement to dispose of the 29.2% interest in CEL as

explained in note 11.

Wit - ZemBm AR N - B
ECEL 292% &= 5] 2 B & 4
R NIES -



41. Amount Due to Ultimate Holding 4. BANRAKERATRE

42.

Company

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the amount due to ITC
Corporation Limited, the former ultimate holding company,
was reclassified to amounts due to related companies upon the
change in shareholding in the Company.

The amount is unsecured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime
Rate plus 2% and repayable on demand.

Borrowings

BE=
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%%A¢:ﬁ:+—a¢¢

B EBANA&KERIARELE

E@AR D MEF$ Tk%m

PROEFHEABRNEEATR

IH o

ZRBEBAEER  RESREE

RIN2%EHE - WAR B REEE
42. &5k

Borrowings comprise:

Bank borrowings
Other borrowings
Promissory note (note 48)

fERERE -

RT3
ﬁ{’ﬂfa A
A RE (Bit48)

Analyzed as:

Secured
Unsecured

DT

BHEA
EE R

The above amounts are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Over five years

FRRIEER U T EBEE -

—FRHERERE
—EWERN
GESES
BBAF

Amount due within one year under current

liabilities

Amount due after one year

2008 2007
LIV -z
HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THT
146,125 88,350
30,000 510,000
40,000 —
216,125 598,350
146,125 88,350
70,000 510,000
216,125 598,350
85,813 514,650
16,750 7,440
55,750 22,320
57,812 53,940
216,125 598,350
(85,813) (514,650)
130,312 83,700



165

Hanny Holdings Limited $#&%E@ARA =]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

42. Borrowings (Continued)

43,

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate bank and other borrowings
and the contractual maturity dates are as follows:

42. B (&)

AEBZERBRITREMEREA
WERBEMT

2008 2007

L IYVN -TTi 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Fixed-rate bank and other borrowings which  — 4 R 3| H1 7 £ &

due within one year H g

510,000

The ranges of effective interest rates during the year (which are
equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s variable-rate
borrowings are as follows:

AEEAFEEEBRZERM X
(HERANME)BELDT

2007
i

Effective interest rate: BERRE -
Variable-rate borrowings F BRI

The promissory note carried interest at 5% per annum and
repayable within one year.

Bank Overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and carry interest at
prevailing market rate ranging from 5% to 6% per annum (2007:
6% to 7% per annum).

3.03% to £ 9.75% 5.03% to £10%

A RBRIEFRER5%TE - WA
R—FREE -

43. SR1ITE X

TBESXEARERBEE K
%vamiﬁ*'J@ﬂ$¢,ﬁ\5%§6%
(ZZEZTLF: FB6%ET%) &7t
é\ o
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44. Share Capital 44. PR 7K
Number of
shares Value
B 7 8 B BE
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEOIBILHE AR
Authorized: EERA
At 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 R-ZEBEZELF=ZA=+—H
EZFEENF=A
=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRBRRKRA
At 1 April 2006 R-ZEZFWNA—H 237,253,402 2,372
Issue upon scrip dividend PARE AR B 35 1T 2,367,102 24
Exercise of share options 17 158 B i 3,250,000 33
Issue of share for acquisition of GDI Group 3t U B B¥ %5 &= [F 217 I8 19 9,926,228 99
Conversion of convertible loan note RBMA BB RER 27,608 —
At 31 March 2007 RZEZELF=A=+T—H 252,824,340 2,528
Issue upon scrip dividend PARR R B 37T 7,075,791 71
Placement of shares (note a) Bl &R n (Hfata) 544,500,000 5,445
Issue of bonus shares by capitalization of BB R ERE R ET
the share premium account (note b) ALRx (Bfath) 3,674,892,976 36,749
Issue of shares (note c) BTG (Matc) 499,000,000 4,990
Conversion of convertible notes (note d) HMA LM ER (Watd) 34,530,202 345
At 31 March 2008 R-ZZEZENF=ZA=+—H 5,012,823,309 50,128

Notes:

(a)

On 11 April 2007, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC") and a placing agent (i) for
placement of 43,500,000 existing shares at the price of HK$3.40
per share on behalf of ITC to independent third parties; (ii) ITC
agreed to subscribe for 43,500,000 new shares at the price of
HK$3.40 per share.

On 29 October 2007, the Company issued 501,000,000 new shares
at the price of HK$0.29 per share to independent third parties
pursuant to the placing agreement entered into with a placing
agent.

ZEX

(a)

RZZFEZELEFEA+ -8 AR
EEFECESEBRAR (12
B RRERIEIT RS
HFoOOULETR34 0B TREED
¥ M %8 3 % = J7 I 543,500,000
RIEERG : (VEFLEREMN
1% 3.407% 7T 52 B 43,500,000 A% %
B 17 -

RZZEZEEF+AZT LB K
AEIRBHEEERBIT I ZES
Wik AERO29EBTHMBIE
= 77 % 77501,000,000 J& #1 B& 17 ©
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44. Share Capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 11 April 2007, the Company announced that a bonus issue of
new shares be issued to the shareholders whose names appeared
on the register of members of the Company on 21 May 2007
by way of capitalization of the share premium account on the
basis of ten bonus shares for every one existing share held by the
shareholders on the record date. A total of 3,007,268,390 new
bonus shares were issued on 6 June 2007.

On 27 July 2007, the Company announced that a bonus issue of
new shares be issued to the shareholders whose names appeared
on the register of members of the Company on 10 September
2007 by way of capitalization of the share premium account on
the basis of one bonus share for every five existing shares held by
the shareholders on the record date. A total of 667,624,586 new
bonus shares were issued on 24 September 2007.

On 29 October 2007, the Company issued 499,000,000 new shares
at HK$0.29 per share pursuant to a subscription agreement entered
into with ITC Corporation Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The proceeds were used to provide additional working
capital for the Company.

During the year, convertible loan notes with principal amount of
HK$64,025,940 were converted into 34,530,202 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company.

All shares issued during the year were ranked pari passu with

other shares in issue in all respects.

FENFZAS+—AILFE

44, BRA (&)

et

(b)

(%)

RZZEZLFEFWA+ B AR
RIEMABRO EERE RIS
= KA aEfj’?ElHﬂHx%ﬁﬁE’Jt—
P& B 13 90 I + PROAT AR A B 4
ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬂﬂx%ﬁé\_g’%@tiﬁﬂ
= E=R VNI =
WERE R -ZFZLFRAR
H - &2 F) E 17 $£3,007,268,390
JBCRT ALY

Wl

E_VVtitﬂ ++B8 &

AEMmMUARMNDEERE XL
EﬁyuﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁME
ARBH DR —RARKR BE%E
BOIHARTR-_ZEZTEFNA
+RBHNAREKRESRMA
R -RZEZELFLAZ+TT
H @ &ARQAE #17#£667,624,586
% 374 A% -

RZZEELHF+A=-+ B
NARBEEARARAAEZRE
EHECEEEBRAR Y
REWZE - ULEIR029E L ETT
499,000,000 f& #T A% 17  FT 15 FIAE
BEREA QB EINEG $§i°

F RN K& B A64,025940 B
THALBREREBED ABRAE
34,530,202 % AN A 7] & AR E {E0.01
78 T B 3 AR

Emmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

i’],\,\ma?ﬁé B 1

Bk d

o

FERSHE



45. Convertible Loan Notes

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company issued
convertible loan notes with principal amount of HK$770,973,000
for the acquisition of GDI Group. The fair value of the liability
component at the date of issue is HK$627,636,000. The
convertible loan notes carry interest at 2% per annum and will
be matured on 15 June 2011. The convertible loan notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The initial conversion price
is HK$9 per share and subject to anti-dilutive adjustments.
The conversion price of the convertible loan notes have been
adjusted from HK$9 per share to HK$0.81 per share and further
to HK$0.675 per share as a result of the bonus issue of share as
set out in note 44(b). The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 6.6% per annum.

Unless previously converted by the convertible note holder, the
Company will redeem the convertible loan notes on the maturity
date at the 100% of the principal amount of the convertible
notes then outstanding.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, convertible loan notes
with principal amount of HK$64,025,940 were converted into
34,530,202 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan
notes for the year is set out below:
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BHE_ZZ+F=A=+—BItH
B ARrRRBEEEERTAR
© 88770,973,0007% 7T ) A] IR E K
EE-AGEHEIRETHHZAF
8 /5627,636,00078 7T ° A] {2 E X
ZEREFB 2% E RZF——
FRNATHRBEB AIHBRERE
BUBTHE BRELBREAER
IOBTL  AEAREEAEBMER -
JHBEREEN L BRERERI
BEILTAREEFR08IETL HEHA
By sE44(0) Tl B ATALRR T 2 — 2 3
BEFRO675E T BEISH
EBRFNER66% °

BROFAI A B REFHA AR HA L
B [DAIRRRHREBBERER
HARBZALBEENZHAS
HERULBRERER -

HE-_ZTTN\FE=ZA=+—HIF
JER » A4 ¥64,025940 %8 T 7y 7]
HBMERERD KR R34,530,202
BRAQXRESREEN B THER
A% o

FRTRAEABEROE EBHH 2
BT

2007
—EENE ZETLHF
HK$’'000 HK$000
FERT FAET
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 4 %8z E & 659,341 —
Issue of convertible notes BITRAIH M EE = 627,636
Interest charge U B F) B, 37,778 31,931
Interest paid B X F A (15,355) (24)
Conversion Wi (53,988) (202)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREREE 627,776 659,341
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46. Deferred Tax 46. IE TE 1B
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RENEBRZEZRLEHRIBAEG
recognized and movements thereon during the year: (EE)RHESHNOT
Revaluation  Fair value
of adjustment Accelerated
investment  on business tax
property combination depreciation Others  Tax losses Total
RENE EBaHH mEHSE
B ATEAE E Hit HEFE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET T FEL FEL T
At 1 April 2006 R-ZZEZ ENA—A 6,298 - 146 213 (332) 6,325
Currency realignment IhEEE — — - 213) - (213)
Charge (credit) to the consolidated income £ ARG A I RPNk
statement for the year (note 12) (AR (Hzt12) 462 — 666 — (1,132) (4
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WERBARBES
(note 47) (H5t47) — 28,675 - - — 28,675
At 31 March 2007 R-ZEE+F=A=1-H 6,760 28,675 812 — (1,464) 34,783
Charge (credit) to the consolidated income  ERR G A RERF MG
statement for the year (note 12) (AR (K##12) 17,787 — 64 — (14) 17,837
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARRESE
(note 47) (Kizt47) — 30,902 - - — 30,902
At 31 March 2008 RZZENEZA=1—-H 24,547 59,577 876 — (1,478) 83,522
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46. Deferred Tax (Continued) 46. IEER IR (&)
For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred REEBEBERZZVME &TE
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the EREEERABEBEE THHE - UT
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting 5V B 75 BB S AR R 2 B TR TR 4 R
purposes: b2k

2008 2007

—BEN\E —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E (1,478) (1,464)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRIBEEE 85,000 36,247
83,522 34,783

The Group has unused tax losses of HK$388,591,000 at RZZEZENF=A=+—H K
31 March 2008 (2007: HK$179,513,000) available for offset SERAARYERIENO R
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognized FH 7% 78 /&5 18 /5388,591,0007%8 T ( =
in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$8,330,000 at 31 March T F + F 179,513,000 & JT )
2008 (2007: HK$8,365,000) of such losses. No deferred tax has RZEENF=ZA=+—8" %
been recognized in respect of the remaining HK$380,261,000 5 18 18,330,000 T (=Z T ZT &
at 31 March 2008 (2007: HK$171,148,000) due to the % : 8,365,000 7T ) 1 10 & B B i
unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses can be carried REEMBEE R_TEZNF
forward indefinitely. =RA=+—H BRKREBARX

RKaFMRR WARKEHREHEE
380,261,000 # L ( = & & + F ¢
171,148,000 % 7T ) MR IELE T IR o
ZEBEUERBALSE o
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47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2008

On 4 June 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire 59.75% interest in Regrowth Resources
Limited at a consideration of HK$80,000,000. Regrowth
Resources Limited is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of water supply in
the PRC. The acquisition was completed on 29 June 2007.

On 1 June 2007, the Group entered into an agreement to
acquire 100% interest in REME 22V E HBER A F
at a consideration of HK$90,000,000. REME S &M &
% B BR A ) is engaged in the sand mining business in the
PRC. The acquisition were completed on 29 June 2007.

The transactions has been accounted for using the purchase

method of accounting.

(i &
IIs

47. WEHEB 2 A

E-EENF=ZA=+—H
FE
RZZEZEELFA@MA -
REBITZIHBE UWKRE
80,000,000 /& 7t Yt B8 37 & & IR
AR A F59.75%HE 35 o ¥ 4
ERBABRRAAAREERA
A HMIBARERBEK S H
KEK - WEBER_ZTZTLF
ANAZTNAEEK -

RZEZE+LF A —H -
REBTLME URE
90,000,000 ST W IE R 2T =
ERMEBESZBERARZIK
B -REMEEEMBEZER
NANERVES - WEER
—ETEEFERNA-TNLBE®
}5}20

ZRXGEBPBEFHEAR -
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47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 47. WM B AR (&)
() For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued) )y BE-_ZZEN\F=-A=+—H

The net assets acquired in the transactions, and the ZRXGHBAZEEFERK
goodwill arising on the acquisition, are as follows: BFRIEEZEERENT :

Regrowth Resources Limited

HEERERLA RETESRHESERAT
Acquiree's Acquiree's
carrying carrying
amount  Provisional amount  Provisional Total
before fairvalue  Provisional before fairvalue  Provisional  provisional
combination  adjustments fairvalue combination adjustments fair value fair value
Lt it
whBr EEAVE BBy EEAVE EEATE
HEEE #E  EEAYE MEEE #E ERELAVE &g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TER TER Tin TAR TER Tirn

Net assets acquired: RENEERE -
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERERE 66,299 15,570 81,869 23,589 29N 26,500 108,369
Intangible assets BNAE - 44,867 44,867 - 60,263 60,263 105,130
Prepaid lease payments BRARERH 8,385 - 8,385 - - - 8,385
Inventories FE — — — 158 — 158 158
Trade and other receivables BSREMENFE 2,571 — 257 156 — 156 2727
Bank balances and cash BOEERRS 6,956 - 6,956 301 - 301 7,257
Trade and other payables BSREMERNE (7,144) - (7,144) (1,240) - (1,240) (8,384)
Deferred taxation BEHBE — (15,109) (15,109) — (15,793) (15,793) (30,902)
71,067 45,328 122,395 22,964 47,381 70,345 192,740
Minority interests SERFRER (49,264) - (49,264)
Goodwill BE 6,869 19,655 26,524
Total consideration arRE 80,000 90,000 170,000

Total consideration satisfied by: BREMZAAR

Payments and deposits for acquisition of Yt & B33 A B 31
long-term investments hike 35,000 25,000 60,000
Cash B 45,000 65,000 110,000
80,000 90,000 170,000

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: ~ WEFEANBE LR

FR
Cash and cash equivalents acquired fRENRER

Re%E 6,956 301 7,257
Cash consideration paid ERRERE (45,000) (65,000) (110,000)

(38,044) (64,699) (102,743)
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47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued)

The subsidiaries acquired did not make any significant

revenue, result or cash flow to the Group.

The initial accounting for the above acquisitions has
been determined provisionally, awaiting the receipt of
professional valuation in relation to certain underlying
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries. The
goodwill of HK$26,524,000 were mainly attributable to
the difference between the consideration and the fair value
of underlying assets and liabilities acquired, and since the
fair value of acquired assets and liabilities are determined
provisionally and therefore, the goodwill may be subject to

further changes upon finalization of initial accounting.

The directors are of the view that it is impracticable
to disclose the revenue and the result of the acquired
subsidiaries for the period from 1 April 2007 to 31 March
2008 as if the acquisition had been effected at the 1 April
2007 since such financial information was not provided by
the vendor.

(i &
IIs

47. WEBEMEB LR (&)

E-TENF=F=+—A
EE(E)

TR EARYERAE
BEREMERWA - FEXK

A =
HEReE °

FakENT T EHdREDR
ERET  EEFREATIKE
MEBARI-ETHBEEERK
BEMNEEMARERET BE
26,524,000 8 T EEZ KRB RKE
HEFWEEAEEERBAEN A
FTEZHEMNERE  ARAK
BHBAEELRAGBENATED
TRET BB EVLSE
STREENEATER TE—
WRE -

EERR ARBE S LERER
MBER  BMEERBRKE
MEBARR-_ZETLFMA—
FE-_ZTT/\F=ZA=+—H
HAFE RO W A Re R 48 (8 0 W BB
ER-_ZTTLFMA-—BAE
) °



47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007

47. WEE Y B 1 7

(ii)

The Group acquired a further 69.5% interest in the issued

share capital of the GDI Group for total consideration of
HK$751,353,000. GDI Group became a 98.9% subsidiary
of the Group. This transaction has been accounted for using

the purchase method of accounting.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the discount
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= (%&)

HE-TTLE=A=1-F
IEFE

7N £ B LA 42  {8751,353,000
BIIREBREEEC TR
KHE695%HE % » BEREE B K

ﬁ$$l?ﬁﬁ989%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
Al ZRZFERWEEFIEA
E\EO

RR 5PN EEFENIK

on acquisition arising, are as follows: BELENFTREROT :
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination Adjustments Fair value
& B AT
WEFWREE R NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Net assets acquired: WHENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - RBRRE 105,026 30,227 135,253
Interests in associates RN T W% 488,554 72,054 560,608
Convertible note receivable from [ U — R B & A 7] A]
an associate Riﬁzxﬁ% 238,116 — 238,116
Available-for-sale investments AHEHEERE 98,746 — 98,746
Deposits for acquisition of interests L 85 47 % 4 %5 B 4
in properties 2E® 56,295 — 56,295
Other asset Hith & & 229,288 — 229,288
Inventories T8 149 — 149
Amounts due from associates g NG E O 4,510 — 4,510
Short-term loan receivables FEWEHER 338,687 — 338,687
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b B U 56,639 — 56,639
Conversion options embedded in ~ EUW — Bt & A Al A —J
convertible note receivable from KR Z i 2 § g
an associate 63,038 — 63,038
Tax recoverable A 4 B F IR 126 — 126
Bank balances and cash WRITHEGFELAS 93,656 — 93,656
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b e 58 (27,323) — (27,323)
Amounts due to related companies J& {5 & :& 2 7] Z 18 (208,326) — (208,326)
Tax payables e HE B (14,126) — (14,126)
Obligation under a finance lease b & & & (124) — (124)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMIBAR (21,175) (7,500) (28,675)
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47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued)

Minority interest

Discount on acquisition

Reclassify from the Group’s
interests in associates

Revaluation increase in net assets
attributable to interests
previously held by the Group

Total consideration
Total consideration satisfied by:

Cash

Issue of convertible loan notes

Issue of shares

Expenses incurred for the
acquisition

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition:

Cash consideration paid

Cash and cash equivalents
acquired

Expenses paid for the acquisition

LIRS

Yo B 97
EFOBEAKER
BENRNES
AEBEZHFHALZ
BEEHCEEFE
EfHE M

mRE
BRENIATR

R
BUOAABMERER
ESnl)

WRBEE ZHX

WHEEEEENRS
R

ENRERE
BB R e R
Re%EH
B 4B R X2

47. WEMEB LR (&)

(ii)

RE-FTTLF=A=+-8

EEE (&)
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before
combination Adjustments Fair value
& OfA
BB H B
IREE A DNEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
1,501,756 94,781 1,596,537
(331,416)
(132,462)
(353,478)
(27,828)
751,353
17,915
687,188
38,733
7,517
751,353
(17,915)
93,656
(7,517)

68,224




47. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued)

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of GDI
Group, 9,926,228 ordinary shares of the Company with
par value of HK$0.01 each and convertible loan notes
with principal amount of HK$770,973,000 were issued.
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company,
determined using the published price available of the
date of acquisition, amounted to HK$38,733,000 and
the fair value of the convertible loan notes amounted
to HK$687,188,000, were determined by the valuation

performed by an independent valuer.

The consideration for the acquisition of the GDI Group were

determined based on the net assets value of the GDI Group.

The discount on acquisition of HK$132,462,000
were mainly attributable to (i) the difference between
the principal amount of convertible loan notes of
HK$770,973,000 and its fair value at date of completion
amounted to HK$687,188,000; (ii) the fair value adjustment
arising from the property, plant and equipments; and (iii)
the fair value adjustment related to the fair value of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the associates which are

shared by the Group.

GDI Group contributed revenue of HK$1,158,000 to the
Group's revenue and profit of HK$27,465,000 to the
Group's profit for the year between the date of acquisition
and the balance sheet date. The directors are of the view
that it is impracticable to disclose the revenue and the result
of GDI Group for the period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March
2007 as if the acquisition had been effected at the 1 April
2006 since such financial information was not provided by

the ex-shareholders of GDI Group.
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47. WIEMB AR (&)

(ii)

AN B) B 179,926,228 ik & MK
HEIMNBILHEARLEA®
¥ /770,973,000 7 JT #9 A X
BREREE  ERWEBHES
ErEH o RE - AARIERER
8 A F 18 438,733,000 7 7t -
DEWEZEENAHAERE
E - MARLBREREBENAF
1B 4687,188,000 & 7T A 1B #%
B EMNGEETE -

WERESENKERERE
SEMNEEFEET -

U B8 7 5 132,462,000 % T =
ERANAIABEREEHAR
% %¥8770,973,000 /8 JT B2 & 5%
B B B & 2~ F {5687,188,000
BIL2BERERE S (WVME - #
BRREBEBORFEAE: &
(i) B8 AN & B FE (L B & A A
HEEERBEATFERE

BWEHHE=EER 2 BNF
B BHESEARTNESEKAS
21,158,000 /& 7T & L A - 1M
77N & B & FI| 75 2K 27,465,000
BITEAN c EERR - ARE
EEERRT\IBHIBE
B MEZEBREESEER =
ZEEXNFUA—HBE2_ZTZ+
FZA=+—HHBEHKAR
¥E(HNKBERZZTEEN
FUA—BER) -
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48. Acquisition of Assets Through 48. BB WIE—EHE QAW
Acquisition of a Subsidiary BEE
On 31 December 2007, the Group entered into an agreement RZZEZLF+A=+—HB K
to acquire 100% interest in Siu Hin Development Limited (“Siu B ET 1 - PA K {E40,000,000
Hin") at a consideration of HK$40,000,000. Siu Hin Development % Jr W BEESiu Hin Development
Limited is an investment holding company and its subsidiary Limited ([ Siu Hin]) # & &0 # #= ©
holds a land as property held for sale in PRC. The acquisition was Siu Hin Development Limited & & &
completed on 31 December 2007. ZERAAE EMBRAARPREEAR

—EELHIERIFEHEME - WiE
ER_EE+F+-_HA=+—H=

X
The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets WEEREERBERE AR - I8
and liabilities. The effect of the acquisition is summarized as BEEBMENT
follows:
2008
—EENE
HK$'000
TER
Net assets acquired: W EEFME:
Properties held for sale FIEIE
Bank balances RIT&TE
Other receivables H th & W R IR )
Amount due to a subsidiary of the Company (Notea) — FEfT A X E — M B A 5 ZE
(Kiita) (15,782)
Amount due to an associate of the Group (Note b) FE A AR & B — A B 2 A B FUR
(Ki#tb) (14,142)
40,000
Consideration satisfied by: RENZHFAFR :
Promissory note included in borrowings BNEE S S
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition: WEEBEENR SR AFE -
Bank balances acquired WM IRITETF
Notes: Mt
(@)  The amount of HK$15,782,000 represented the short-term loan (@) 15,782,000 7T /& FE U Siu Hin 2 &
receivable due from Siu Hin. IR BHER -
(b)  In accordance with the agreement, the amount due to an associate (b)y WEWZE - BN —EEE QAR
of the Group were assigned to the Group as settlement to the BHEORZEASHEEZHELRE

Group's loans to an associate. LT HEERRZER-
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48. BEW B —E B 2 8 Uk

48. Acquisition of Assets Through
BEE (#)

Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

BB AR Y ERAEETS
KEMBEREXEHBRSRE -

The subsidiary acquired did not make any significant result or
cash flow to the Group.

49. Disposal of Subsidiaries 49. HEME A A
() For the year ended 31 March 2008 )y BEZZEZENF=H=+—H
IEFE
On 2 October 2007, the Group disposed of 55.2% interest RZZETEZETELF+ A8
in Manwide Holdings Limited (“Manwide Holdings”) at a A £ E A K E500,000 &
consideration of HK$500,000. 7T+ i & Manwide Holdings

Limited ([ Manwide Holdings )
Z552% % °

On 7 March 2008, the Group disposed of 100% interest RZZEZENF=ZARA A"

in Pariet Trading Limited (“Pariet”) at a consideration of A £ & B R E 4214,000 7

approximately HK$214,000. JC * th & Pariet Trading Limited
([Pariet]) Z 100% # %5 °

On 31 March 2008, the Group disposed of 100% interest RZZEENF=A=+—8"
in Total Wealth Investments Limited (“Total Wealth”) at a & B A & 43,000,000
consideration of approximately HK$3,000,000. % T i &Total Wealth

Investments Limited ([ Total

Wealth ) 2 100% #&E &% °

Manwide * Pariet X Total
Wealthit EF A EBE MK EE
f% o

Manwide, Pariet and Total Wealth were engaged in
securities trading and investment holding.

On 31 March 2008, the Group disposed of 100% interest RZEENF=A=+—H -

in Menfus Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as to “Menfus Group”) to a purchaser at a total
consideration of HK$25,000,000.

7K £ [ A # X {8 25,000,000 /8
7T ¢ [ B 77 i & Menfus Group
Limited 2 L Hi B A & (R R
[ Menfus Groupl) <~ 100% %

Az
= o
1
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49. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

49. HEMWB R T (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2008 (Continued) ), BEZZEENF=ZA=+—H
WFE (&)
Manwide Total Menfus
Holdings Pariet Wealth Group Total
Manwide Total Menfus
Holdings Pariet Wealth Group st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT FAET FAT
Available-for-sale investments ] fff $4 & 18 & — — — 250,000 250,000
Property, plant and equipment #7% - # 33 & & 207 — — — 207
Investments held for trading #H{EEERE — — 479 — 479
Trade and other receivables 2 5 &% H b e U 208 17,655 3,000 96,006 — 116,661
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRE 12,431 — — — 12,431
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EH M ENE (42,360) (2,643) — (225,029) (270,032)
Tax payable ANER — — (93,539) — (93,539)
(12,067) 357 2,946 24,971 16,207
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEKB QA
subsidiaries (BE) U&= 12,567 (143) 54 29 12,507
Total consideration “RE 500 214 3,000 25,000 28,714
Satisfied by: TRAR
Cash Be 500 214 3,000 25,000 28,714
Net cash inflow arising on HEEEZFRS
disposal: MA
Cash consideration BeRE 500 214 3,000 25,000 28,714
Bank balances and cash HEZRITHET
disposed of LE4e (12,431) — — — (12,431)
(11,931) 214 3,000 25,000 16,283

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year did not

contribute significantly to the revenue and the results of

the Group. The cash flow contributed or utilized by the

subsidiaries disposed of during the year was not significant.

£ PO B 2 B 2 R A S Uy
AREBELBEREM - FRLE
IHEARNEBRB AR RE
YFEK o
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49. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued) 49. HEMWB AR (&)
(i)  For the year ended 31 March 2007 (i BEZZEZ+tF=A=+—H
EFE
Other than the disposal of Disposed Business set out in BRMFISHBELEEEBIN K&
note 13, the Group also disposed of 100% interest in & 71 2 Bl A A (& 28,500,000 7 7T
Collegate Limited, Trifame Limited and Pacerinc Limited for 24,000,000 /& JT 521,000,000 ;&
a consideration of HK$28,500,000, HK$24,000,000 and JC i % Collegate Limited * Trifame
HK$21,000,000 respectively. Collegate Limited, Trifame Limited & Pacerinc Limited® #8 #
Limited and Pacerinc Limited are investment holding @ ° Collegate Limited ~ Trifame
company. In additions, the Group has dissolved certain Limited 5 Pacerinc Limited¥3 /& #& &
subsidiaries, namely Hollywood & Co., Limited, Better Gain ZRCAE o SN AEBECBEAE
Investment Limited, Hanny Strategy Limited and Zhuhai T M B2 F - 5 5l AHollywood &
Hanny Property Investment Limited. Co., Limited * Better Gain Investment

Limited -+ &% 8 5% B% B [R A B R K /&
HEXEREBRAA -
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49. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

FENF=ZH=+—HIFFE

49. HEMB R T (&)

(i) For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued) (il BZ2_TTLtF=A=+—H
IEFE (&)
Zhuhai
Hanny
Hollywood Better Gain ~ Hanny  Property
&Co,, Collegate  Trifame  Pacerinc Investment  Strategy Investment Disposed
Limited  Limited  Limited  Limited  Limited  Limited  Limited Subtotal  Business Total
Hollywood Better Gain GEHAE
&Co., Collegate  Trifame  Pacerinc Investment HAXK XERE
Limted  Limited  Limited Limited Limited H&R27 ERAR MEOLEER @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Thr ThArT TR TEx  TEr  TErn  TEr  TExr  TEx TR
(Note)
(M)
Property, plant and equipment 9% - #ERRE 208 - - — 13610 18 — 13836 28440 42276
Available-forsale investments ] (£ 4 €454 — 28500 24000 21,000 - - — 73500 — 73500
Goodwill k] — — — — — — — — 167,908 167,908
Intangible assets BYEE - - - - - - - — 68002 68,002
Deferred tax assets BULHEEE - — - - - - - - 749 749
Inventories "E — — — — — — — — 600,161 600,161
Trade and other receivables B 5 R £ il
FE 6 — — — 12,137 33 15,277 27453 536,769 564,222
Tax recoverable i E g — — — — 26 — — 26 86,263 86289
Bank balance and cash RTBERAE 542 - - - 285 - 3B 308 36543 39571
Trade and other payables EHRAMER
F] (2,707) — — (5 (19873 (390) (35 (23,010) (660,748)  (683,758)
Bank borrowings RITER - - - - (783 o] —  (7842) (108,626) (116,468)
Deferred tax liabilities BEREAR - - - - - - - - (1217 (1217)
Tax payables ERHE - - - - (94) — (15277 (15371) - (1537)
(1,951) 28,500 24,000 20,995 419 (343) — 71620 743289 814,909
Minority interests LEREESR - - - - - - — (19795 (19,795)
(1,951) 28500 24,000 20,995 419 (343) — 71,620 723,494 795114
Exchange reserve realized BERERRE - - 3 - 533 - - 56  (5979)  (5443)
Gain (loss) on disposal of LEWBLAFL
subsidiaries s (B%8) 1,951 - B) 5 (952) 343 — 134 1506346 1527690
- 28,500 24,000 21,000 — - — 73,500 2,243861 2,317,361
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(ii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued) (i BEZZEZ+tF=A=+—H
IFE (&)
Zhuhai
Hanny
Hollywood Better Gain ~ Hanny  Property
&Co, Collegate  Trifame  Pacerinc Investment ~Strategy Investment Disposed
Limited  Limited  Llimited  Limited  Llimited  Limited  Limited Subtotal Business Total
Hollywood Better Gain KEREE
&Co, Collegate  Trifame  Pacerinc Investment HERE EERE
Limited ~ Limited ~ Limited  Limited  Limited ERAF BRAF Mt HEER @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér ThEn TEr TExr  TEn  TEx  TEr  TEAr  TEn  TEn
(Note)
(isE)
Satisfied by: SOLESE
Cash in HK Dollar A (B1) — 28,500 24,000 21,000 — — — 73500 — 73,500
Cash (US$274,200,000) B4 (274,200,000 7) - - - - - - - — 212131 2121037
Amount held underescrow  sFAE M EME
account (U5$33,100,000) LEERFRE
included in other receivables 2 2% (33,100,000% 7T - - - - - - - — 56823 256,803
Farout amount SALMERFE
(US$5,000,000) included i~ Fi54E
other receivables (5,000,000%7T) - - - - - - - — 3879 387%
Withholding tax ERENH
(Us§1,500,000) (1,500,000% 7T) - - - - - - - — (11638 (11639
Expenses incurred for disposal ~ HEEE 2% - - - - - - - — (167,356 (167,35)
Total consideration BRE — 28500 24000 21,000 - - — 73500 2243861 2317361
Net cash inflow (outflow) HERAEEZ
arising on disposal ReRA
(V)58 :
Cash consideration BeKE — 28,500 24,000 21,000 — — — 73500 2,127,231 2,200,737
Expenses incurred for disposal -~ HEEE 7% — - - - — - - — (167356  (167,356)
Bank balances and cash HEZBER
disposal of kB¢ (542) — — — (2,451) — (35 (3,028) (36543  (39,571)
(542) 28500 24,000 21,000 (2,451) - (35 70472 1923338 19933810

The subsidiaries disposed of or dissolved did not make any
significant contribution to the cash flows of the Group
during the year. Details of the cash flows of the Disposed

Business is set out in note 13.

TR T E SRR A Z M B AR [
AEBEERMZASRELFNEKR -
HEXBNRSREFBHRNME

13
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49. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the aggregate

consideration for the disposal of Disposed Business
comprises: (i) an initial consideration of US$330,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,560,470,000); (ii) plus
the amount, if any, by which the net current assets amount
at completion date exceeding US$87,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$675,033,000) or minus the amount,
if any, by which the amount of net current assets amount at
completion date falling short of US$87,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$675,033,000); and (iii) plus the earnout
amount which is to be determined by reference to the
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
of the electronic data storage business of the Disposed
Companies to be disposed of by the MIl and calculated
on an agreed basis set out in the agreement for each of
the twelve-month periods ending on 31 March 2007, 31
March 2008 and 31 March 2009. The earnout amount shall
have a cumulative minimum of US$5,000,000 (equivalent
of approximately HK$38,795,000) and a cumulative
maximum of US$45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$349,155,000). In the event that Imation transfers control
of the business (as defined in the circular dated 10 April
2006) at any time, prior to 1 April 2009, Imation will pay Ml
an amount equal to whatever would be required to bring the
aggregate amount of earnout payments to US$45,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$349,155,000).

According to the above terms set out in the Disposal
Agreement, the net consideration of US$289,195,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,243,861,000) is
calculated after taking into the following:

(@) the initial consideration of US$330,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,560,470,000);

49. HEME AR (#)

(ii)

BE_ZTZTALF=R=+—H
EFE (&)

M RELERZ  HELEX

BZBEREEE: (RER
{&330,000,000 % T ( 49 & ©
2,560,470,000 & 7T ) (i) R
MEXBH TS EEFE
{8 #187,000,000 % T ( 4 &
#675,033,0008 Jt ) 2 3K 1A
(WA) R E=/K AR
&) & E ¥ 18 2 787,000,000
% 7T ( #9 % $2675,033,000 7
TT) 2 FRIE (WA ) ¢ Kdii)n
LS %e@EH2E
MIFTEE 2 ERARE
BEFTHEEHRTHE
BiE - EREHEZRNE
F W BE#EEE =T
T+FE=ZA=+—H ==
ENE=A=+—-HRKR_-Z
TAFE=A=+—HB 1%
+TEAEMzEHEESE
ATE B EY 2 &K
%A 7B /5,000,000% T (4 =
738,795,000 7T ) + M REf
% = % 78 /545,000,000 3 T
(#4927 349,155,000/8 7T ) °
fifiimation?® —ZEZ L F M A
— BT RMEEER
THE(EERAHA-S
TXREMNA+BHZB®)
Alllmation ¥ & RIMISZ fF —
EREREMBNRABE
45,000,000 & 7T ( 49 F R
349,155,000/ 7T ) AT & & &8
ZRE o

R AR & e AT a2 bl g
X X {BF %8 289,195,000 %
70 ( #) % 142,243,861,000 7
TN T &EHE -

(@) & & X {&330,000,000
x x( B F RN
2,560,470,0007% 7T ) :



49. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

plus additional consideration of US$1,200,000
(equivalent to HK$9,311,000) agreed between
the Group and Imation pursuant to the pre-closing
agreement dated 28 April 2006;

minus shortfall amount of approximately
US$23,900,000 (equivalent to HK$185,721,000)
which represented the net current assets at
completion date (based on the figures extracted from
the management accounts of the Disposed Companies
as at 28 April 2006 provided by Imation) falling short
of US$87,000,000 (equivalent to HK$675,033,000);

plus the earnout amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$38,795,000) which represented the minimum
earnout amount as provided in the Disposal
Agreement;

minus the estimated withholding tax of US$1,500,000
(equivalent to HK$11,638,000) withheld by Imation
regarding the disposal; and

minus the expenses incurred in connection with the
disposal of approximately HK$167,356,000.
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49. HEMEB QR (#)

(ii)

14

st ||

’\

HE

FFE

Wit -

(b)

(0

(e)

M

/

2t¢£ﬁ£+*5

(%)

5 b0 A & & B mation
BIEBHA-_ZTZT X
FWA-+NBZRE
FX B 13 5% 1 € 2 B8 S
£ & 1,200,000 % 7t (48
£749,311,000/8 7T )

WET R EEY
23,900,000 3= 75( GiE
£ 185,721,000
L) Bk B EZ
RBEEFEIR
87,000,000 3 jt (18 &
EA675 033,000 /& 7T )
2 R E(RE A
Imationfg ft 2 H & 2
RBE-ZZ X EN
A-Z+N\HZEEE
BEF#ETrE)

S mF B & B\
5,000,000 3 7T (#8555 %A
38,795,000 /& Jt )+ &I
HEMZEMRE 2 &
KFT1S 288

S8 ZlImationzt

TE 0 2 fh RFTE W
1,500,000 3 7t (FEE R
11,638,000 L) + &

BMEEBEHEZHAX
#7167,356,0007% JT °
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50. Major Non-cash Transactions

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the major non-cash

transactions were as follows:

(@ Amount due to ultimate holding company amounting
to HK$169,757,000 were transferred to amounts due to
related companies due to the change of the shareholding of
the Company held by the shareholder.

(b) Convertible note receivable from an associate of
HK$196,622,000 and conversion options embedded
in convertible note receivable from an associate of
HK$54,882,000 were transferred to interests in associates
upon the Group converted the Wing On CN as explained in
note 28.

() Convertible notes designated at fair value through
profit and loss of HK$640,404,000 were transferred
to investments held for trading upon the conversion of
convertible notes designated at fair value through profit
and loss into investments held for trading.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the major non-cash

transactions were as follows:

(@) Borrowings of HK$183,046,900 and HK$169,000,000
were transferred to amounts due to related companies and
amount due to ultimate holding company respectively due

to the change of shareholding of the Company.

(b)  Short-terms loans receivables from related companies of
HK$159,559,000 were transferred to loans to associates
since the related company has become the associate of the

Group during the year.

ZHRBRERZH

BE-ZT\F=A=+—HLItF
B ER2FREXZWE ¢

(@ HBERABREBBZARAZRE
BE - WENREERQFRK
E%%E169757000;%5755$q
BREREMNBE FKIE

by ER—MHMEARZALHBE
1% 196,622,000 # T & JfE Ux —
MEtE R A LRERZH
1 1#54,882,000% ¢ © E R A
SE RGBT LB ERRE
BEBENAER  FBERW
FX28 0

© EEERQAFEIELF AR
# 2 A] H ¥ Z $5640,404,000
BT ERETEERAFEYER
WEF ABR 2O LR ER N B
ARBFEBERENEREZHE

BHE_ZTTLF=A=1T—"HILF
B rXT2FEBREXFWT -

(@ A & ~ 7 | # &
% % /5183,046,000 & T &
169,000,000 /& 7T B f& 3% 5 Bl
E%EFHF@%@@E},AE&%
NREZERRARIFKRIA -

by EWEERNAEBHEXR

159559000?@%%%WE§L

NAEIK RN EE L AR RE
BELTHELNTER -
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51. Contingent Liabilities 51. KR EE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts utilized in respect of guarantees MINR AR FTEEERIEITR
given to banks and other financial EmemlEiRatERm
institutions for facilities granted EE ek |
to outsiders 23,292
Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other contingent B EXFIEEEN  REBR T
liabilities as at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007. ENF=ZHA=+—H &:zzt
FZA=-t+— B EEMKIAE
f& o
52. Operating Lease 52. MEHELN
The Group as lessee REBERAMEA
2008 2007
—Z2ENF —ETLF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBRERONZ
operating leases during the year: &EBE K
Land and buildings T REF 1,700
Property, plant and equipment ME - s BB 295

1,995
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52. Operating Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the respective balance sheet date, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

52.

RERN )
AEEERERA (F)
REFHA  AEEHERETT

B SBTY Y RE  RERK
BERENKZIMBMT :

Within one year

—FNR

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

38

Leases are negotiated for lease term of one year and rentals are

fixed over the terms of the leases.

The Group as lessor

BRI BEOFRA—F mMESAE
HOBMANEE -

Rental income earned under operating

leases during the year:

Investment properties
Land and buildings

Property, plant and equipment

FAREBELEHEORRZ

HEUWA -

BEMF
+ i g T
ME - WERRE

A MR A
2008 2007
—zz) 5 TR
HK$‘000 HK$000
FHT FT
1,228
64
36

1,328




52. Operating Lease (Continued) 52.

The Group as lessor (Continued)

At the respective balance sheet date, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease income

which fall due as follows:
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KEMN (&)
REBERELBA (H)
REBHA  AEECEES T

B R R AR M & WA R LA T B 3
HY -

>

2008 2007
—EEN\E —EELF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET

Operating leases which expire within —FRIHRAZKLHED

one year

525

The Group has committed tenants with lease term of one year as
at 31 March 2007.

R-TTLF=A=+—0 42
AERESAR  BHAS—F -
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53. Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on 21 August
2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to the employees of the Group. Under
the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees including the
directors (but excluding independent non-executive directors) of
the Company and the directors of any of the subsidiaries of the
Company to subscribe for shares in the Company.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general meeting of
the Company on 17 March 2003, the Company has terminated
the 2001 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”). Under the 2003
Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may grant options to directors and employees of the Group and
any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters and service providers of any members of the
Group who the board of directors considers have contributed or
will contribute or can contribute to the Group. The purpose of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Group and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Group and its shares for the benefits of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and to be exercised under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, when aggregated
with any shares subject to any other schemes, is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
approval and adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

3. B IRFERT &

ARARRZZTEZE—FN\HA=Z+—H
EMHERESE (-8
RENE D FEEEABAEEE
B RE-_ZTT-—FHERES -
ARREEGARERTEERESR
(BEARAEF(BETBEB LI
HITESR) RARAIMBARIES)
ARERAFRMDEEIRE -

BER-_ZZ=F=F+EHHETT
MARRBRERI A @B RE
R ARAERE-ZTZT—FEBER
BETEI WM ERESE(=E
ToFERETE])  RE-ZFZ
—FEREFE  AQFESEEN
EERERTERADLR BN
BEMEAEBHEERMNASEE
ZENEE AEBEITMAKERRH
Bl EX - o#HBm &85 #
EE - REA TP EBEBH4 -
BEDNREBRYE  BRARRE
HEm — ST =FERESIN
EMNERRELEERESASER
EHRe T HB2EEARNEER
HEREEBANEZMENRALAEE
REBRMDEE -

BREFAREBE_-_TST=-_FERE:
EIRARFEMEEITHEE2IE K
tH A 1T 50 A9 1 R 1T BB AR R T B AT
MRODBETBBBRAARTRE
1T D A BRI 30% I 1 50 - AR IE
TET=FEREFERLERE
AT R AR 1 42 BUE R AR BE (] E b
AEIBRTARD AT ESEBBAR
AR =FERETSEINE
RERMEBEBITRHE10% °
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53. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 53. B ESTE (&)

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the options which may
be granted to any individual in any one year are not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. Options may
be exercised at any time from the date on which the option
is accepted to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company shares on the date of grant or the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the

date of grant or the nominal value of the share of the Company.

No options were outstanding under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme at 31 March 2007 and 2008.

RE-_FZ=-FHBRETS  WE
RRARBRREFLRLAE  REFAR
TEMEANBRETCSEEAR
AEBETRMIMI% - RTFTETER
REBIFATESTNBERERS
A~ B B Z80.1% 2k #8 35,000,000
BILAIRERARR BRI A -

BEMBREZENE L B E28A
NEX BRERBEREMN1E
Lo BEREAREYEREERD
BE T EBEFANEREEITE 17
FEHARAEFTETE  BTEE
RARABOHREFE L BONKTHE -
FEERLAAAEEERARLQA
By FHRHERAR LR KD @
BE=ENRRE -

PTLFER-TENFZA
A EWEE-FTT=FH
BB T 04 R 7T 6 60 B IR

o

112
7

>t
i
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53. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 53. R EFE (&)
2001 Share Option Scheme —EE-FHEREE
During the year ended 31 March 2007, the movements of the BE_TTELF=A=1+—HILF
share options are as follows: E-BRESHNAT
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercised
Exercise Outstanding during  Lapsed during Outstanding
Date of grant Exercisable period price at 1.4.2006 the year the year at 31.3.2007
R-ZBEXRE R-ZEBELE
mA-B RER RER =HA=+-H
Riti B ATEHE TE i RATE TR P R AT
HK$
oy
Directors
Ex
31.8.2001 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006 2.9888 7,250,000 (3,250,000) (4,000,000) —
—EZ-F)\A “EE-F/\A=+-HE
=+—H “ZEEREN\A=TH
Employees
B8
31.8.2001 31.8.2001 to 30.8.2006 2.9888 1,750,000 — (1,750,000) —
—EZ-E)\A —EE-F/\A=+-HE
=+—H “ZEEREN\A=TH
9,000,000 (3,250,000) (5,750,000) —
No options were outstanding under the 2001 Share Option N_EELER_ZETENE=A

Scheme at 31 March 2007 and 2008.

TR YERE_FTT-—FH
B R AT 6 A B AR

e
E't
oy 10



54. Retirement Benefits Schemes

55.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme
for qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$652,000 (2007: HK$225,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. As at balance sheet dates, no contribution
were due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid
over to the Schemes.

Pledge of Assets

At the respective balance sheet date, the following assets were
pledged by the Group to secure banking and other financing
facilities:

54.

55.
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R AKE R ET &)

AEBRARRALEEENRBE QA
ZEERRBREHETARNERER
([mfEE )atdl- 2Bt E 2
BEDBYLIRAEE  LEFEAE
BzEERARKE AKEREH
TERAZ5%FZaT SR &
BE ZHFBEMER -

XERTEMBARZAEEESR
AR BB #ET ZBREEENK
BAGHEIKE - ZFEMBRRAR
TEETADHIERZRIKEF G
oty REMNERES - A%
B 2R KRR A G 8l 2 R EE R IE
B E 2 AR -

BRAERZRAMK Z 8K AN
652,000 7T (= Z 4 : 225,000
BIL)EAEER RS BB EZ
SHERNGZHR - REER - I
ERARYEFEIN o RRARE
Bz R e

BEKH
RESHA  REBETIEER

HIERBRTLREMBERFEZE
*

Listed securities of associates

Investment properties HEME
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Investments held for trading BHIEEEKRE

BERA MBS

2008 2007
SN -z~
HK$°000 HK$°000
TR T
422,346 92,955
250,000 146,000
134,915 —
50,869 61,087
858,130 300,042
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ =—FEFE/N\F=A=+—HIFFE

56. Transactions and Balances with Related

Parties

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with the
following related parties, together with balances with them at the
respective balance sheet date, details of which are as follows:

/|

56. HEAEALTETRS KM
B3 45 BR

ARERAFERTHMEALE
T2 EARSRAEHER 2 G
HEWT

2008 2007
SLICN =i
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT THR

Ultimate holding company:
Secondment fee
Associates:

Interest income

Rental expenses
Management fee income
Rental income

Related companies:

Interest expenses

REERRA -

t& 38 &

el

ENE

A B WA
He X
EEEHA
H2 WA

FERNA -

el

ME X

1,313

16,790
923
3,524
36

24,888 4,068




56. Transactions and Balances with Related

Parties (Continued)

On 29 October 2007, the Company issued 499,000,000 new
shares at HK$0.29 per share by entering into a subscription
agreement with ITC Corporation Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Details of balances with associates/related parties at the balance
sheet date are set out in note 38 and 36 respectively.

In addition, certain banking and other facilities of the Group were
secured by personal guarantee from a director of the Company, to
the extent of HK$5,018,400 and HK$504,619,700 at 31 March
2008 and 2007 respectively.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and key executives of the Group
is determined by the remuneration committee, having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends, amounted to
HK$8,932,000 (2007: HK$22,573,000).

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or no significant
balances with them at the respective balance sheet date.
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56. EHHEEE AN T #H TR H K

BA A BR ()

R_ZEELF+A-_+HLH AR
AIEARRIZEERREHELE
SEERAATURBHRE K
1% 0.29 7% JT 2% 77499,000,000 f% 7 A%

1/\ °
REEREBRLERNR / BHREALT
BB RIE A M FE38 %36 ¢

o - REBZE FRITRAMAE
ERARNa —REFRHEMEAE
R RZEZNFR_TTLF=
A=+—H2z&%% 545,018,400
78 7T 5.504,619,7007% 7T °

TEZEEAB R

AEBESRTETHRABHMA
FMEESLLERENIHERR
MTSBEET - #%58932,000
BIL(ZZ T £ F 22,573,000 %
JT) e

BREXPIEEIN  FALERE
AT ZEMERRS > MREER
HINVEE KR -
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57. Balance Sheet of the Company

58.

Total assets AEME
Total liability aE®8E
Capital and Reserves BERKEE
Share capital [N
Reserves &
Total equity G

Post Balance Sheet Events

The Group have the following significant events subsequent to

balance sheet date:

(i)

On 29 May 2008, the Group entered into agreement
with Skyera International Limited, an independent third
party of the Group, to dispose of the 22,727,272 shares
of Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(“Golden Harvest”, a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange) at a consideration of approximately
HK$84,100,000. The shares were issued to the Group on
30 May 2008 upon conversion from a convertible note held
by the Group with principal amount of HK$50,000,000
issued by Golden Harvest at a conversion price of HK$2.2
per share. The directors of the Company are in the progress

of assessing the financial impact.

58.

=

2007

—EENF —EFT£F
HK$000 HK$'000
FE T FABT
3,351,770 3,372,811
1,240,326 1,498,958
2,111,444 1,873,853
50,128 2,528
2,061,316 1,871,325
2,111,444 1,873,853

HERRSER

AEEREERBRZEARFEMN
T~

(i)

RZZEENFRAZ+ANAB -
AEEBEAEREBIE=FH
Skyera International Limited 7]
U WHEERRREEE
(SE)BRA2A (X! E
BRI ETH—KA
7])22,727272 IR & 1p - K (B
#) /84,100,000 7% 7T © % F K&
MRASERLBRETR22
BILRBAFGFFEAETHAEAR
% 17 /K & %8 7%50,000,000 /& JT
ZARBEEBER -_ZTT)N
FRA=THETTAEH -
RARESFHENEBEBYB

B 488
& o



58. Post Balance Sheet Events (Continued)

(ii)

On 6 June 2008, the Company announced that the
Company had irrevocably undertaken to ITC Properties
Group Limited (“ITCP") and the underwriter that it will take
up, or procure the taking up of, its provisional entitlements
under the rights issue of ITCP. The rights issue of ITCP is the
issue of three ITCP shares (together with warrants to be
issued in the proportion of four warrants for every fifteen
shares to be subscribed under the rights issue) for every
ITCP share held on a record date to be determined at a
subscription price of HK$0.07 per share. The Group held
477,517,272 ITCP shares and therefore has undertaken to
subscribe 1,432,551,816 ITCP shares at total consideration
of approximately HK$100,279,000. At the date of the
report, the rights issue of ITCP was not yet completed.
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58. ®E HREIE (#)

(ii)

RZEZENEFESANH AR
RIEM ARARIEREFE
SEARAB([EFEHE])
K B38BT a] BE 2 &
HABRBIRERBELE
/a5

SHEMEMHEKRE N Z2E ER
B oo BEMENMHKRARER
BESROOZTATRETETE
Mt A RRSRFE —RE
HHERMBET=REFEHE
RO (EREZSRBHRKRIET
+ F A% ] 4 3R B AR 1 K X PO {9
AR BT H L BB 1T B SR AR R
&) NEBERHFA77,517,272
REFEMERD  WEHER
8% 1,432,551,816 f% 128 ¥ i &= A%
7 8B {E % A100,279,00078
Jo e MATREBH - B E
HAR B AR T ©

i

C

i
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59. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 59. T EMB LR E 2515

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2008 RZEZENF=ZA=+—H A2

are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

AIBRFEMBARZFBNOT :

Equity interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

AL, ERTRABAZRE, rEBERAW
MEARER B B ZRRAE BAER FEEL
Island Town Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% Investment property
& AR A A BE 1007 7T holding
HEREME
Hanny Magnetics Limited Hong Kong HK$1,100,000,200 100% Investment holding
87 AL A AR A A BB ordinary shares and trading and
HK$6,000,000 marketing of
5% non-voting computer media
deferred shares products and
(note a) related peripherals
1,100,000,200% 7T and accessories
Rk REER N EBREEE
6,000,000 7T EmkiAEREE
5% IR RERT mREHNE SR
Wty (Hfata) 5 HEE
CEL (note b) Bermuda Us$90,173 55.2% Investment holding
CEL(Hi7b) BRE Common stock &R
90,173E T & B
MRI Holdings Limited Australia A$31,381,010 57.26% Investment holding
("MRI") (note c) M ordinary shares REER
MRI Holdings Limited ([ MRI]) 31,381,010% 7T & i iz
(Ktitc)
BN RSB 2GR A A PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% Sand mining
(note d) GE A R 1,000,0007T Ry
BEMNREEXBER AR
(Ktatd)
W E R T A B KIESR PRC RMB76,980,000 59.75% Water supply
A A (note d) GE A R #76,980,000 7T Kk
L 5RBE S8 T K &R 7K 75
BRAR (Hatd)
EETEESEVMESER PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% Sand mining
NG| (note d) t A R 1,000,0007T Ry
RETEEEMES
R 7 (Htztd)
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59. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 59. T EMB AR 2716 (&)

(Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2007 RZZEZLF=RA=+—80 KA

are as follows: AIBEEMBARIZFEAT :
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/ Equity interest

Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
M, ERTRBERE AEBERFEW

MEAR BB Eroith B BRBRAE BAERZ FTEEK

Island Town Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% Investment property

m#EH R A A BB 1004 7T holding

BEREME
CEL (note b) Bermuda Us$90,173 55.2% Investment holding
CEL(MtaED) BEE Common stock ®E IR

90,173 L & Bk

MRI Holdings Limited Australia A$31,381,010 57.26% Investment holding
("MRI") (note c) B ordinary shares REER
MRI Holdings Limited ([ MRI ) 31,381,010% 7T & i Ik

(Kt 5Ec)
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59. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

59. X EMB LB 2515 (#)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/ Equity interest
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
M, ERTREBZRE AEBFAEN
Bt R B BB BB BRBRAE BRAER FTEEK
Hanny Magnetics Limited Hong Kong HK$1,100,000,200 100% Investment holding
R AR A A BE ordinary shares and trading and
HK$6,000,000 marketing of
5% non-voting computer media
deferred shares products and
(note a) related peripherals
1,100,000,200% 7T and accessories
B A BAER R E RS
6,000,000 7T EmRAEREE
5% M 1% R IR IE mMRENHNE S Kk
Wt (it ata) 5 HEE
Well Orient Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% Investment holding
ZR RSN NC] BB 287T REZER
BEMIRESE XA R A A PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% Sand mining
(note d) H A R ¥ 1,000,0007T R
BN RIS B 2GR A A
(Hiztd)
Notes: Mt -
a. The holders of the 5% non-voting deferred shares are not entitled 5% BN EREER G 2 EE AE

to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meetings of
the Company. The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
rights to dividends or to participate in any distribution on winding
up.

b. CEL operates in both Hong Kong and the PRC and its shares are
traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board in the United States
of America.

C. MRI operates both in Australia and Hong Kong and its shares are
listed on the Australia Stock Exchange. MRI and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in securities holding activities.

BWBMARBEMBRRAS Z&
FTHEERGARGLEFE -8
RERECRNER LY EMA
{E fo 4 M R B B SRR B B B
BEMDIK

CELR BB RFEELE  Hk{)
EXESIRZHEREER -

MRIFEBNE & HEE  ERMH
ERMNFEHRXBHET > MRIK
HWBAREZEKAERES -



59.

60.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

d. These companies are registered in the form of foreign investment

enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the result of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particular of excessive length.
Change in Presentation

In previous periods, sale proceeds and related cost of sales of
financial assets were presented in the consolidated income
statement within turnover and cost of sales respectively.

In preparation for the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2008, the presentation of revenue, cost of
sale and net unrealized gain/loss on investments held for trading
have been changed to reflect the nature of sales of financial
assets in a more appropriate manner, whereby the net realized
and unrealized gain/loss on investments held for trading are
presented in the consolidated income statement as net gain on
investments held for trading. The comparatives in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2007 have been restated accordingly to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

59.

60.
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TEMB LR ZFE (#)

Hat « ()

o
w
i

ERBINIIEARECERAE

pafl13
cu
o

ERINE2AEBERBLRF  HE
ERRIBFEAREFAZESA
IBRAKBFREEFEERE
MZRm - BEERL - FHEMH
BRREEHRRANITE -

25 HR

EBEHE VHEEENHEMS
IR KRB A TR AR & Wk
RADRN2INEXBERBEEKRE
BT e

REBREZE_FTENF=ZA=1+—
HIEFEHFREVMBRRE - WA -
HEXNALBIEEERE 2 AER
W,/ BEFEZZ2INEELARE
NEFEEMRMEEVHEEEN N
BBl BIEEEREZAEN
RAERWEDREERERET
EREFEERERTZFE -BHEZ
T LF=ZA=Z+—HILZARR
BFEBUHEBIUFEAFEZR
5l o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #HZ —FEFE/N\F=ZA=+—HIFFE

60. Change in Presentation (Continued)

The effects of the change in presentation have been accounted

for retrospectively with comparative figures changed. The specific

line items affected are as follows:

60. 25 SN2 (&)

ENTAEHNTE

¥ EFBELREF
HEWT :

2008
-
HK$000
TR

Decrease in revenue

Decrease in cost of sale

Decrease in net unrealized (loss) gain on
investments held for trading

Increase in net gain on investments held for

trading

WA
§5 & B AR,

REBEREZARER
(B8 Wk % 8Os 2

FEE B/ & Yt H 588 0

429,820
428,847

(973)

39,398

BEEPAARK

XEENEE

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FAT

108,682
118,339

9,657

60,323



Financial Summary

MBRE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 March 2008 is set out

below:

(a) Results
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AEBERBE_TTN\F=ZA=1+—H
ThEFEEFHEXEREERARE
ZHMEBHN T X

(@) ZE#&

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HILEE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ZTME 1F ZTTRE CZITTLF RN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TET TER
(restated)
(25)
Revenue A 5,025,930 257,656 316,638 358,573 627,588
Profit (loss) before income tax Bk P15 8 B i
(B#8) 135,245 (248,508) (144,092) (23,967) 192,749
Income tax expense FIiEHmE % (25,469) (4,282) (4,331) (32,457) (144,763)
Profit (loss) for the year from KEEREBEE
continuing operations BeZEBomhl
(B#) 109,776 (252,790) (148,423) (56,424) 47,986
Profit for the year from KEERBERE
discontinued operations ES. Yot — 152,552 52,419 1,517,926
Profit (loss) for the year AEFRMN(EE) 109,776 (100,238) (96,004) 1,461,502
Attributable to: B -
Equity holders of the Company NN
RAA 13,300 (161,862) 8,915 527,080 129,110
Minority interests DER R 96,476 61,624 (104,919) 934,422 (81,124)
109,776 (100,238) (96,004) 1,461,502 47,986
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BHREE

(b) Assets and liabilities by EERESE
At 31 March
R=A=+-H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“EENF —BERE —EEREF —ETLF =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR FET FET TERT
Total assets EEBE 3,943,236 3,656,553 4,193,180 5,007,707 5,193,985
Total liabilities BERE (1,664,898)  (1,400,562)  (1,973,857)  (1,808,595) | &l plderti)

2,278,338 2,255,991

2,219,323 3,199,112 3,767,601

Equity attributable to equity AREIREREA
holders of the Company JE (57 & 1,873,181 1,806,374
Minority interests DER RS 405,157 449,617

1,868,889 2,492,490 3,089,010
350,434 706,622 678,591

2,278,338 2,255,991

2,219,323 3,199,112 3,767,601

Note: For the year ended 31 March 2007, the revenue was restated as
a result of the change in presentation as described in note 60 to
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2008. In the opinion of directors, no restatement of revenue for the
years ended 31 March 2004, 2005 and 2006 was presented, as it
would involve expense and delay out of proportion to the value to
the members of the Company.

et

HRENSTREREBEE=ZZFZ
NE=ZA=Z+—BLFEZER
A B WMEM TR ZES -
HEHEE_ZELFZA=Z1—
AEFEZWAEBELRED -
EEZERA BRENNEBEFRHA
T RAE O E R AR R E K
BZEAE MUEHRZINEZ
TEWF - TR FR-F
TRNF=ZRA=F+T—HLEFEZ
WAEF -
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